


@ Annual Report

NOTE ON PRESENTATION

The annual report at 31 December 2024 was prepared in
accordance with the International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS), issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (IASB), as adopted by the European
Union and with Section 2:362 (8) of the Dutch Civil Code
('‘DCC), pursuant to Part 9 of Book 2. The IFRS designation
also includes the International Accounting Standards
("lAS") as well as all the interpretations of the International
Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (‘IFRIC’),
formerly the Standard Interpretations Committee (‘SIC’).

This copy of the annual report of Brembo N.V. for the year 2024 is
not in the ESEF-format as specified by the European Commission
In Regulatory Technical Standard on ESEF (Regulation (EU)
2079/815). The ESEF reporting package can be found on our
website https://www.brembogroup.com/en/investors/reports.

ARTICLES 15 AND 18 OF THE MARKET
REGULATIONS

In accordance with Articles 15 and 18 of Consob Regulation
20249 of 28 December 2017 and subsequent amendments
concerning ‘conditions for listing shares of companies that
control companies established and governed by laws of
non-EU countries), the parent company Brembo N.V. (the
‘Company’ or ‘Parent Company’ or ‘Brembo’ and together
with its subsidiaries ‘Brembo Group’ or the ‘Group’) has
identified its significant subsidiaries as defined in Article
15 (2) of the above-mentioned Regulation, and verified
that the conditions set out in paragraphs b) and c) of
Article 15 have been met.

ON THE FIGURES PRESENTED

All the figures in this annual report are expressed in
thousands of euro (except for the figures in separate
financial statements, which are in euro), whereas the
original data is recorded and consolidated by the Group
in euro. Similarly, all percentages relating to changes
between two periods or to percentages of net revenue or
other indicators are always calculated using the original
data in euro. The use of amounts expressed in millions
of euro may therefore result in apparent discrepancies
in both absolute amounts and data expressed as a
percentage.

The language of this annual report is English. Certain
legislative references and technical terms have been
cited in their original language in order to give them their
correct technical meaning under applicable law.
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ADAPTATION PLAN PURSUANT TO INFORMATION EUROPEAN SINGLE ELECTRONIC FORMAT

REQUIREMENTS

Pursuant to article 4 of the Transparency Directive, starting
from 2021 reporting period, the financial statements
schema in the annual financial report is prepared in
XHTML format, in compliance with the European Single
Electronic Format (ESEF) as a company listed on a
European Union regulated market. In addition, issuers
preparing IFRS consolidated financial statements shall
mark those up using Inline XBRL. Brembo Group manages
ESEF by leveraging a dedicated outsourced IT software
that allows compliance with the regulation.
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LETTER FROM THE EXECUTIVE CHAIRMAN

Shareholders,

| am very pleased to share with you

the Annual Report of a truly significant
year for Brembo. For the first time,

we are presenting our Annual Report

In an integrated form, highlighting,

on the one hand, the link between
strategy, governance and financial
performance and, on the other, the social,
environmental and economic context

in which we operate.

The further development of our
Innovation strategy, our major industrial
investments, and our expansion into
new business sectors were key elements
of the year just ended.

The global market context continued

to be full of complex challenges

that Brembo faced with a strategy

that has always proved successful:
investing in the future and in innovation.
On an industrial level, we forged ahead
with our investment plan of over half

a billion euro announced in 2023, opening
up new horizons by entering countries
such as Thailand, where we inaugurated
a new plant dedicated to two-wheeler
solutions. In Italy, we are expanding

our production at Brembo SGL Carbon
Ceramic Brakes S.p.A. and developing
additional spaces within

the Kilometro Rosso Science

and Technology Park.

One of the most significant events in
2024 was the acquisition of the Swedish
Ohlins Racing, announced in October
and completed in early 2025. Ohlins is

a leader in premium car and motorbike
suspensions conceived for MotoGP,
Formula 1, Superbike and NASCAR.

It is a world-renowned brand, with a

solid business and an unparalleled
reputation. This acquisition is the largest
transaction in our history and contributes
significantly to strengthening the Group’s
brand portfolio.

These investments, which consolidate our
global positioning, are made possible by
our results. In a very complex scenario,
marked by severe difficulties in the
automotive industry, particularly in Europe,
Brembo managed to keep revenues
substantially stable at €3,840.6 million. In
2023, a year that had shown significant
growth rates, revenues had amounted to
€3,849.2 million. We were able to achieve
these results thanks to the commitment
and work of over 15,000 Brembo people
around the world, who day after day
contribute to making our Company great
and to whom | extend my thanks.

Our goal is to ensure that Brembo
continues to grow and maintain its
leading position in the automotive market
at the global level. To reach this milestone,

in April 2024 we transferred Brembo's
registered office to the Netherlands.

This has allowed us to adopt a capital
structure that is more flexible and aligned
with our future development strategy.
This transaction did not, and will not,
affect Brembo people or its business,
identity, culture or presence in Italy and
In the other areas in which we operate.

In fact, Brembo continues to retain its tax
residence in ltaly, and to be listed on the
ltalian Stock Exchange.

For Brembo, growth also means
broadening its prospects, including with
regard to its core business. In fact, our
propensity to being a Digital Company
drives us to continue exploring the
endless opportunities offered by Al

and data management. This is how we
developed Sensify™: an intelligent braking
system that is able to communicate and
exchange information with the vehicle,
setting a new benchmark in

the automotive industry.

In line with this approach, in 2024
Brembo signed a global agreement with
Michelin to fully exploit the potential of
the respective intelligent brake and tyre
solutions, with the aim of revolutionizing
vehicle performance and offering

drivers the highest safety and comfort
standards. The ongoing exchange of

real-time data between Michelin’s
connected solutions software provides
data on tyre grip to Brembo’s innovative
Sensify™ braking system, allowing
engineers to fine tune the braking
system with exceptional precision.

Digitalization and data science are

now one of the key elements of the
automotive industry. It is for this reason
that, after opening our first Brembo
Inspiration Lab — a centre of excellence
located in California, Silicon Valley,

and specializing in software
development and Al applications —,
we have recently inaugurated, in the
same area, Brembo Coding Hub, which
focuses on software development
Innovation that integrates with

our customers and their platforms.

In sharing our integrated Annual Report,
which also illustrates how our activities
embrace all ESG areas, | want to underline
how essential it is for us to take into
account their impacts on the Group

and the impacts that the Group itself

has on people, communities and the
environment.

In fact, we are aware that we are an
Important player in the economic and
social fabric of the local areas in which
we operate all over the world. This
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generates a deep sense of responsibility
towards people, organizations

and institutions, and of course the
environment. For this reason, in 2024 we
continued to develop and implement
projects and initiatives to engage and
support local communities, with the aim
of bringing tangible support to the areas
of greatest social need. Our work and
commitment in this area were recognized
by various third parties, including the
magazine VITA, which placed Brembo

at the top of the ranking of large Italian
companies in the four sectors of fashion,
food, automotive and furniture precisely
because of its social responsibility.

In 2024, we also wanted to involve all
Brembo people in our Sustainability
Week, a sharing initiative organized at
all Brembo plants and offices around
the world. It was an opportunity

to encourage people to learn more
about and share fundamental topics
related to this area and saw the active
participation of thousands of people,
united in the name of sustainability.
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In terms of environmental sustainability,
| am particularly pleased to report that
CDP recognized Brembo’s commitment
in 2024 as well, confirming us as one

of the leading companies for action on
climate change and water stewardship
with an A-score in both categories.

As we grow and consolidate, what has
not changed is our passion for and
commitment to racing — a fundamental
pillar in which we continue to invest to
remain at the forefront of innovation.

To further strengthen the Brembo name’s
association with the world of racing, in
2024 we became Title Sponsor of the
MotoGP Italian Grand Prix at Mugello.

After 2024, we are now entering a new
year that is particularly significant for

us because we will celebrate 50 years of
presence in the world of motorsport. Half
a century of passion and innovation: two
elements that have always set Brembo
apart and that will continue to guide us
in the future, towards the new challenges
and new goals that await us.

The Executive Chairman
Matteo Tiraboschi
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VISION AND MISSION

Electrification, digitalization,
autonomous driving and
environmental sustainability are
macro-trends that have been at the
centre of the automotive world and
the strategies of the market’s main
players for some years.

Within this scenario, Brembo has
been pursuing its mission of being

a Solution Provider by proactively
rising to the challenges posed by the
ongoing transformation, focusing

on the needs and desires of the new
generations, which will be the users
of tomorrow.

Brembo continues to invest
significantly in innovation, driven

by its vision “Turning Energy into
Inspiration’, which encourages the
Group to extend its sphere of influence
to embrace energy management in its
broader meaning, not only in terms

of components, but also in its role

as authoritative systems provider. In
addition to innovative hydraulic and
mechanical components, innovation
Is also applied to software and
artificial intelligence: this combination
allows to aim at a high added-value
product and service integration in
order to anticipate the new mobility
paradigms.
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DIGITAL

Sensify™ is the tangible outcome
of this vision: the first fluid-free
intelligent braking system that
constantly interacts with the driver
with a view to shaping a world
without accidents. Its launch on
the market, planned for 2026, will
truly revolutionize the automotive
industry.

At the heart of the Group’s strategic
vision there is also an overarching
commitment to sustainability that
has becomes a modus operandi
within Brembo, permeating all
activities, processes and products.
This sustainability driven approach
Is increasingly present also in the
relationship with its People, with its
supply chain and in the local areas in
which the Group operates.

In 2024, the Group continued to
implement strategic projects within
the three Pillars — Digital, Global
and Cool Brand — through dedicated
working groups that leverage a
shared leadership and the cross-
cutting competencies of all parties
involved, engaging all Group Regions
and outlining the growth direction
for the forthcoming future.

The world has entered the era of artificial intelligence applications focusing
on data processing. The ability to analyze and manage data is a crucial
skill for continuing to grow and create innovation. Accordingly, Brembo

has set itself an ambitious goal: becoming a company that, alongside

the production of braking systems, is able to develop and offer all-round
solutions to its customers through the widespread dissemination of a solid
data culture within the Group and an increasingly data-driven approach.

Consistently with this approach, in 2024 Brembo signed a global
agreement with Michelin to combine their intelligent solutions that
leverage algorithms, know-how, and expertise related to brakes and tires.
The continuous exchange of real-time data between Michelin’s connected

GLOBAL

Brembo has long ago embarked upon its decentralization path and

has now become a Group operating in 18 countries worldwide. Within

this context, the Global Pillar aims to balance the Group’s international
footprint, not only from a commercial standpoint, but also in terms of
technology and innovation, by developing and encouraging excellence at
local level for the benefit of a global organization whose mindset is based
on multiculturality, valuing of diversity and with inclusion as a shared value.

The opening of a new production plant in Thailand is a crucial step in the
global expansion strategy of the Group, as it strengthens its position in the

COOL BRAND

Brembo does not set limits on creativity and considers it essential to
continuously engage in strengthening its brand, anchoring it to new trends
that are reconfiguring mobility in line with the values and sensibilities

of the new generations, especially Generation Z. The objective is thus to
identify their passion, needs and tastes, and translate them into a unique
brand experience able to generate tangible solutions.

In this framework, the world of racing, which has always been the Group’s
flagship, plays a particularly important part in Brembo, embodying the

solutions software provides tire grip data to Brembo’s innovative Sensify™
braking system, thus enabling engineers to fine-tune the braking system
with exceptional precision.

Confirming Brembo’s increasingly data-driven focus, in 2024 the Group
launched the brand-new Brembo Coding Hub, alongside the Brembo
Inspiration Lab — which has been honing Brembo’s Data Science and
generative Al expertise since 2021. The Brembo Coding Hub is a software
center designed to strengthen its expertise in this highly important field,
pursuing innovation and allowing increasingly comprehensive integration
of advanced electronic solutions into its braking systems.

motorcycle segment and consolidates Brembo’s role as a solution provider
for customers operating in the country, thus laying the foundations for
further development of its business in the ASEAN region.

As further evidence of Brembo’s commitment to expanding its offerings
for the automotive market, the acquisition of Ohlins, leading manufacturer
of premium suspension technology both on the racetrack and the road,
enhances Brembo’s role as a Solution provider of integrated, intelligent
solutions to its customers, leveraging synergies across key technologies in
the vehicle’s corner.

principles of Cool Pillar in engaging the widest and most diverse audience.
In 2024, Brembo enthusiastically joined the 100th edition of the 24 Hours of
Le Mans as Braking Technology Provider, and became Braking Inspiration
Partner of MotoGP also proudly taking on the role of Title Sponsor of the
Italian Grand Prix at Mugello. Racing will be even more of a protagonist

In 2025: Brembo celebrates 50 years in this world, and for this occasion

it has launched a new Brembo Racing logo to celebrate 5 decades full of
satisfaction and expertise.
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1.1 CORPORATE BODIES

Chairman Emeritus @® Alberto Bombassei Committees

Audit, Risk and Sustainability Committee Elisabetta Magistretti (Chairwoman)
Board of Directors ©® Michela Schizzi
Manuela Soffientini
Executive Chairman Matteo Tiraboschi @
Remuneration and Appointment Committee  Giancarlo Dallera (Chairman)
Chief Executive Officer Daniele Schillaci ® Elizabeth M. Robinson
Manuela Soffientini

Directors Cristina Bombassei ©®
Giancarlo Dallera @ Supervisory Committee Giovanni Canavotto (Chairman) (2
Elisabetta Magistretti @ Elisabetta Magistretti
Umberto Nicodano @ Matteo Tradii (®

Elizabeth M. Robinson ®
Gianfelice Rocca @
Michela Schizzi @ ®)
Manuela Soffientini 4 ©)
Roberto Vavassori ©

Independent Auditors Deloitte Accountants B.V.(9

(1) Upon the entering into effect of the cross-border conversion, Brembo adopted a one-tier board management and control (5) The Director also holds the position of Executive Director in charge of the Internal Control and Risk Management System, as
system pursuant to the Dutch Civil Code that does not provide for a Board of Statutory Auditors or any control body separate well as of Chief Legacy Officer.
from the Board of Directors. Accordingly, the term of Brembo’s Board of Statutory Auditors ended on the effective date of (6) Director elected from a minority list.
the transaction (24 April 2024). The control function will therefore be carried out by the Non-executive Directors, who, in (7) Non-executive Director.
compliance with the Dutch Corporate Governance Code, make up the majority of the members of the Board of Directors. (8) Executive Director.
The Dutch law does not provide for the position of the Manager in Charge of the Company’s Financial Reports. Therefore, (9) This Director also holds the position of Lead Independent Director.
on that same date, Brembo’s Manager in Charge of the Company’s Financial Reports ceased his position, without prejudice (10) As of the Transaction Effective Date the Cross-Border Conversion (24 April, 2024), the statutory audit of the accounts has
to the Company’s capability to ensure an adequate internal control and risk management system, suitable administrative been carried out by the auditing firm belonging to the Deloitte network based in Amsterdam (i.e., Deloitte Accountants B.V.),
and accounting procedures for preparing the Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements and any other financial since in accordance with Dutch law, the statutory audit of the accounts of the Company must be carried out by an auditing
disclosure. firm based in the Netherlands.

(2) Appointed for an indefinite period. (11) This Committee also acts as the Related Party Transactions Committee.

(3) In office until the Annual General Meeting called to approve the Financial Statements for the year ending 31 December 2025. (12) Independent Expert.

(4) Non-executive and Independent Directors. (13) Chief Internal Audit Officer.
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1.2 KEY FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS GROSS OPERATING INCOME ROI
WITH CUSTOMERS (euro million)

(euro million)

o]ale)

PEOPLE AT END OF YEAR
(percentage) (number, including agency workers)

3,629.0 >'549-2 3,840.6 665.8 g1

625.2 14066 15653 15461
2777.6 502.7 12,629 13,597
2,208.6 388.7 155 160,
12.9
| | 9.6 ‘ | | | ‘

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
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on

@

NET RESULT TURNOVER PER EMPLOYEE NET INVESTED CAPITAL NET FINANCIAL DEBT
(euro million) (euro thousand) (euro million) (euro million)

305.0
292.8 ,80.1 281.9 2,737.5

262.6 267.7 2 472.8 2206 502.0
227.2 2231.3 454.8
2155 200.1 1,891.5 3847 4118
’ 360.4
136.5 | | | |

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
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Economic results Employees and investments
(euro thousand) 31.12.2020 31.12.2021 31.12.2022 31.12.2023 31.12.2024 % 2024/2023 (euro thousand) 31.12.2020 31.12.2021 31.12.2022 31.12.2023 31.12.2024 % 2024/2023
Revenue from contracts with customers 2,208,639 2,777,556 3,629,011 3,849,202 3,840,643 -0.2% Employees at end of period (No.) 11,039 12,225 12,956 13,654 14,348 5,1%
Gross operating income 388,685 502,696 625,204 665,778 661,056 -0.7% Turnover per employee 200,1 227,2 280, 2819 267,7 -5,0%
% of revenue from contracts with customers 17.6% 18.1% 17.2% 17.3% 17.2% Net investments 150,189 210,006 282,135 412,159 408,242 -1,0%
Net operating income 181,135 287,981 382,844 414,072 393,333 -5.0% Increases in leased assets 37,626 26,407 37,465 20,731 89,306 330,8%
% of revenue from contracts with customers 8.2% 10.4% 10.5% 10.8% 10.2%
Result before taxes 156,044 286,791 382,234 392,000 365,891 -6.7%
% of revenue from contracts with customers 7.1% 10.3% 10.5% 10.2% 9.5%
Net result for the period 136,533 215,537 292,833 305,039 262,603 -13.9% Main ratios
% of revenue from contracts with customers 6.2% 7.8% 8.1% 7.9% 6.8%
31.12.2020 31.12.2021 31.12.2022 31.12.2023 31.12.2024
Net operating income/Revenue from contracts
with customers 8.2% 10.4% 10.5% 10.8% 10.2%
Result before taxes/Revenue from contracts
Financial results with customers 7.1% 10.3% 10.5% 10.2% 9.5%
Net investments(*)/Revenue from contracts
(euro thousand) 31.12.2020  31.12.2021  31.12.2022  31.12.2023  31.12.2024 % 2024/2023 with customers 6.8% 7.6% 7.8% 10.7% 10.6%
Net invested capital 1,891,493 2,231,294 2,472,841 2,590,611 2,737,526 5.7% Net financial debt/Equity 26.0% 22.9% 25.8% 21.7% 15.5%
Equity 1,481,041 1,796,120 1,947,013 2,099,419 2,329,817 11.0% Adjusted net interest expense */Revenue
_ _ from contracts with customers 0.8% 0.3% 0.4% 0.5% 0.7%
Net financial debt 384,677 411,837 502,044 454,768 360,353 -20.8%
Adjusted net interest expense “/Net operating income 9.4% 3.4% 3.4% 4.9% 6.6%
ROI 9.6% 12.9% 15.5% 16.0% 14.4%
ROE 9.3% 12.0% 15.1% 14.6% 11.4%
Notes:

ROI: Net operating income (rolling 12 months)/Net invested capital.
ROE: Net income (loss) before minority interests (rolling 12 months) (net of Result from discontinued operations)/Equity.
(*) Net investments in property, plant, equipment and intangible assets, calculated as the sum total of increases (net of decreases) of property, plant and

equipment and intangible assets.

(**) This item does not include exchange gains and losses.
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2.1 SIGNIFICANT EVENTS DURING THE YEAR

With regard to the Company’s cross-border conversion

effective 24 April 2024:

- on 12 January 2024, the Company proceeded with
the Share Capital Decrease, from €34,727,914.00 to
€3,339,222.50, instrumental to the Transaction, without
cancellation of shares and without any reimbursement
of capital to shareholders, through recognition to the
Company’s equity of a reserve of an equal amount.
Therefore, this decrease had no impact on Brembo
Shareholders’ capital and administrative rights;
the notarial deed of conversion, also amending the
Articles of Association drafted pursuant to Dutch law,
was executed on 25 January 2024, with effectiveness
deferred to the day following the date of the
Shareholders’ Meeting of Brembo held on 23 April 2024
that approved, inter alia, the Company’s Financial
Statements for the year ended 31 December 2023;
the payment of the liquidation value to those who had
validly exercised the withdrawal right was effected on
31 January 2024. The Company thus acquired 4,387,303
unopted shares, equal to €57,456,120.09. Accordingly, as
at the date of the approval of this Report, the Company
holds 15,051,860 ordinary own shares;
on 24 April 2024, the transfer of the Company’s registered
office to Amsterdam (The Netherlands), with the ensuing
conversion into a naamloze vennootschap (N.V.), under the
laws of the Netherlands, became effective. On the same
date, the Company also established a secondary office,
with permanent representation and fiscal residence, in
Italy pursuant to Article 2508 of the Italian Civil Code, and
requested the related registration with the Companies’
Register of Bergamo. Brembo shares continue to be listed
on Euronext Milan, organized and managed by Borsa
Italiana S.p.A., under the new ISIN code: NLOO15001KT6
as from 24 April 2024. A mechanism is also envisaged
to allot Special Voting Shares to Brembo’s shareholders.
For information on this mechanism, reference should

be made to the Company’s website (www.brembo.com,
section “Investors”, “For Shareholders”, “Registered Office
Relocation”).

In March, Brembo won the ‘Brakes/Brake Pads’ category in
Auto Motor und Sport’s BEST CARS 2024 awards, with 72.7%
of the votes submitted. This marks the 11" win in 13 years
for Brembo in this category, reinforcing its reputation as a
leading automotive and motorcycle brake brand.

The extensive survey, conducted by one of Europe’s largest
consumer motoring titles, further cements Brembo’s
reputation as the most recognized, best-loved automotive
and motorcycle brake brand.

In 2023 alone, Brembo topped seven ‘Best Brand’ polls by
Motor Presse Stuttgart. The brand’s iconic red calipers,
introduced in the 1990s, have contributed to its distinct
identity and widespread recognition.

Such extensive awards success makes Brembo even more
committed to staying ahead of the competition. Backed by
more than 40 years of brake testing and development in the
world’s most demanding motorsports, the company continues
to pioneer improvements in driving experience, safety and
green credentials that will respond to the needs of drivers, car
manufacturers and racing teams well into the future.

The General Shareholders’ Meeting of the Parent Brembo
S.p.A. held on 23 April 2024 approved the Financial
Statements for the financial year ended 31 December
2023, allocating net income for the year amounting to
€139,265,254.39 as follows:
to the Shareholders, a gross ordinary dividend of €0.30
per ordinary share outstanding, excluding own shares;
the remaining amount carried forward.

In May, Brembo was awarded with the 2024 Red Dot
Award for its GP4-MotoGP in the Best of the Best.
As one of the most important and prestigious design

competitions, the Red Dot Award selects and celebrates
the best creations that combine innovation with
outstanding aesthetics. Winning this award further
underlines the distinctive design of Brembo’s solutions
and confirms the company’s unwavering commitment to
bringing innovation to the mobility of tomorrow and the
unparalleled capacity to combine design and performance
up to top motorsport championships. Designed and
developed to equip the ultimate generation of powerful
road bikes, the GP4-MotoGP is a brake caliper born from
the racetrack for the road and perfectly suits the needs
of today’s motorcycles and the most demanding track
enthusiasts. The caliper is capable of taking performance
and sportiness on the road to an unprecedented level.

On 10 July 2024, Brembo acquired a stake in Spoke Safety,

a U.S. startup specializing in the development of digital
communication technologies between vehicles and the
road ecosystem. The company was founded in Denver,
Colorado, in 2020 and its solutions are based on Vehicle
to-Everything (V2X) technology, a communication system
that connects vehicles in real-time with other vehicles,

road users including cyclists, and smart city infrastructures
such as traffic lights, with the goal of improving the driving
experience and promoting greater road safety. Spoke Safety
joins the portfolio of Brembo Ventures, the Company’s
venture capital unit that invests globally in top technological
startups to support Brembo’s innovation and accelerate the
development of new maobility solutions for tomorrow.

On 2 October 2024, Brembo N.V. (the “Selling Shareholder”)
sold its entire stake of ordinary shares of Pirelli & C.

S.p.A. (“Pirelli” or the “Company”) through an accelerated
bookbuilding offering (the “Placement”). The Selling
Shareholder placed 55,800,000 Pirelli ordinary shares to
institutional investors, equal to approximately 5.58% of
the Company’s issued share capital, at a price of €5.07 per

share. The gross proceeds of the Placement amounted
to approximately € 282.9 million. The settlement of the
Placement took place on 4 October 2024.

On 11 October 2024 Brembo signed an agreement with
Tenneco, a portfolio company of funds managed by affiliates
of Apollo Global Management Inc., for the acquisition of

a 100% stake in Ohlins Racing, the leading manufacturer

of premium, high-performance suspension technology

for motorcycles and cars in the Original Equipment,
Motorsport, and Aftermarket segments. The enterprise

value is $405 million on a cash free/debt free basis, subject to
customary price adjustment mechanisms. The acquisition is
subject to customary regulatory approvals and is expected to
close in early 2025.

On 10 December 2024, Brembo and Michelin signed a global
agreement to combine their expertise in braking systems and
tire technology. This collaboration aims to enhance vehicle
performance by leveraging real-time data exchange between
Michelin’s tire software and Brembo’s SENSIFY® braking
system. Initial tests have shown promising results, including
a reduction in braking distances of up to four meters,
regardless of tire wear or road conditions. This innovation is
designed to benefit car manufacturers and consumers alike
by improving safety and driving comfort.

The partnership highlights Brembo’s strengths in braking
systems and artificial intelligence, and Michelin’s leadership
In tire modeling and algorithm development. The
continuous exchange of data allows for precise adjustments
to the braking system, resulting in quicker response

times, minimal traction loss, improved lateral stability,

and no wheel locking. These advancements contribute to

a smoother and safer driving experience, setting a new
benchmark for braking systems in modern vehicles.
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2.2 RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

BRAKE DISCS FOR CARS AND COMMERCIAL
VEHICLES

In the area of brake discs for cars and commercial
vehicles, Brembo’s strategic priority for 2024 was the
development of technical solutions to meet the criteria
of the new Euro 7 regulation, which for the first time has
set standards for emissions of particulate matters from
braking systems, with specific limits for different vehicle
cateqgories effective as of 2026.

Brembo is developing solutions for reducing particulate
emissions from brakes. In 2020, it launched its Greentive®
disc, with an innovative coating that reduces wear and tear
and particulate emissions. Subsequently, the Company

has forged ahead with research on new materials and
technologies linked to the brake disc production process.

In parallel, it has also continued the concurrent
development of brake pads — an activity essential to
create an ideal combination with the brake disc able
to ensure low emissions without compromising on
performance.

Application developments with the major European
market players are underway, and will continue in 2025 as
well, with a view to applying these new solutions, which
are meeting with interest also among other customers.

As regards discs for heavy commercial vehicles — a
segment which is of particular interest to Brembo —,
series production was launched in 2024 at some major
European clients to produce new solutions aimed at
improving disc performance and reducing their weight.
In this regard, worth of mention was the significant
recognition of the excellent performance of the new discs
by a major European client.

MOTORBIKE

The motorbike areas, which will be further developed in
the next years, focus on the implementation of traditional
products, the development of new mechatronic systems
and the production of braking systems that will enable
Brembo to enter new market segments dedicated to
sustainable mobility.

The goal set with regard to traditional products is to
improve the range, both for BREMBO and BYBRE-branded
solutions. For the former, the aim is to increasingly

focus on top-level performance using new technological
solutions, including those applied to racing, while also
working on sporty and elegant design and on an ever-
increasing range of customized products. The new off-road
braking system and the new radial brake master cylinder
currently under development are the latest components
developed for the new Distincta® axial brake master
cylinder and T-drive floating disc presented at EICMA
2024. New products are also being developed to enrich
the BYBRE-branded range for the Indian and Chinese
markets, focusing on reliability and robustness without
ever compromising on performance.

The development of mechatronic products is clearly the
most important field of innovation. Brembo is already
testing some solutions equipped with mechatronic
systems to verify their effectiveness and potential. The
aim is to identify the best product configuration and then
move on to the next development phase.

The search for new markets in the two-wheel field

Is focusing on sustainable mobility. A collaboration
agreement was signed with a first customer for the
development of several high-performance braking systems
to be used on high-performance vehicles. Brembo will

debut on this segment by the end of 2025 and a second
braking system that will introduce new production
materials and technologies is already under development.

As regards methodology, a first digital project is underway:
it aims at a 25% reduction in the design times of the main
motorbike products by automating some design phases.
This methodology will be extended to all main motorbike
products — from calipers, to discs, master cylinders and
complete braking systems — within the next two years.

RACING

2024 saw the introduction for on-track use of a new carbon
material called HULK (Happy Until Last Kilometres),

which ensures significant improvements compared to

its Formula 1 predecessor. This material was also used

by Max Verstappen, among other drivers, in his bid for a
fourth world title, and represents the starting point for
2026, when new Formula 1 regulations will be introduced.

The main changes will include the wider use of carbon
materials characterized by very low wear and tear, and
therefore by reduced particulate emissions. Getting

ready for 2026 will require significant developments as
regulations will be reset and braking systems will be
completely revolutionized. It is important to point out
that in 2026 Formula 1 cars will be allowed to mount an
iInnovative brake caliper with 3 fixing systems and 4 pads,
according to a Brembo patent already applied in the last 2
years to high performance vehicles also used on the track.

The development of carbon-ceramic material continued
throughout the year in the automotive sector and, first
and foremost, in the motorbike sector, with the on-track
approval of a new material that will also be used on road

vehicles. This Division draws particular attention to the
continuous improvement of knowledge of vehicle and
motorbike dynamics.

Several examples in the past showed how it had been
possible to manufacture products by immediately focusing
on the impact they would have on vehicle dynamics.

Two recent examples involved Formula E and LMH cars in
2023: it was the case of Brembo’s brake-by-wire systems,
which, in coordination with the vehicle’s control unit,
manage the brakes on the car axle, using electric motors
for regenerative braking. Developed by the Performance
Division, the brake-by-wire systems include an electronic
control unit with a control software developed by Brembo,
a hydraulic actuator driven by an electric motor, a safety
device that connects the braking system directly to the
driver, and a series of sensors required to set control
strategies and monitor their functionality over time.

Brembo is the sole supplier of this component for the
third-generation Formula E single-seaters and for a top
team competing in the WEC.

A better understanding of vehicle dynamics and the
development of expertise in controlled electronic systems
are Brembo’s goals for the new generation of products
under development, namely smart systems and products
with built-in control unit features that will be introduced
starting with the new F1 championship in 2026 and, after
2027, in MotoGP and other sports applications.

These products will be developed taking into account

the simulation methodologies already mastered, such as
CFD calculation and mechanical and thermal calculations
of the complete braking system, as well as the product
validation methodologies that have been evolving in
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recent years. More and more importance will be attached
to the value of the data collected directly from Brembo's
test benches and from the cars that fit its brakes.

The analysis of data to understand physical phenomena
will be integrated for statistical purposes with new
analyses that will also use Al, with the aim of improving
the final product. New competencies, virtual and smart
sensing, machine learning, and the strong scientific
contribution by Milan Polytechnic and other research
centres will form the basis for further developments over
the next five years.

FRICTION

In the field of friction materials, R&D is undergoing a
transformative shift driven by the increasing use of Al.
Artificial intelligence enables to more efficiently analyse
large amounts of data, identify hidden patterns, and more
accurately predict outcomes. This reduces development
time and costs, while simultaneously improving product
quality.

Brembo is working to exploit the potential of GEN Al

to generate new formulations that meet customers’
increasingly stringent performance requirements

for brake pad friction materials. This will lead to a
significant reduction in time-to-market, offering Brembo
a considerable competitive advantage in developing more
suitable materials.

The knowledge gained about the characteristics of friction
materials allows Brembo to map tribological properties
and apply these competencies to more complex systems
such as the Electric Parking Brake and Sensify®. In

addition, the expertise acquired in the passenger car sector
can be extended to light and heavy commercial vehicles.

Synergy with the other Global Business Units is constantly
aimed at studying emissions, in line with Euro 7 standards,
and their quality. Research also focuses on discovering

and using new eco-friendly raw materials and processes to
ensure a reduced environmental impact.

The enhancement of BRGP (JV between Brembo and Gold
Phoenix) in the R&D field represents a fundamental step
In our innovation strategy. This project aims to develop
new solutions that keep Brembo at the forefront of its
industry. BRGP not only improves Brembo’s production
capabilities, but also allows it to explore new market
opportunities and respond more quickly and effectively to
its customers’ needs.

CAR AND COMMERCIAL VEHICLE SYSTEMS

The Group’s three guiding principles — low emissions,
high performance and best driving experience — are
also pursued when developing products in the Car and
Commercial Vehicle Systems area.

Brembo continues to improve products and processes
by focusing on reducing mass, optimising performance,
enhancing style and using sustainable materials.

The low-emission range aims to reduce fuel consumption
and emissions through lightweight and efficient braking
systems, while also ensuring compliance with new
regulations such as Euro 7.

Brembo uses virtualization and Al techniques to increase

its simulation capacity so as to improve the efficiency and
comfort of the entire braking system. An example of this is
the new driving simulator, which, using vehicle dynamics
models shared by customers, becomes an integral part of
development.

Sensify™ Brembo’s pioneering braking system, perfectly
embodies these priorities. This ecosystem combines
artificial intelligence, software and sensors to manage the
braking of each wheel independently.

In keeping with Brembo's strategic priorities, the
development and launch phases of Sensify™ are fully
underway for both the Group’s Passenger Car clients and

new players that have entered the electric vehicles market.

The product is currently being extended to the Light
Commercial Vehicle segment thanks to an EU-financed
project.

INNOVATION

Brembo’s R&D department is experiencing a phase of
great innovation and expansion following its globalization
activities. Thanks to an ever-increasing synergy between
the advanced technology centres in China and the United
States and the HQ in Stezzano, Brembao’s innovation

can leverage on world-top innovation ecosystems and
relations. Over the past year, this has also been made
possible by the opening of the Coding Hub in California,
which enables the development of software, data science,
and Al projects, allowing Brembo to develop new solutions
that meet current market demands. This new facility
complements the Brembo Inspiration Lab in Sunnyvale,
California, and propels Brembo further into its vision:
Turning Energy into Inspiration.

At the Advanced Technology Center in Sunnyvale, the
possibility of collaborating with Spoke Safety has emerged,
enhancing skills and V2V/V2X solutions developments.

In China, there are increasing collaborations with
universities, public research centres and data centres
regarding the future of electric and automated vehicles for
new mobility solutions.

Testing activities are also evolving with the use of
advanced simulations for validation and simulators

that can speed up the validation process by simulating
conditions that would be difficult to reproduce in reality
without significant efforts and time-consuming processes.
This approach not only improves the quality of the final
products, but also increases the efficiency of development
Processes.
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2.3 INVESTOR INFORMATION

2.3.1 PLANS FOR THE BUY-BACK OF OWN
SHARES

The General Shareholders’ Meeting held on 23 April 2024
passed a new plan for the buy-back of own shares with the
following objectives:
undertaking any investments, directly or through
intermediaries, including aimed at containing abnormal
movements in stock prices, stabilising stock trading
and prices, supporting the liquidity of the Company’s
stock on the market, so as to foster the regular conduct
of trading beyond normal fluctuations related to
market performance, without prejudice in any case to
compliance with applicable statutory provisions;
carrying out, in accordance with the Company’s
strategic guidelines, share capital transactions or other
transactions which make it necessary or appropriate
to swap or transfer share packages through exchange,
contribution, or any other methods;
buying back own shares as a medium-/long-term
investment.

The plan envisages that the Board of Directors may
purchase, in one or more tranches, up to a maximum of
8,000,000 ordinary shares, for a minimum price not lower
than the closing price of the shares during the trading
session on the day before each transaction is undertaken,
reduced by 10%, and for a maximum price not higher
than the closing price of the shares during the trading
session on the day before each transaction is undertaken,
increased by 10%.

The authorization is requested for a period of 18

months from the date of the resolution by the General
Shareholders’ Meeting and for a maximum purchasing
amount of €144,000,000, which is adequately covered by
the available net reserves recognized in the balance sheet.

In the year, Brembo bought back 4,387,303 ordinary own
shares (€57,456 thousand), which, together with the
10,664,557 ordinary own shares already held, bring total
ordinary own shares at 15,0517,860.

2.3.2 INFORMATION ABOUT THE
BREMBO N.V. DIVIDEND PROPOSAL

To conclude the description of the performance of the
Brembo Group for the year ended 31 December 2024,
based also on the examination of our Report concerning
the Consolidated Financial Statements of the Brembo
Group and the separate Financial Statements of Brembo
N.V., in which we outlined the guidelines and operations,
we submit for the Shareholders’ approval our proposal
for distributing Brembo N.V.s net income amounting to
€163,751,872.04, as follows:

- to the Shareholders, a gross ordinary dividend of €0.30
per ordinary share outstanding, excluding own shares
(payment as of 21 May 2025, ex-coupon date 19 May
2025, and record date 20 may 2025);
the remaining amount carried forward.

2.3.3 BREMBO N.V. STOCK PERFORMANCE

Brembo’s stock closed 2024 at €9.09, down 18.1%
compared to year-start, reaching its high for the period

on 24 April (€12.37) and its low on 20 November (€8.59).
The European Automotive Components Index (BBG EMEA
Automobiles Parts) closed the year with a decline of 20.7%,
while the FTSE MIB index rose by 12.64%.

An overview of stock performance of Brembo N.V. is given

below, compared with that of the previous year:
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(euro thousand) 31.12.2024 31.12.2023
Issued share capital (euro) 7,007,202 34,727,914
No. of ordinary shares 333,922,250 333,922,250
Equity (excluding net income

for the period) (euro) 806,820,586 746,818,305
Net income for the period (euro) 163,751,872 139,265,254
Trading price (euro)

Low 8.59 10.02
High 12.37 14.92
Period-end 9.09 11.10
Market capitalization (euro million)

Low 2,868 3,346
High 4,131 4,982
Period-end 3,035 3,707
Gross dividend per share 0.30 (*) 0.30

(*) To be approved by the Shareholders’ Meeting convened on 29 April 2025.

Further information and updates regarding stock
performance and recent corporate information are
provided on Brembo’s website: Investors | Brembo -
Official Website.
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2.4 GROUP FINANCIAL REVIEW

2.41 MACROECONOMIC SCENARIO

According to the most recent estimates from S&P Global
Market Intelligence (January 2025), global GDP growth has
been predicted to reach 2.7% in 2024, slightly down from
2.9% in 2023.

The global economy remains resilient, as inflation
continues to ease, falling from 5.7% in 2023 to 4.5%

in 2024, and prompting a gradual shift toward looser
monetary policies. Lower inflation is boosting real
household income growth and spending, although
consumer confidence in many countries has yet to recover
to pre-pandemic levels. Despite the significant decline in
headline inflation, service price inflation remains elevated.
Meanwhile, the labor market pressures continue to ease,
though unemployment generally remains at or near
historical lows.

Low inflation, steady employment growth and less
restrictive monetary policy will help to support demand,
despite mild headwinds from necessary fiscal tightening in
several countries.

Substantial uncertainty remains due to geopolitical
matters. An escalation of conflicts in the Middle East could
disrupt oil supplies from the region adding more pressure
already heightened by the ongoing Ukraine-Russia
conflict. Furthermore, trade policy uncertainty has surged,
driven by the proliferation of import-restrictive measures
across major economies and the potential for new tariffs,
particularly in the United States from the new Republican
administration.

Considering the current state of the global economy and
the related uncertainties, S&P expects GPD growth to
decline to 2.5% in 2025.

At the regional level, the Eurozone closed 2024 with
0.7% GDP growth, up from 0.5% in 2023, and is forecast
to steadily grow to 0.9% in 2025, driven by recovering
domestic demand.

The improvement will be underpinned by easing
financial conditions and favorable energy and
commodity prices. The labour market remains tight,
with persistent labour shortages in several sectors and
historically low unemployment levels, which are slowing
the normalization of wage growth. Furthermore, real
disposable incomes are expected to support consumption
as inflation moderates with S&P forecasting inflation will
decline to 2.1% by 2025. Private investment will benefit
from more accommodative financing conditions and
public spending under the NGEU program. However,
significant risks remain. An escalation of Middle Eastern
conflicts could dampen external demand and reignite
inflationary pressures. On the upside, a stronger use of
accumulated household savings could strengthen private
consumption. For what concern fiscal policy, key EU
countries are making strides in reducing fiscal deficits,
although more work remains to be done.

In the United States, GDP growth has been projected to be
robust at 2.8% in 2024, down slightly from 2.9% in 2023,
before slowing to 2.0% in 2025.

As immigration is expected to decline from recent peaks,
labour demand cools, and households exhaust pandemic-
era savings, consumption growth is likely to soften,
though it will remain solid. Risks to growth are tilted to
the downside, including stickier-than-expected services
inflation that could delay monetary easing, surging oil
prices linked to geopolitical tensions, heightened trade
conflicts, or slower labor force growth. On the upside,
productivity growth, potentially fueled by new advances

in artificial intelligence, may continue to come in stronger
than expected. Deregulation in key sectors of the economy
could also provide a boost to growth.

In conclusion, economic growth in China reached the
5.0% target in 2024, down from 5.2% in 2023, with further
gradual weakening expected in 2025.

The slowdown reflects structural challenges, including
unfavorable demographics and lagging productivity
growth. The real estate market is still one of the most
affected, with property investment still declining weighing
on growth, but at a slower pace. Industrial production

has been robust, driven by high-tech industries as well

as manufacturing investment supported by robust

export demand. However, consumption growth remains
subdued due to elevated precautionary savings. Differently
from many other regions, inflation will remain very low.
Monetary policy has become significantly supportive,

with a series of rate cuts to support recovery and ensure
adequate liquidity. Moreover, fiscal policy has also turned
more expansionary in 2024 to finance priority projects.

A tightening of global trade restrictions could curb Chinese
industrial activity, but recent policy measures could boost
confidence and consumption by more than expected.

2.4.2 GROUP ACTIVITIES AND REFERENCE
MARKET

Brembo is the world leader and acknowledged innovator
in the development of braking solutions for automotive
vehicles. It currently operates in 18 countries on

4 continents, through its production and business sites,
and employs over 15,000 people worldwide. Manufacturing
plants are located in Italy, Poland (Czestochowa, Dabrowa
Gornicza, Niepotomice), the United Kingdom (Coventry),

the Czech Republic (Ostrava-Hrabova), Germany
(Meitingen), Denmark (Svendborg), Spain (Barcelona),
Mexico (Apodaca, Escobedo), Brazil (Betim), China
(Nanjing, Langfang, Jiaxing, Jinan), India (Pune, Chennai),
the USA (Homer) and Thailand (Rayong). Other companies
located in Spain (Zaragoza), Sweden (Goteborg), Germany
(Leinfelden-Echterdingen), China (Qingdao), Japan (Tokyo),
the USA (Huntersville), Russia (Moscow), France (Paris)
and Australia (Melbourne) carry out distribution and sales
activities, whereas the Group’s reinsurance company is
based in Switzerland (Zurich). Brembao's reference market
Is represented by the most important manufacturers of
cars, motorbikes, commercial vehicles and racing cars

and motorbikes. Constant focus on innovation, as well as
technological and process development — factors that
have always been fundamental to Brembo’s philosophy —
have earned the Group a strong international leadership
position in the research, design and production of high
performance braking systems for a wide range of road
and racing vehicles. Brembo operates in both the original
equipment market and the aftermarket. Brembo’s range
of products for car and commercial vehicle applications
Includes brake discs, brake calipers, the side-wheel

module and, increasingly often, the complete braking
system, including integrated engineering services. All of
these back the development of new models produced

by vehicle manufacturers. In addition to brake discs and
brake calipers, motorbike manufacturers are also offered
brake master cylinders, light-alloy wheels, brake hoses and
complete braking systems. In the car aftermarket, Brembo
offers in particular brake discs, in addition to pads, drums,
brake shoes, drum-brake kits and hydraulic components: a
vast and reliable range of products allows the Company to
meet the needs of nearly all European vehicles.

After several years of consistent recovery following the
pandemic, global production of passenger cars and light
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commercial vehicles up to 6 tonnes slightly declined

In 2024, contracting by 1% to 89.4 million units. This
reduction reflects the complex dynamics currently shaping
the automotive industry, where manufacturers are
focusing on managing production and inventories amid
volatile launch schedules and regional demand changes,
including slowing growth in some areas and uncertainty
around BEV (Battery Electric Vehicles) adoption. The
momentum of the BEV market remains a concern,
especially with the removal of EV subsidies (e.g., Germany)
and the introduction of trade tariffs. Regional disparities
In EV adoption persist, with some markets experiencing
slower progress, and others pushing for faster transitions.
Additionally, elevated vehicle prices and persistently high
Interest rates continue to exert pressure on near-term
demand. Projections indicate that global production
output will remain flat in 2025.

Regionally, the European automotive market faced
significant challenges in 2024, recording a decline of

5%. Consumer confidence was shaken by ongoing

global uncertainties and a lack of clarity surrounding

the transition to electrification. This downturn reflects a
realignment of supply and demand following a period

of recovery fuelled by the sales backlog and inventory
replenishment. 2025 will be a key year in the race to
electrification due to the CO, targets introduced by

the European Union. LV production is forecasted to
underperform in 2025 compared to 2024.

In North America as well, the market closed 2024 with a
negative sign, -1%. This adjustment was necessary to align
supply with a steadily slowing demand, while addressing
elevated inventory levels. The downward trend is expected
to continue throughout 2025. Similarly, vehicle affordability
Issues remain prevalent, with persistently high interest
rates, prevailing tight credit conditions and vehicle prices
not declining quickly enough to provide much relief to
consumers intending to buy a new car.

In China, LV production grew by 4% in 2024. The central
government’s economic stimulus plan, launched in
September, played a key role in supporting growth,
showing a robust response to current pressures. Passenger
vehicle sales and production increased, driven largely by
strong demand for new energy vehicle (NEV), particularly
plug-in hybrid electric vehicles (PHEVs). However, export
growth slowed, hindered by trade barriers. Looking ahead,
the light vehicle industrial output in China should remain
stable in 2025.

Moving to Medium and Heavy commercial vehicles
(trucks and buses over 6 tons), after the 2023 recovery,
worldwide production decreased by 6% in 2024. Brembo’s
core market, Europe, saw an even steeper contraction of
22%. This decline was attributable to the region’s weak
economic growth, particularly in Central and Western
Europe, which dampened demand for heavy trucks in the
second half of 2024.

From a registration perspective, global passenger car sales
increased by 3% in 2024 compared to 2023. At regional
level, Europe recorded a +1% growth, North America
declined slightly by 1% and China grew by 7%.

In the commercial vehicle segment, worldwide
registrations grew by 2% in 2024. Europe showed a similar
increase of 3%, North America achieved a stronger growth
of 5%, whereas China declined by 3%.

As regards the motorbike industry (two/three wheelers
above 50cc), European registrations ended 2024 with a
11% increase. Considering the engine size, motorbikes
above 500cc performed positively with a 11% increase in
2024. In the United States, overall registrations, including
also ATVs (All Terrain Vehicles), decreased by 4% in 2024;
motorbikes alone also performed negatively by 4%. In
2024, the Indian market increased by 15% whereas the
Japanese market declined by 26%.

Regarding the aftermarket, the global UIO (units in
operation) are forecast to reach 1.6 billion in 2024,

representing a 2% increase compared to 2023. All regions
are expected to show positive UIO growth compared to
2023: Europe (+1%), China (+4%), North America (+1%),
South America (+1%), South Asia (+4%), and Japan/Korea
(+1%).

In the racing sector, where Brembo has maintained
undisputed supremacy for years, the Group operates
through three leading brands: Brembo Racing, braking
systems for race cars and motorbikes; AP Racing,

braking systems and clutches for race cars; Marchesini,
magnesium and aluminium wheels for racing motorbikes.

In 2024, Brembo’s consolidated net sales amounted to
€3,840,643 thousand, stable compared to €3,849,202
thousand in 2023.

Note Sources of LV and M&H production and sales data: the third-party
S&P Global Mobility (January 2025) and Brembo in-house marketing
analyses. Sources of motorbike data: third-party entities and Brembo in-
house marketing analyses.
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The following tables show net sales at 31 December 2024, NET SALES BREAKDOWN BY GEOGRAPHICAL AREA
broken down by geographical area and application. @ (%)
8.8%
0.9% . Italy 20.0%
Geographical area Other Countries Germany
26.6% C%
(euro thousand) 31.12.2024 % 31.12.2023 % Change % North America © < e
- ° %
Italy 336,268 8.8% 359,463 9.3% (23,195) -6.5% France
Germany 768,385 20.0% 769,764 20.0% (1,379) -0.2% 21
A%
France 101,003 2.6% 103,104 2.7% (2,101) -2.0% ; 5.4%
. . South America United Kingdom
United Kingdom 207,021 5.4% 182,733 4.7% 24,288 13.3% A
Other European countries 459,163 12.0% 498,418 12.9% (39,255) -/7.9% 0.9 N
9%
India 155,032 4.0% 139,835 3.6% 15,197 10.9% 5_,—5
Japan 12.0%

China 585,421 15.2% 543,733 14.7% 41 ,688 7.7% C> Other European

) Countries
Japan 35,688 0.9% 25,884 0.7% 9,804 37.9% 1.5% . '

Other Asian
Other Asian Countries 58,208 1.5% 49,174 1.3% 9,034 18.4% Countries
South America (Argentina and Brazil) 79,573 2.1% 80,954 2.1% (1,381) -1.7% 15.2% 4.09%
North America (USA, Mexico & Canada) 1,021,208 26.6% 1,062,663 27.7% (41,455) -3.9% China India
Other Countries 33,673 0.9% 33,477 0.9% 196 0.6%
Total 3,840,643 100.0% 3,849,202 100.0% (8,559) -0.2%
Following an in-depht analysis, data at 31 December 2023 have been restated. NET SALES BREAKDOWN BY APPLICATION
(%)
== 0o=
- - .
Application (= 4.7%
8.6% Racing
(euro thousand) 31.12.2024 % 31.12.2023 % Change % Commercial
Passenger car 2,869,675 74.7% 2,829,736 73.5% 39,939 1.4% Veh'c'f/
Motorbike 459,015 12.0% 457,353 11.9% 1,662 0.4% s
Commercial Vehicle 331,980 8.6% 377,418 9.8% (45,438) 12.0% 12.0%
_ Motorbike
Racing 179,473 4.7% 183,852 4.8% (4,379) -2.4% G
Miscellaneous 500 0.0% 843 0.0% (343) -40.7% @ 74.7%
Passenger Car

Total 3,840,643 100.0% 3,849,202 100.0% (8,559) -0.2%
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2.4.3 BREMBO’'S CONSOLIDATED RESULT Brembo’s net sales amounted to €3,840,643 thousand in agency workers amounting to 1,113 (1,999 at 31 December
2024, stable compared to €3,849,202 thousand in 2023. 2023).
Consolidated Statement of Income The car applications sector, which accounted for Gross operating income for 2024 was €661,056 thousand
74.7% of the Group’s sales, closed 2024 with a +1.4% compared to €665,778 thousand in the previous year, with
(euro thousand) 31.12.2024 31.12.2023 Change % increase compared to the previous year. Applications a 17.2% ratio to sales (17.3% in 2023).
Revenue from contracts with customers 3,840,643 3,849,202 (8,559) -0.2% for cpmr_neraal vehicles closed at -1 2'0_% and racing .
: : - applications at -2.4%, whereas motorbike applications Net operating income amounted to €393,333 thousand
Cost of sales, operating costs and other net charges/income © (2,466,293) (2,518,848) 52,555 -2.1% increased by 0.4%. (10.2% of sales) compared to €414,072 thousand (10.8%
Income (expense) from non-financial investments 16,253 17,044 (791) -4.6% At geographical level, and with specific reference to of sales) in 2023, after depreciation, amortization and
Personnel expenses (729,547) (681,620) (47,927) 7 0% Europe, Germany reported quite stable results compqred impa?irmen.t losses of property, plant and equipment
- to 2023 (-0.2%). AlImost all the other European countries and intangible assets of €267,723 thousand, compared
GROSS OPERATING INCOME 661,056 665,778 (4,722) -0.7% also reported negative results, with France down by 2.0%, to depreciation, amortization and impairment losses
% of revenue from contracts with customers 17.2% 17.3% Italy by 6.5% whereas the United Kingdom increased by amounting to €251,706 thousand in 2023.
Depreciation, amortization and impairment losses (267,723) (251,706) (16,017) 6.4% 13.3%. deles also deCI'nIEd by 3.9% in North A.merlca and ]
. by 1.7% in South America. In the Far East, China increased Net interest expense amounted to €38,573 thousand
NET OPERATING INCOME 393,333 414,072 (20,739) -5-0% by 7.7% compared to 2023. India and Japan grew by 10.9% (€34,328 thousand in 2023) and consisted of net exchange
% of revenue from contracts with customers 10.2% 10.8% and 37.9%, respectively. losses of €12,508 thousand (net exchange losses of €13,957
Net interest income (expense) and Interest income (expense) thousand in 2023) and other net mter_est expense of
from investments (27,442) (22,072) (5,370) 24.3% In 2024, the cost of sales and other net operating costs €26,065 thousand (€20,377 thousand in 2023).
) o .
RESULT BEFORE TAXES 365,891 392,000 (26,109) 6.7% amounted to €2,466,293 thousand, with a 64.2% ratio . . .
_ to sales, down compared to 65.4% for the previous year. Net interest income from investments amounted to
% of revenue from contracts with customers 9.5% 10.2% Within this item, costs for capitalized internal works €11,131 thousand (€12,256 thousand in 2023) and was
Taxes (99,570) (84,837) (14,733) 17.4% included in intangible assets amounted to €31,497 chiefly attributable to the dividends received by investees
Result from discontinued operations 0 136 (136) 100.0% thousand compared to €28,601 thousand for 2023. not mc_ludgd in the cons_olldatlo_n area gnd the effe_cts
of valuing investments in associates using the equity
NET RESULT FOR THE PERIOD 266,321 307,299 (40,978) -13.3% Income (expense) from non-financial investments method.
% of revenue from contracts with customers 6.9% 8.0% amounted to €16,253 thousand and was mainly
Minority interests (3.718) (2.260) (1.458) 64.5% attributable to the effects of valuing the investment in the Result before taxes was a profit of €365,891 thousand,
BSCCB Group using the equity method (€17,044 thousand down 6.7% compared to €392,000 thousand for the
GROUP NET RESULT 262,603 305,039 (42,436) -13.9% in 2023). previous year. Estimated taxation amounted to €99,570
% of revenue from contracts with customers 6.8% 7.9% thousand, with a tax rate of 27.2% (21.6% in 2023).
BASIC/DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE (euro) 0.82 0.94 Personnel expenses for 2024 amounted to €729,54/

(*) The item is obtained by adding the following items of the Consolidated Statement of Income: “Other revenues and income”, “Costs for capitalized internal
works” “Raw materials, consumables and goods” and “Other operating costs”

thousand, with a 19.0% ratio to sales, increasing compared
to the previous year (17.7%). At 31 December 2024, people
numbered 15,461 (15,653 at 31 December 2023), including

The Group’s net result was €262,603 thousand (6.8% of
sales), down 13.9% compared to €305,039 thousand for the
previous year (7.9% of sales).
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Statement of Financial Position The Group’s Statement of Financial Position reflects thousand, with a €119,181 thousand increase in
reclassifications of consolidated accounting statements, as working capital;
(euro thousand) 31.12.2024 31.12.2023 Change described in the following pages. In detail: net investments totalling €408,242 thousand, of which
Property, plant and equipment 1 774,996 1522879 252117 Financial assets/liabilities | mclu_de the following items: €361,152 thousand in property, plant and equipment
: “Investments” and “Other financial assets”; and €47,090 thousand in intangible assets. The most
Intangible assets 311,425 300,732 10,693 the item “Other receivables and non-current liabilities” significant investments were concentrated in Poland
Financial assets/liabilities 72,908 354,518 (281,610) is made up of the following items: “Receivables and (30.6%0), North America (29.6%) and Italy (21.5%). With
Other receivables and non-current liabilities 150.419 135517 23902 other non-current assets” “Deferred tax assets” and regard to investments in intangible assets, development
_ . : : : “Other non-current liabilities”; costs amounted to €31,465 thousand (7.7% of the
Fixed capital 2,318,748 2,313,646 2,102 “Net financial debt” includes current and non-current Group’s total net investments);
0.2% payables to banks and other financial liabilities Increases in leased assets for €89,306 thousand.
Inventories 638310 621697 16.613 (including lease liabilities), net of cash and cash payment of taxes totalling €127,835 thousand;
. equivalents and current financial assets. the Parent’s payment of the approved dividends in the
Trade receivables 631,395 604,877 26,518 amount of €95 661 thousand:
Other receivables and current assets 137,676 94,539 43,137 Net Invested Capital at 31 December 2024 amounted to dividends received by the associates totalling €15,000
Current liabilities (956,216) (979,374) 23158 €2,737,526 thousand, up by €146,915 thousand compared thousand and by investees not included in the
<o /deferred to €2,590,611 thousand at 31 December 2023. consolidation area amounting to €11,048 thousand.
Provisions/deferred taxes (51,005) (64,774) 13,769 the placement of 55,800,000 Pirelli ordinary shares to
Hedging assets/liabilities 18,618 0 18,618 Net financial debt for 2024 amounted to €360,353 institutional investors amounted to € 282,906 thousand.
Net working capital 418,778 276,965 141,813 thousand compared to €454,768 thousand at 31 December
2023. Net financial debt decreased by €94,415 thousand The Explanatory Notes to the Consolidated Financial
in the year, mainly due to the combined effect of the Statements provide detailed information on the financial
NET INVESTED CAPITAL 2,737,526 2,590,611 146,915 different factors. position and its assets and liabilities items.
5.7% the positive effect of gross operating income of €661,056
Equity 2,329,817 2,099,419 230,398
Employees’ leaving entitlement and other provisions for personnel 47,356 36,445 10,911
Medium/long-term net financial debt 715,274 628,983 86,291
Short-term net financial debt (354,921) (174,215) (180,706)
Net Financial debt 360,353 454,768 (94,415)
(20.8%)
Net financial debt from discontinued operations 0 (21) 21
COVERAGE 2,737,526 2,590,611 146,915

5.7%
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Statement of Cash Flows 2.4.4 DEFINITION OF THE ALTERNATIVE The APMs indicated below have been selected and
PERFORMANCE MEASURES represented in the Directors’ Report on Operations since
(euro thousand) 31.12.2024 31.12.2023 the Group deems that:
NET FINANCIAL POSITION AT BEGINNING OF PERIOD © (454,768) (502,044)  Brembo’s Directors have identified some alternative - Net Financial Debt, combined with other indicators
Net operating income 393,333 414,072 performa nce- measures (”AP.Ms”) N the previous | such as |nve5tme-ntS/R.evenue from. ContraFtS with
Depreciation, amortization and impairment losses 267,723 251,706 paragraphs, in order to provide a better understanding of customers, Net Financial ert/Eqwty, Net interest
. b — 2 o ’056 665'778 the Brembo Group’s operating and financial performance. expense (less exchange gains or losses)/Revenue from
ross operating income _ ' ' These indicators are also tools that help the Directors contracts with customers and Net interest expense (less
Investments in property, plant and equipment (363,964) (369,084) to identify operating trends and take decisions about exchange gains or losses)/Net operating income, allow
Investments in intangible assets (47,090) (43,733) investments, allocation of resources and other operating a better assessment of the overall level of debt, capital
Increases in leased assets (89,306) (20,731) decisions. solidity and debt payment capacity;
Investments in financial assets (4,551) (3,338) Fixed Capital — and thus net investments in property,
Disposal of shareholdings 282,906 0 The following points enable a correct interpretation of the plant, equipment and intangible assets, calculated
Disposal of tangible and intangible assets 2,812 658 above-m.ent_loned APMs: _ as the sum total of mcrgases (net of.decrea_ises) of
Net investments 219,193) (436,228) 1. these indicators are constructed starting from the property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
— , ' ' Group’s historical data only and are not indicative of the — Net Working Capital, and Net Invested Capital allow
Change in inventories (28,195) (3,203) Group’s future performance; a better assessment of both the ability to meet short-
Change in trade receivables (36,009) (11,794) 2. the APMs are not laid down by the IFRS and are not term trade commitments through current trade assets,
Change in trade payables (45,195) 88,937 subject to audit, although they are taken from the and the consistency between the structure of the use
Change in other liabilities 17,173 32,836 Group’s Consolidated Financial Statements; and that of the sources of financing over time;
Change in receivables from others and other assets (44,877) (4,551) 3. the APMs must not be considered to replace the Gross Operating mCO_me (EB_|TDA) and Ne_t Opera.tlng. .
Translation adjustment reserve not allocated to specific items 17,922 (7,001) indicators provided for by the IFRS, !ncgme (EBIT), combined W'th othe_r relative profitability
Change in working capital (119.181) 62,924 4. the APMs are to be read together with the Group’s indicators, allow changes in operating performance to
Change in provisions for employee benefits and other provisions 27,357 13,975 financial information, taken from the Brembo Group’s be illustrated and provide useful information on the
- ROy & : : Consolidated Financial Statements: Group’s capacity to sustain debt; these indicators are
Operatlr\g cash flow 350,039 306,449 5. the definitions used by the Group may not match those also commonly used by analysts and investors in the
Interest income and expense (26,226) (21,583) adopted by other companies/groups, therefore they sector to which the Group belongs to evaluate company
Result from discontinued operations 0 136 are not comparable, since they are not derived from performance.
Current taxes paid (127,835) (86,640) reference accounting standards;
Dividend paid in the period to minority shareholders (960) (2,122) 6. the APMs used by the Group are applied on an ongoing
Buy-back from own shares 0 (65,620) basis and are consistently defined and represented 2.4.5 BREMBO GROUP COMPANIES
Interest (income)/expense from investments , net of dividends received (1,253) (7,004) for all the periods for which financial information is _ _ _
— . _ included in these Financial Statements: The following figures were taken from the accounting
Dividends paid in the period (95,661) (90,754) _ S . .
Net cash flow 08 104 22 862 7. Management believes the APMs indicated below to situations at 31 December 2024 prepared by the
— — — ; ' be a useful measure providing insight into the matters companies in accordance with IAS/IFRS and approved by
Effect of translation differences on net financial positions (3.689) 14,414 explained below to allow a better understanding for the the respective Boards of Directors.
NET FINANCIAL POSITION AT THE END OF PERIOD (360,353) (454,768)

(*) See Note 13 of the Explanatory Notes to the Condensed Financial Statements for a reconcilition with financial statement data.

financial performance of the Group.
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COMPANIES CONSOLIDATED ON A LINE-BY-LINE BASIS

AP Racing Ltd.

Coventry (United Kingdom) S
Activities: production and sale of braking systems and
clutches for road and racing vehicles.

AP Racing is the market leader in the production of brakes
and clutches for racing cars and motorbikes.

The company designs, assembles and sells cutting-edge,
high-tech products throughout the world for the main F1,
GT, Touring and Rally teams. It also produces and sells
original equipment brakes and clutches for prestige car
manufacturers.

AP Racing North America Corp.
Huntersville (USA)

—~

Activities: technical and sales services on the US
market.

Established in 2022 and wholly controlled by AP

Racing Ltd., the company specializes in developing and
simplifying communications between the parent and the
US-based customers, throughout the different phases of
project planning and management.

Brembo Australia Pty Ltd.
Melbourne (Australia)

-

-]
Activities: marketing activities.

Formed in 2024 and fully controlled by Brembo N.V,,
the company carries out marketing activities for the
aftermarket only.

Brembo Brake India Pvt. Ltd.
Pune (India)

‘(PV

Activities: development, production and sale of braking
systems for motorbikes.

The company is based in Pune, India, and was originally
set up in 2006 as a joint venture held in equal stakes

by Brembo N.V. and the Indian company Bosch Chassis
Systems India Ltd. Since 2008, the company has been
wholly owned by Brembo N.V.

Brembo Czech S.r.o.
Ostrava-Hrabova (Czech Republic)

o

Activities: casting, production and sale of braking
systems for cars.

The company was formed in 2009 and started its
production activity in 2071. It carries out the casting,
processing and assembly of brake calipers and other
aluminium components and sale of braking systems for
cars.

Brembo Deutschland GmbH
Leinfelden-Echterdingen (Germany)

s

Activities: purchase and resale of vehicles, technical
and sales services, as well as promotion of the sale of
car brake discs.

The company, which is 100% owned by Brembo N.V., was
formed in 2007. It specializes in buying cars for tests and
encouraging and simplifying communications between
Brembo and its German customers in the various phases
of project planning and management. It also promotes the
sale of brake discs for the car aftermarket only.

Brembo do Brasil Ltda.
Betim (Brazil)

YV

Activities: production and sale of brake discs for the
original equipment market.

The company is headquartered in Betim, Minas Gerais,
and specializes in the manufacturing and sale of car brake
discs in the South American OEM market.

Brembo France S.a.s.
Paris (France)

&

Activities: promotion of the sale of car brake discs.

The company, established in 2024, promotes the sale of
brake discs for the car sector, destined exclusively for the
aftermarket.
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Brembo Huilian (Langfang) Brake
Systems Co. Ltd. Langfang (China)

P

Activities: casting, production and sale of brake discs
for the original equipment market.

In 2016, Brembo N.V. acquired a 66% stake in Brembo Huilian
(Langfang) Brake Systems Co. Ltd. (formerly Asimco Meilian
Braking Systems (Langfang) Co. Ltd.), a Chinese company
that owns a foundry and a plant for the manufacturing

of cast-iron brake discs. This company supplies local car
manufacturers, mainly including joint ventures among
Chinese firms and European and U.S.top players. The
remaining 34% of the share capital continued to be owned
by the public company Langfang Assets Operation Co. Ltd,,
controlled by the Municipality of Langfang.

Brembo Inspiration Lab Corp.
Sunnyvale, California (USA)

—~

Activities: strengthening expertise in software
development, data science and artificial intelligence.

The company — Brembo’s first centre of excellence —

Is based in the Silicon Valley (California, USA). It is an
experimental lab mainly focused on strengthening the
Company’s expertise in software development, data

science and artificial intelligence for the benefit of the
development of Brembo's future braking solutions. The new
centre of excellence will also be a point of reference for the
technological and commercial development of Brembo’s
relationships with customers in the Silicon Valley.

Brembo Japan Co. Ltd.
Tokyo (Japan)

s

Activities: sale of braking systems for the racing sector
and original equipment for cars.

Brembo Japan Co. Ltd. is Brembo’s commercial company
that handles the Japanese racing market. Through the
Tokyo office, it provides primary technical support to the
OEM customers in the area. It also renders services to the
other Brembo Group companies operating in Japan.

Brembo México S.A.de C.V.
Apodaca (Mexico)

Ny

Activities: casting, production and sale of braking
systems for cars and commercial vehicles and car brake
discs for original equipment and the aftermarket.

As a result of the merger with Brembo México Apodaca
S.A.de CV.in 2010, the company is now 51% owned by
Brembo North America Inc. and 49% owned by Brembo
N.V.

Brembo (Nanjing) Automobile
Components Co. Ltd. Nanjing (China)

P

Activities: casting, processing and assembly of braking
systems for cars and commercial vehicles.

The company, which is 60% owned by Brembo N.V. and
40% owned by Brembo Brake India Pvt. Ltd., was set up in
2016 and carries out casting, processing and assembly of
braking systems for cars and commercial vehicles.

Brembo Nanjing Brake Systems Co. Ltd.
Nanjing (China)

%

Activities: development, production and sale of OEM
brake discs for cars.

The company, a joint venture between Brembo N.V. and
the Chinese group Nanjing Automobile Corp., was formed
in 2007. The Brembo Group acquired control over the
company in 2008. In 2013, the Brembo Group acquired full
control from the Chinese partner Donghua Automotive
Industrial Co. Ltd.

In 2017, the merger of Brembo Nanjing Foundry Co. Ltd. into
Brembo Nanjing Brake Systems Co. Ltd. Ltd. The transaction
aimed at developing an integrated industrial hub, including
foundry and manufacture of brake discs for the car OEM.

Brembo North America Inc.
Plymouth, Michigan (USA)

—~

Activities: development, casting, production and sale of
brake discs for car original equipment market and the
aftermarket, and braking systems for cars, motorbikes
and the racing sector.

Brembo North America Inc. is based in Homer, Michigan.

It produces and sells OEM and aftermarket brake discs, as
well as high-performance car braking systems. A Research
and Development Centre has been operating at the facility
in Plymouth (Michigan) since 2010 to develop and market
new solutions in terms of materials and designs for the
U.S. market.

Brembo Poland Spolka Zo.o.
Dabrowa-Goérnicza (Poland)

-

Activities: development, casting, production and
sale of brake discs and braking systems for cars and
commercial vehicles.

The company produces OEM braking systems for cars
and commercial vehicles in the Czestochowa plant.

In the Dabrowa-Gdrnicza plant, it has a foundry for

the production of cast-iron discs destined for use in its
own production plant or by other Group companies.

The Niepotomice plant processes steel disc hats to be
assembled onto the light discs manufactured at the
Group’s plants located in Ching, in the United States, and
in the Dabrowa-Gornicza plant as well.
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Brembo Poland Manufacturing Sp.zo.o.
Dabrowa-Godrnicza (Poland)

-

Activities: casting, production and sale of brake discs
for cars and commercial vehicles

The company is fully owned by Brembo Poland Sp. Zo.o.
and, once fully operational, it will focus on casting and
processing activities on behalf of the its parent company.

Brembo Reinsurance AG
Zurich (Switzerland)

Lo

Activity: reinsurance company.

Incorporated in 2023 with headquarters in Zurich and
fully owned by Brembo N.V,, the company aims at
Improving the conditions and efficiency of the process of
financing the Brembo Group’s risks through access to the
reinsurance market and the possibility of underwriting
risks not adequately covered by the insurance market and
that cannot be financed through a fund.

Activities: promotion of the sale of car brake discs.

Founded in 2014, the Moscow-based company is wholly
owned by Brembo N.V. It deals with promoting the sale of
car brake discs for the aftermarket only.

Brembo Scandinavia A.B.
Goteborg (Sweden)

Activities: promotion of the sale of car brake discs.

The company promotes the sale of brake discs for the car
sector, destined exclusively for the aftermarket.

Activities: production and sale of braking systems for
motorbikes.

The company will manufacture braking systems for
motorcycle manufacturers in Thailand, starting with
European and American producers. It is located in the
motorcycle industry hub of the country, situated in the
Rayong province, south of the capital Bangkok.

Corporacién Upwards ‘98 S.A.
Zaragoza (Spain)

|53

Activities: sale of brake discs and drums for cars,
distribution of the brake shoe kits and pads.

The company, which is 68% owned by Brembo N.V,, carries
out sales activities exclusively for the aftermarket.
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Brembo Russia Llc. Brembo Thailand Ltd. J.Juan S.A.U.
Moscow (Russia) Rayong (Thailand) Barcelona (Spain)

Activities: development, production and sale of braking
systems for motorbikes.

In November 2021, Brembo acquired the 100% stake in
the J.Juan Group, a Spanish company specializing in

the development and production of motorbike braking
systems. Founded in 1965, J.Juan is based in Gava
(Barcelona) and has three plants in Spain and one in
China, manufacturing especially brake hoses.

In 2022, the merger of the companies J.Juan Brake
Systems S.A.U. and Montajes y Acabados S.L.U. into J.Juan
S.A.U.was launched and completed, with accounting

effects as of 1 January 2022.

Activities: production and sale of braking systems for
motorbikes.

Jiaxing Ciju Control Systems Co. Ltd.
Jiaxing (China)

On 4 November 2021, Brembo acquired the 100% stake
In the J.Juan Group, a Spanish company specialising in
the development and production of motorbike braking
systems, to which Jiaxing Ciju Control Systems Co. Ltd.
belongs.



Letter from the Vision 1. Corporate 2. Directors’ 3. Sustainability 4. Corporate 5. Financial
Annual Report Index Executive Chairman and Mission Highlights Report Statement Governance Statements
La.Cam (Lavorazioni Camune) S.r.l. SBS Friction A/S
Stezzano (Italy) ] Svendborg (Denmark) g

Activities: precision mechanical processing, lathe work,
mechanical component production and similar activities,
on its own account or on behalf of third parties.

The company was incorporated by Brembo N.V.in 2010.
In the same year, it leased from an important Group’s
supplier two companies specialising in processing
aluminium, steel and cast-iron pistons for brake calipers
intended for use in the car, motorbike and industrial
vehicle sectors, and in the production of other types of
components, including small high-precision metallic parts
and bridges for car brake calipers, as well as aluminium
caliper supports for the motorbike sector, chiefly produced
for the Brembo Group. In 2012, La.Cam. acquired the
business units of both companies.

Qingdao Brembo Trading Co. Ltd.
Qingdao (China)

Activities: logistics, sale and marketing activities in
the economic and technological development hub of
Qingdao.

Formed in 2009 and fully controlled by Brembo N.V,,
the company carries out logistics, sale and marketing
activities within the Qingdao technological hub for the
aftermarket only.

Activities: development, production and sale of brake
pads for motorbikes.

On 7 January 2021, Brembo acquired SBS Friction A/S,

a Danish company based in Svendborg, Denmark, that
develops and manufactures brake pads for motorbikes
using particularly innovative and eco-friendly sintered
organic materials. The investment is 60% held by Brembo
N.V. and 40% by Brembo Brake India Pvt. Ltd.
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COMPANIES VALUED USING THE EQUITY METHOD

Brembo SGL Carbon Ceramic
Brakes S.p.A. Stezzano (ltaly)

<

Activities: design, development, production and sale of
carbon ceramic brake discs.

As a result of the joint venture agreements finalized in
2009 between Brembo and SGL Group, the company is
50% owned by Brembo S.p.A. and in turn controls 100% of
the German company Brembo SGL Carbon Ceramic Brakes
GmbH. Both companies carry out design, development,
production and sale of braking systems in general, and
particularly of OEM carbon ceramic brake discs for top-
performance cars, as well as research and development
activities concerning new materials and applications.

Brembo SGL Carbon Ceramic Brakes GmbH
Meitingen (Germany)

Activities: design, development, production and sale of
carbon ceramic brake discs.

The company was formed in 2001. In 2009, in executing
the joint venture agreement between Brembo and SGL
Group, Brembo SGL Carbon Ceramic Brakes S.p.A. acquired
100% of the company.

Petroceramics S.p.A.
Stezzano (Italy)

<

Activities: research and development of innovative
technologies for the production of technical and
advanced ceramic materials, geomaterial processing
and rock mass characterization.

Brembo N.V. acquired 20% of this company by subscribing
a capital increase in 2006.

Infibra Technologies S.r.l.
Milan (Italy)

B>

Activities: development, design, industrialization,
manufacturing, installation and marketing of fibre
optic sensors systems.

In 2020, Brembo acquired a 20% stake in Infibra
Technologies S.r.l. for a consideration of €800 thousand.
The company is specialized in the development, design,
industrialization, manufacturing, installation and
marketing of fibre optic sensors systems and photonic
subsystems for sensing and communications. The
agreement with the current shareholders envisages
Brembao’s right to exercise a call option on the remaining
80% interest in the second half of 2024.

Shandong BRGP Friction
Technology Co. Ltd. Jinan (China)

P

Activities: large-scale manufacturing of innovative
aftermarket brake pads for the car and commercial
vehicle segments.

On 25 July 2022, Brembo signed a 50/50 Joint Venture
agreement with Shandong Gold Phoenix Co. Ltd., a
Chinese company listed on Shanghai Stock Exchange,
leader in designing, testing, manufacturing and marketing
braking system and pads/friction material for the original
equipment market and aftermarket. The agreement
provides for the formation of the new company —
Shandong BRGP Friction Technology Co. Ltd. — dedicated
to the large-scale manufacturing of innovative aftermarket
brake pads for the car and commercial vehicle segments.



Letter from the Vision 1. Corporate 2. Directors’ 3. Sustainability 4. Corporate 5. Financial
Annual Report Index Executive Chairman and Mission Highlights Report Statement Governance Statements
Here below is a summary of revenue from contract with
customers, net result for the period and employees of
each company, compared with the previous year.
31.12.2024 31.12.2023
Revenue from contract with customers Net result for the period Number of Revenue from contract with customers Net result for the period Number of

Local currency Local currency Euro Local currency Euro employees Local currency Euro Local currency Euro employees
Brembo N.V. Eur 1,253,764 1,253,764 163,752 163,752 3,412 1,265,173 1,265,173 139,265 139,265 3,370
Companies consolidated on a line-by-line basis:
AP Racing Ltd. Gbp 69,223 81,767 6,236 7,366 181 64,548 74,202 5,306 6,099 167
AP Racing North America Corp. Usd 0 0 25 23 2 0 0 19 18 2
Brembo Australia Pty. Ltd. Aud 0 0 (14) (8) 0
Brembo Brake India Pvt. Ltd. Inr 15,393,986 170,042 1,876,078 20,723 1,272 13,940,522 156,065 1,517,215 16,985 1,152
Brembo Czech S.R.O. Czk 8,207,442 326,743 (721,520) (28,724) 1,264 7,443,562 310,140 (595,282) (24,803) 1,009
Brembo Deutschland GmbH Eur 3,608 3,608 2,214 2,214 11 2,700 2,700 1,494 1,494 11
Brembo do Brasil Ltda. Brl 448,304 76,938 33,063 5,674 231 421,795 78,087 39,201 7,257 212
Brembo France Sas Eur 377 377 98 98 3
Brembo Huilian (Langfang) Brake Systems Co. Ltd. Cny 634,873 81,538 69,079 8,872 421 598,717 78,171 42,281 5,520 464
Brembo Inspiration Lab. Corp. Usd 0 0 215 199 21 0 0 136 126 9
Brembo Japan Co. Ltd. Jpy 1,136,316 6,936 65,226 398 27 1,085,811 7,146 89,684 590 27
Brembo Mexico S.A. de C.V. Usd 571,690 528,338 11,609 10,729 1,868 574,836 531,478 23,064 21,325 1,832
Brembo (Nanjing) Automobile Components Co. Ltd. Cny 1,993,655 256,048 239,092 30,707 728 1,756,817 229,377 252,920 33,022 677
Brembo Nanjing Brake Systems Co. Ltd. Cny 1,284,059 164,913 171,874 22,074 601 1,218,751 159,125 175,921 22,969 579
Brembo North America Inc. Usd 441,797 408,294 23,431 21,654 719 465,786 430,654 40,789 37,713 697
Brembo Poland Manufacturing Sp.zo.o. PIn 0 0 (6,982) (1,622) 0 0 0 (2,288) (504) 0
Brembo Poland Spolka Zo.o. PIn 2,831,671 657,649 217,450 50,502 2,446 3,154,581 694,526 218,175 48,034 2,381
Brembo Reinsurance AG Eur 3,197 3,197 2,238 2,238 1 1,257 1,257 503 503 1
Brembo Russia Llc Rub 32,025 320 6,914 69 2 27,646 300 (3,108) (34) 3
Brembo Scandinavia A.B. Sek 11,978 1,048 6,983 611 2 10,587 923 5,360 467 2
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31.12.2024 31.12.2023

Revenue from contract with customers Net result for the period Number of Revenue from contract with customers Net result for the period Number of

Local currency Local currency Euro Local currency Euro employees Local currency Euro Local currency Euro employees

Brembo Thailand Ltd. Thb 0 0 (57,288) (1,501) 20 0 0 (4,342) (115) 0

Corporacion Upwards ‘98 S.A. Eur 34,040 34,040 3,742 3,742 75 33,534 33,534 3,238 3,238 64

JJuan S.A.U. Eur 67,929 67,929 (787) (787) 463 75,429 75,429 8,799 8,799 466

Jiaxing Ciju Control Systems Co. Ltd. Cny 318,667 40,927 48,210 6,192 210 287,117 37,487 48,020 6,270 195

La.Cam (Lavorazioni Camune) S.r.l. Eur 55,751 55,751 1,736 1,736 183 57,364 57,364 2,198 2,198 174

Qingdao Brembo Trading Co. Ltd. Cny 795,818 102,208 56,950 7,314 56 698,610 91,213 39,753 5,190 52

SBS Friction A/S Dkk 205,604 27,565 812 109 129 186,661 25,052 388 52 108
Companies valued using the equity method:

Brembo SGL Carbon Ceramic Brakes S.p.A. Eur 101,737 101,737 22,505 22,505 259 92,667 92,667 20,229 20,229 195

Brembo SGL Carbon Ceramic Brakes GmbH Eur 194,397 194,397 19,829 19,829 572 184,801 184,801 23,203 23,203 502

Petroceramics S.p.A. Eur 2,905 2,905 586 586 22 2,316 2,316 454 454 19

Infibra Technologies S.rl. Eur 302 302 (175) (175) 5 606 606 (54) (54) 5

Shandong BRGP Friction Technology Co. Ltd. Cny 262,551 33,720 13,137 1,687 407 96,471 12,596 (13,636) (1,780) 287
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2.4.6 FULL YEAR 2024
CONCLUSION AND OUTLOOK

The 2024 results confirmed the resilience of Brembo’s
business model, despite the challenges faced by the
automotive industry and the global geopolitical situation.

The Group’s revenues were in line with the already
positive results of 2023, closing the year at €3,840.6
million, also thanks to the good aftermarket
performance. Gross Operating Income was also in line
with the previous year at €661.1 million.

In 2024, net investments, including higher leased assets,
amounted to €497.5 million. Despite a macroeconomic
context that remained significantly complex, Brembo
continued to invest to complete the capacity expansion
announced in 2023, aimed at reinforcing its industrial
footprint in Mexico, Poland, China, and Thailand.

In October 2024, Brembo announced the acquisition
of Ohlins. Its integration into the Group will generate
synergies while preserving the company’s agility and
ability to meet the demand for premium solutions
through continuous innovation.

Looking at 2025, the Group confirms its ambition to
remain an industry leader and support its customers,
developing innovative and sustainable solutions to
successfully face the challenges that are shaping the
automotive industry.

In a context of great uncertainty and in light of the
performance of the first months of 2025, on a like-
for-like basis, Brembo expects a revenue decline of
approximately 5% compared with the previous year.

However, with the consolidation of Ohlins and if the
geopolitical scenario and trade tensions stabilise in the
second half of the year, the Group anticipates revenue in
line with 2024.

2.5 SIGNIFICANT EVENTS
AFTER 31 DECEMBER 2024

On 2 January 2025, Brembo, further to the announcement
made on 11 October 2024, has completed the acquisition
of Ohlins Racing, the leading manufacturer of premium,
high-performance suspension technology for motorcycles
and cars in the Original Equipment, Motorsport, and
Aftermarket segments. The value of the transaction
corresponds to an enterprise value of $405 million, on

a cash free/debt free basis, subject to the customary
adjustment mechanisms which will be completed within
the next 135 days. The payment of the consideration was
made entirely using available cash.

No other significant events occurred after the end of 2024
and up to 18 March 2025.
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Dear Stakeholder, BREMBO AND THE UN GLOBAL COMPACT

| am pleased to confirm that in 2024 as
well Brembo N.V. reaffirms its support to
the 70 United Nations Global Compact
Principles in the areas of Human Rights,
Labour, the Environment and Anti-
corruption.

In this annual report on the
achievements made, we disclose our
ongoing commitments to integrating
the 10 Principles into our Company’s
strategy, culture and daily activities,
as well as to contributing to the
United Nations’goals, in particular the
Sustainable Development Goals.

Daniele Schillaci
Chief Executive Officer, Brembo N.V.

Since 2021, Brembo N.V. has been a participant in the
United Nations Global Compact, the world’s largest
strategic corporate citizenship initiative.

This initiative was established to promote a sustainable
global economy that respects human and labour rights,

environmental protection, and anti-corruption principles.

Promoted by former UN Secretary-General Kofi Annan,
more than 25,490 companies from 167 countries have
joined the Global Compact, creating a new model for
global collaboration.

The UN Global Compact requires companies to share,
support, and apply a set of fundamental principles
on human rights, labour standards, environmental
protection, and anti-corruption within their sphere of
influence.

By participating in this initiative, Brembo N.V. has joined
a universal network of companies with a long-term
strategic vision, oriented towards promoting a culture
of sustainability, innovation, and reporting. The Global
Compact provides an opportunity to share strategies
and good business practices in response to global
challenges, utilise ESG-related management tools and
resources, and participate in specific working groups.

Further strengthening its commitment, Brembo N.V.
has become a founding member of the UN Global
Compact Network Italy, actively contributing to the
Foundation’s objectives and participating in its
Institutional activities and initiatives.

Recognising the growing importance of sustainability
and the value of collaborative learning, Brembo

N.V actively participated in 2024 Global Compact
Accelerator programs. These specialised programs,
designed to embed SDG-aligned practices deep into
business operations and across the value chain,
accelerate progress and impact for the 2030 Agenda.
Specifically, Brembo N.V. engaged with the Climate
Ambition Accelerator, the Target Gender Equality
Accelerator, and the Business & Human Rights
Accelerator.

Brembo N.V's participation in the Global Compact
testifies to its long-standing commitment to
sustainability, which over the years has increasingly
focused on numerous fronts, and adherence to the 17
Sustainable Development Goals defined by the UN
2030 Agenda.
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SUSTAINABILITY HIGHLIGHTS

ENVIRONMENT

-13.74%

Emissions of CO2
per cast tonne’
compared to 2023

@ -11,2% in 2023*

=
339,000

Training hours provided
in 2024

SOCIAL

More than 350,000 in 2023

GOVERNANCE

814

16,864

Attendees to business
Integrity related training
courses’

New highlight

oy

©®

93%

Recycled
waste

100%

ISO 14001
environmentally
certified plants?

@ 8806 in 2023*

o]ale

VAW,

14,348

Employees?

100% in 2023*

90.45%

Local supplies: supply from
suppliers located in the same
geographical areas where the
Group operates®

@ 13,654 in 2023

54.54%

Members of the BoD
with ESG-related skills

90,6% in 2023

[ayayal

ATATA!

83.33%

Board’s gender
diversity ratio®

@ 36.4% in 2023*

New highlight

A

NN
NN

83%

Electricity
coming from
renewable sources

@ 75% in 2023

s

78.88%

Suppliers of direct materials
that since 2015 have been
Involved in social and
environmental audits

@ 78.29% in 2023

100%

ISO 27001
certified sites®

100% in 2023

77%

1SO 50001
energy certified
plants3

@ 52% in 2023

o]a)
VA

GENDER
EQUALITY

Certification®

New highlight

10

Annual meetings of the
Audit, Risk and Sustainability
Committee (ARSQ)

11 in 2023

Scope 1 and market-based Scope 2 emissions,

generated by foundries/gross tonnes of molten
cast iron and molten aluminium (BSCCB S.p.A.
included).

The plants failing within the 1ISO 14001
certification scope are operating industrial
plants or plants that have been part of the
Group for at least two years.

The plants failing within the 1ISO 50001
certification scope are operating industrial
plants or plants that have been part of the
Group for at least two years and with energy
consumption exceeding 5,000 GJ.

The employees of Brembo Reinsurance AG,
Brembo France, Brembo Thailand, which are
not included in the scope of the Sustainability
Statement, are also included.

This includes the costs of purchasing

goods and services directly involved in the
manufacturing of finished products, namely
purchases of raw materials, components,
semi-finished and finished products, anciliary
materials and services (mostly transport,
utilities, packaging and MRO). The scope of
analysis was expanded to also include the
provision of services not closely associated
with production, such as costs of ICT and
telephony, cleaning, security and canteen
services. Tax and legal advice, insurance,
sponsorships, business travel, recruitment
and training activities, building leases and
industrial assests are excluded.

For Brembo N.V.

In calculating the number of people trained on
business ethics, a person is counted multiple
times if they receive training on different
topics. Business ethics include topics detailed
in Code of Ethics, antibribery, 237 compliance o
local compliance to prevent corporate criminal
liability, GDPR, antitrust etc.

The Board’s gender diversity is calculated
as: (Total number of female members / Total
number of male members)*100.

The ISO 27001 certified sites are the Italian sites
of Brembo N.V. (Curno, Mapello and Stezzano),
La. CAM.S.r.l., Brembo SGL Carbon Ceramic
Brakes S.p.A., Brembo Poland Sp. Z.0.0.
production hubs and Brembo Czech S.r.o.

The 2023 calculation did not consider BSCCB
S.p.A.

@ Data improving.
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An excerpt of the Group Sustainability Plan “Turning Sustainability into Action” is reported below.

NET ZERO (SCOPES 1+2)

Achieving net zero emissions at Group level
(Scope 1+2)

Baseline Status

372,491 tCO2e 224,404 tCO2e

-40%

INCIDENT RATE

Continuous reduction of the incident rate

Baseline Status

Annual

-10% YOY

** Recalculation according to ESRS

SUPPLIERS’ CO2 EMISSIONS DATA
COLLECTION

Ensure third-party validation of “carbon relevant”***
suppliers’ primary emissions data related to Brembo'’s
production, enhancing the reliability of Brembo’s
Scope 3 emissions calculation

Baseline

Achieve and maintain
a validation rate of
“carbon relevant”
supplier’s emissions

data above 75%

41% validation
rate of Brembo's
“carbon relevant”
suppliers’ data

*** Around 300 suppliers

NET ZERO (SCOPE 3)

Achieving net zero emissions at Group level
(Scope 3)

Baseline Status

1,666,245 tCO2e 2,085,578 tCO2e

+250%0*

* In reduction compared to the 2023 value

GENDER IN MANAGEMENT

The representation of each gender in the cluster of

Management

Baseline

by the end
of 2028
More than

20%

17.8% women
82.2% men

17% women
83% men

LOCAL FOR LOCAL INDEX

Prioritize localized supply chain where Brembo has
production sites

Baseline

ensuring that the
local for local index

is maintained >85%

87% local
for local index

90.45%

RENEWABLE ENERGY

Increasing renewable energy (%)

Baseline Status

+100%

GENDER IN EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The representation of each gender in the cluster of
Executive Directors

Baseline Status

25% women
75% men

25% women
75%0 men

At least 25%0

upon renewal of the
Board of Directors

THIRD-PARTY SUPPLY CHAIN
MONITORING THROUGH SELF-
ASSESSMENT QUESTIONNAIRES

Extend the third party self-assessment questionnaire
to cover significant portion of direct supplier spend

Baseline

77% coverage of
direct suppliers
spend

coverage of direct
supplier spend

RECYCLED WASTE

Increase of recycled waste as proportion of total
waste generated (%)

Baseline Status

GENDER IN NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The representation of each gender in the cluster of
non Executive Directors

Baseline

57% women
43% men

At least 40%

upon renewal of the
Board of Directors

57% women
43% men

THIRD-PARTY SUPPLY CHAIN
MONITORING THROUGH ON-SITE
AUDITS

Extend the ESG assessment and monitoring of the
supply chain

Baseline

77% turnover
of relevant direct
material suppliers

achieve 80%
turnover of relevant

direct material
suppliers
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ESRS 2

GENERAL BASIS FOR PREPARATION
OF SUSTAINABILITY STATEMENT

This Sustainability Statement has been prepared on a
consolidated basis: its scope coincides with that of the
Consolidated financial statement. As such, the scope of the
sustainability statement does not include the companies
valued using the equity method and the following entities
due to the non operative nature:

BREMBO REINSURANCE AG

BREMBO POLAND MANUFACTURING SP.ZO.0O.

BREMBO POLAND HERATECH SP. ZO.0.

BREMBO THAILAND LTD.

BREMBO AUSTRALIA PTY LTD

BREMBO FRANCE SAS

ESRS 1 allows companies to not yet incorporate the value
chain impact fot certain metrics. Brembo have made

use of this exemption, by not including the impact of
non-consolidated joint ventures and associates in the
sustainability statements. Brembo does not have control
over these entities, and will assess in the coming years
how to incorporate these entities in its sustainability
statements. The value chain exemption can be applied
during the first three reporting years. Only data and
information related to Brembo SGL Carbon Ceramic
Brakes S.p.A. (Stezzano), over which the Group has
operational control, is included in metrics where required
by the ESRS standards and is well stated.

The double materiality assessment, detailed in the section
"IRO-1 Description of the processes to identify and assess
material impacts, risks and opportunities”, which forms the

basis for the preparation of this Sustainability Statement,
has considered the Group's value chain. This includes both
the activities directly carried out by the Brembo Group
and those performed upstream and downstream of direct
operations. For a detailed description of the Group's value
chain, please refer to the subsequent section “SBM-1
Strategy, business model and value chain”,

DISCLOSURES IN RELATION TO
SPECIFIC CIRCUMSTANCES

This document marks the first year of reporting under

the European Sustainability Reporting Standards (ESRS),
resulting in a different structure for the Sustainability
Statement compared to previous reports. It is important to
note that no significant errors have been identified in prior
reporting periods. Additionally, Brembo does not include
information in its sustainability statement that arises from
other legislation requiring the disclosure of sustainability
information beyond what is prescribed by ESRS. Brembo
defined the time horizons in accordance with the ones
established by the ERM evaluation processes and adopted
in the Financial Statement. Brembo defines the short-
term time horizon as less than one year from current
reporting period. On the other hand, the medium-term
extends from the end of the short-term up to five years,
while the long-term encompasses periods exceeding five
years. The information presented in the sustainability
statement complies with the qualitative characteristics
outlined in Appendix B of the ESRS 1 standard, namely:
Relevance, Faithful Representation, Comparability,
Verifiability, and Understandability. Where necessary,

any estimates related to value chain considerations and
causes of uncertainty in the results have been described

in the respective paragraphs, as well as any estimates

made in the calculation of the reported required metrics.
Data concerning Scope 3 greenhouse gas emissions face
intrinsic limitations due to the limited availability and
relative accuracy of the information used to define both
quantitative and qualitative aspects related to the value
chain. In conclusion, for the reporting year 2024, there
have been no notable events or situations that have
significantly impacted the sustainability performance of
the Brembo Group.

Brembo used the phase-in provision in accordance with
the ESRS 1 Appendix C except for S1-7, 51-8,51-13, S1-14.

Finally, Brembo has not defined any metrics beyond those
explicitly required by the ESRS; the Group is committed

to defining specific metrics for the identified material
IROs that are not covered by an ESRS metric and to their
periodic monitoring, particularly for topics regarding S2
value chain workers, S3 affected communities, and S4
consumers and end users Consumers and end users).

ROLE OF THE ADMINISTRATIVE,
MANAGEMENT AND SUPERVISORY BODIES

Brembo has adopted a one-tier board structure as
provided by laws of the Netherlands, with a Board of
Directors consisting of Executive Directors and Non-
Executive Directors. Based on the Board Profile and
according to the policy on non-discrimination and diversity,
Brembo’s Board of Directors (BoD) includes 4 executive
and 7 non-executive members of which 5 are female

and 6 are male. This results in a gender diversity ratio

of 83.33%'°, while the percentage of independent Board

members is 55%. The BoD is tasked with overseeing
Impacts, risks, and opportunities™.

MATTEO TIRABOSCHI - Executive Chairman

DANIELE SCHILLACI - Chief Executive Officer

CRISTINA BOMBASSEI - Executive Director

ROBERTO VAVASSORI - Executive Director

MANUELA SOFFIENTINI - Independent Director

ELISABETTA MAGISTRETTI - Independent Director

ELIZABETH MARIE ROBINSON - Independent Director

GIANCARLO DALLERA - Independent Director

GIANFELICE ROCCA - Independent Director

UMBERTO NICODANO - Not Executive Director

MICHELA SCHIZZI - Independent Director (candidate proposal
by a group of minority shareholders)

Brembo has no representative of the workers in the Board
of Directors.

To enhance the Board's skills in these areas and in the
sectors, products and geographic locations relevant to
the Company, Brembo has organized several in-depth
sessions during Board and Committee meetings, which
are summarized in the table below.

10 The Board's gender diversity is calculated as an average ratio of female to male board members.
11 For more information regarding the role of the BoD and other supervisory bodies, please refer to G1 GOV-T1.
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Table 1
Induction Session Recipients Date (ESRS 2 GOV-1;21¢,23a ESRS G1 GOV-1;5b) Activities Description
Remuneration Members of the February 2024 Gender Representation and Pay Gap Analysis.
and Appointment Remuneration and . N
Committee Appointment Committee July 2024 Gender Equality Certification.
December 2024 Policy on non-discrimination and diversity under Dutch law.
LTIP Benchmark Analysis.
Audit, Risk and Members of the Audit, January 2024 Cybersecurity risks and plan of control.
Sustainabilit ' ' ili
Committee y Risk an.d Sustainability May 2024 Health and safety profiles in relation to site activities,
Committee and maintenance and high-risk work
Supervisory Committee July 2024 9 '
October 2024 Diversity, Equity and Inclusion Journey.
Decemnber 2024 Sustainability Projects in the Supply Chain.
Non-financial reporting under Dutch law.
Induction Non-Executive Directors February 2024 Main aspects of the Dutch Corporate Governance Code.
for Directors o . .
Liability of Non-Executive Directors under Dutch law.
Shareholders’ Meeting according to Dutch Law.
Induction for Executive March 2024 Automotive market performance and outlook.
the BoD (follow- - '
ups durir(rg Board ?)?r(iclj:gps Executive May 2024 Gender Equality Certification.
meetings) June 2024 Policy on non-discrimination and diversity under Dutch law.
July 2024 New Code of Ethics.
November 2024 Update on new Law 231 and adoption of new governance

system following cross-border conversion.

In addition to the specific competencies listed in the table
above, a short professional profile of each Director, with
his/her personal and professional features, is included in
the governance report section of the Annual Report and is
also available on the Company’s website'2. Furthermore,
the members of the Board of Directors were surveyed

to identify the skills they have acquired since 2023. The
results, illustrated in the graph below, indicate that the
"ESG" category was highlighted by six Board Members.

9 9
7
6 6

4

| 3

Strategy ESG Finance International Legal Experience Other
experience & Risk in the field
management

12  www.brembogroup.com: Governance, Governing boards and committees.

The Board of Directors, with the support of the Audit, Risk
and Sustainability Committee, is tasked with defining

the general guidelines of the Internal Control and Risk
Management System (ICRMS), so that the main impacts,
risks and opportunities pertaining to Brembo N.V. and its
subsidiaries are properly identified, as well as adequately
measured, managed and monitored. Moreover, the BoD is
yearly informed of and has the responsibility to approve
the Double Materiality Analysis — the methodology used
to identify its material sustainability topics — and it is
Involved in the target setting of IROs. In this phase, the
Board received information about the Group’s IROs.

In addition, the Executive Directors are generally
responsible for defining additional policies to effectively
implement the guidelines, referring to best practice
models. These policies are approved by Top Managers
and reported to the Audit, Risk and Sustainability
Committee which supports the Board of Directors on
Internal control and risk management issues, including
those relevant from a sustainability perspective.
Additionally, the Executive Director in charge of the
Internal Control and Risk Management System (ICRMSD)
Is tasked with identifying the main corporate risks by
executing risk management Guidelines and verifying
their adequacy.

The Board of Directors has clearly defined the key roles
and responsibilities within the Internal Control and Risk
Management System (ICRMS). The ICRMS encompasses,
according to their respective duties, the Administrative
Bodies (Board of Directors, Audit, Risk and Sustainability
Committee, Executive Directors, and particularly the
ICRMSD), External Auditors Supervisory Committee,
Internal Audit GCF, Sustainability & Risk GCF, and other
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company roles and functions with specific tasks related
to internal control and risk management.

These roles are organized based on the company's size,
complexity, and risk profile.

Twice a year, the Audit, Risk and Sustainability
Committee and the Supervisory Committee shall prepare
a report of their deliberations and findings for the Non-
Executive Directors and for the Board of Directors,
Illustrating how they carried out their dutie in the
financial year in accordance with the relevant Rules.

Management is also responsible for the effective
iImplementation of the ICRMS within their respective
areas. This is achieved through the collaboration and
active contribution of all employees and partners at every
level of their work activities, thereby creating not only
economic but also ethical value for the Company.

To effectively implement the ICRMS guidelines, the
Executive Director in charge has established the “Policies
for the Management of the Internal Control and Risk
Management System” These policies aim to outline the
overall integrated structure, allowing the identification
and management of the main Company impacts and
risks. The System is designed considering the current
organizational structure, legislative and requlatory
framework, and best practices. This approach ensures
continuous information flow among various parties,
promoting greater efficiency and maximum mutual
integration. To enhance the efficiency of the ICRMS and
minimise overlapping activities, specific coordination
procedures are in place among the different parties
Involved.

Coordination is ensured through constant information
flow between the different parties involved in the ICRMS,
participation in joint meetings to discuss ICRMS-related
issues, dissemination of Internal Audit GCF reports, and
circulation of minutes and reports from the Chairwoman
of the Audit, Risk and Sustainability Committee to

the Supervisory Committee. Risks are monitored at
monthly meetings where results, opportunities, risks, and
mitigation strategies are analysed for each business unit
and geographical area.

INFORMATION PROVIDED TO AND
SUSTAINABILITY MATTERS ADDRESSED
BY ADMINISTRATIVE, MANAGEMENT AND
SUPERVISORY BODIES

As previously stated, the Board of Directors, after a first
consultation with the Sustainability Committee and

with the Audit, Risk and Sustainability Committee and
the Supervisory Committee is yearly informed of and

has the responsibility to approve the Double Materiality
Analysis — the methodology used to identify its material
sustainability topics. In this phase the Board receives
information about the IROs included within the scope of
the double materiality assessment.

During the year, Brembo addressed the relevant risks
identified through its risk management policy and
procedure (for the list of material IROs, please see ESRS
2 SBM-3). The identification of sustainability risks was
carried out through the analysis based on documents
following: ERM Report, Climate Change Risk Assessment
(CCRA) - Physical and Transitional Risks.

Supervisory Bodies and Board of Directors oversee
Brembo sustainability strategy and target embedded in
its Sustainability Plan, always considering industry best
practices and the main global ESG trends.

INTEGRATION OF SUSTAINABILITY-
RELATED PERFORMANCE IN INCENTIVE
SCHEMES

Brembo is provided both with a short-term Incentive
Plan (2024 STIP) and a long-term Incentive Plan (2022-
2024 LTIP) both designed by the Remuneration and
Appointment Committee and approved by the Board

of Directors. The 2024 STIP is designed to align the
beneficiaries’ organizational conduct and motivate them
to achieve challenging targets. The 2022-2024 LTIP is set
to push beneficiaries towards the Company’s long-term
strategies and the sustainability plan defined by the
Company has formulated.

The 2024 STIP system provides for an entry gate relating
to the Group EBITDA in absolute terms. This performance
condition involves an on/off functioning mechanism that
entails payment of the final pay-out to the beneficiaries
solely in the event that the Group’s operating and
financial performance is in line with the established
targets. Coversely, if the access entry gate is not reached,
the system is not be activated, resulting in non-payment
of monetary incentives, regardless of whether the
objectives in each STIP form are reached.

The LTIP is a pure monetary plan that allows participants
to accrue a long-term incentive if the LTIP objectives

are met. The reward component of the pay-out curve is
offset by the fact that for values below the entry point
(corresponding to performance in line with the reference
targets), no payment proportional to the performance
objective shall be paid. The LTIP objectives are designed
to reward the Group’s financial and capital solidity, in
line with the business plan and the results achieved over
recent years in terms of stronger financial performance
and productivity recovery. In 2024, therefore, Brembo’s
LTIP has completed its vesting period.

Concerning the 2024 STIP, the purely quantitative
objectives assigned to the beneficiaries were identified
and broken down according to different criteria that, in
continuity with the past, include the key drivers of ESG
(Environmental, Social and Governance) factors.

The ESG criteria were translated into a group
sustainability index that constitutes 10% of the overall
annual objective for Brembo’s Executive Directors with
the aim of promoting the application of a long-term
sustainable business model.

The achievement the LTIP incentive is instead tied to

4 Group key performance Indicators one of which is
again the group sustainability index (Group’s Carbon
Footprint) at the end of the three-year period. The group
sustainability index™ is defined as the Total amount

of CO2 emissions saved in the three years thanks to
Improvement actions (tonnes CO2e) divided by Base
year’s Scope 1 and 2 CO2 emissions (tonnes CO2e)

x 100 where the Base year for the three-year period
corresponds to 2021.

13 Data used for calculation purposes include within the reporting boundary also Brembo SGL Carbon Ceramic Brakes S.p.A. (BSCCB S.p.A.), a joint venture

between Brembo and SGL Group.
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STATEMENT ON DUE DILIGENCE

Brembo has incorporated a due diligence process into
its governance and business strategy through its policies
and procedures. The focus is primarily on developing
ESG analyses of suppliers, paying special attention to
environmental and social factors, including human
rights. Furthermore, in preparation for the upcoming
iImplementation of the Corporate Sustainability Due
Diligence Directive (CSDDD), the company is actively
working to enhance its procedures and processes related
to due diligence in both environmental and human rights
aspects.

The fundamental elements of due diligence are directly
integrated into the Disclosure Requirements defined in ESRS
2 and in the following specific ESRS, as illustrated below:

a) Integration of due diligence into governance, strategy,
and business model
ESRS 2 GOV-2
ESRS 2 GOV-3
ESRS 2 SBM-3

b) Engagement of impacted stakeholders
ESRS 2 GOV-2
ESRS 2 SBM-2
ESRS 2 IRO-1
Specific ESRS: reflecting the different phases and
purposes of stakeholder engagement

C) ldentification and assessment of negative impacts on
people and the environment
ESRS 2 IRO-1 (including application requirements
related to specific sustainability issues in the
respective ESRS)
ESRS 2 SBM-3

d) Actions to address negative impacts on people and the
environment
Specific ESRS: reflecting the set of actions, including
actions and targets, through which impacts and risks
are managed.

e) Tracking the effectiveness of the efforts and
communicating undertaken by Brembo
ESRS 2 GOV-2
ESRS S2-4.

The outcome of the due diligence process is incorporated
in the double materiality assessment.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS OVER SUSTAINABILITY
REPORTING

Throughout 2024, Brembo has started to develop a first
internal control framework tailored for sustainability
reporting with focus on a set of ESRS-linked to the social
KPls, mapping in the processes of established financial
reporting controls, reporting software and systemes,
supporting documentation and sustainability data. This
strategic initiative enhances the reliability and robustness
of non-financial data, enabling Brembo to meet both
internal organizational needs and specific legislative
requirements with a structured and definitive approach.
The scope and main features of this internal control
system will ensure the integrity and accuracy of Brembo's
sustainability reporting through annual assessment.

Brembo's risk assessment methodology for risk
management is conducted under the overall ERM
framework which follows the guidelines of ISO 31000. For
each risk (including Sustainability Reporting risks) several

items are reported and identified, i.e. risk context, risk
scenario and mitigation measures to prevent, control and
transfer risk. Through its top-down risk mapping process,
Brembo assesses at least once a year the main risks of
the Group on both short-term and medium-term horizons
involving all GBUs, GCFs and main Geographies.

The result is the annual ERM report which is reviewed by
the key governance and control roles/functions including
the Executive Chaiman, CEQO, Internal Audit, Audit
Committee and finally the Company board. The Internal
Audit GCF considers the results of the ERM report in the
development of the annual audit plan which is defined on
a “risk based” approach.™

Brembo's internal control system for Sustainability
Reporting will be grounded in the principles of the

COSO Internal Control-Integrated Framework, which
encompasses the Control Environment, Risk Assessment,
Control Activities, Information and Communication, and
Monitoring Activities. This framework, complemented

by the "Achieving Effective Internal Control Over
Sustainability Reporting (ICSR)" guidelines published in
March 2023, guides the Company's approach to internal
control for non-financial reporting.

Under the COSO framework, the risk assessment process
on social KPIs was executed in two main steps:

1. A comprehensive mapping of the reporting process was
undertaken, starting from the initial data collection to the
final integration of data into the Sustainability Statement,
ensuring all intermediary phases were included.

2. This was followed by the identification of risks that could
potentially compromise the integrity of sustainability

data. The existing mitigation measures were evaluated,
and any unmitigated risks were given the highest

level of priority, taking precedence over risks that were
already partially or completely mitigated.

Among the primary risks identified were computational
Inaccuracies, erroneous data validation, and flawed data
consolidation. To counter these risks, Brembo introduced
specific controls and designated control owners tasked
with the verification and correction of the processes
susceptible to risk.

Brembo is actively working on the integration of the
control matrix that emerged from the internal control
framework related to ESRS, into its pre-existing Internal
Control and Risk Management System (ICRMS). This
strategic move aims to embed sustainability reporting into
the core responsibilities of Brembo's internal functions,
enhancing the overall governance framework. The
frequency and methods of involvement of the supervisory
body regarding risk management and control over
sustainability reporting will be defined at the end of the
process. While the integration process into the ICRMS is
still underway, it is set to become a key component of the
system.

14 For more information on the identification and evaluation of sustainability risks, please refer to the Double Materiality methodology.
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STRATEGY, BUSINESS MODEL
AND VALUE CHAIN

Brembo is the world leader and acknowledged innovator
in the development of braking solutions for automotive
vehicles and it currently operates in 18 countries on

4 continents, through its production and business sites,
and employs over 14,000 people worldwide.

Table 2

Employees by country u.m. 2024
Brazil n 231
China n 2,016
Czech Republic n 1,264
Denmark n 129
India n 1,272
Italy n 3,595
Japan n 27
Mexico n 1,868
Poland n 2,446
Spain n 538
UK n 181
U.S.A. n 742
Other n 15
Total n 14,324

Brembo’s reference market is represented by the most
important manufacturers of cars, motorbikes, commercial
vehicles, racing cars and motorbikes to whom the Group
offers a wide range of products and services:

1. Cars: Brembo is a prominent supplier to major car
manufacturers, providing brake discs, callipers, wheel-
side modules, and complete braking systems. The
Company also serves the aftermarket segment with a
variety of components, ensuring coverage for nearly all
vehicles on European roads.

2. Commercial Vehicles: Brembo’s range for commercial
vehicles includes components for original equipment brake
systems as well as replacement parts and maintenance
products for light to heavy commercial vehicles.

3. Motorbikes: In the motorbike sector, Brembo offers
brake discs, callipers, pumps, light alloy wheels,
and complete braking systems to the world’s most
prestigious manufacturers. Europe, the United States,
and Japan are key markets for Brembo in this sector.

4. Racing: Although it has a limited impact on overall
revenues, the racing sector is of strategic importance
for Brembo. The company provides braking systems
and clutches for racing cars and motorbikes through
leading brands such as Brembo Racing, AP Racing, and
Marchesini. This sector is a testbed for innovation, with
advancements often trickling down to Brembo's mass-
produced products.

Despite a slight decline in global production of passenger
cars and light commercial vehicles in 2024, Brembo
continues to adapt to changing market dynamics,
including shifts in demand for Battery Electric Vehicles
(BEVs) and regional disparities in EV adoption.

The European automotive market faced challenges,

with a 5% decline in 2024, while North America also

saw a decrease of 1%. In contrast, China's light vehicle
production grew by 4%, driven by government stimulus
and demand for new energy vehicles. The medium and
heavy commercial vehicle market experienced a 6% global
production decrease, with Europe facing a significant 22%
contraction. Overall, while Brembo's consolidated net
sales remained stable at €3,840,643 thousand in 2024, the
company is positioned to navigate ongoing changes in its
significant markets and customer groups.

Given the diversity of services and products it offers, the
Brembo Group is characterised by a particularly complex
value chain. This process is divided into several key phases,
encompassing the entire value chain from upstream
stages to the Group's direct activities, through to the
downstream use and end-of-life of the product. No one

of these phases encompasses the following sectors: fossil
fuel, chemicals production, controversial weapons nor the
cultivation and production of tobacco. Below is a detailed
description of the phases of Brembo’s value chain:

UPSTREAM: PROCUREMENT

The first phase of Brembo's value chain involves the
sourcing of materials. Brembo procures raw materials
such as aluminium, scrap, and other essential materials
like coke, graphite, calcium carbonate and other chemical
additives. These materials are sourced either from direct
extraction activities or through the direct purchase of
recycled materials, such as scrap metal. In addition to
raw materials, Brembo's upstream phases also involve
the purchase of finished products and services, including
brake pads, seals, rubber components, packaging, and
outsourced services like painting and treatments.

DIRECT: DESIGN, DEVELOPMENT,
AND PRODUCTION

The next phase includes the Group's direct activities, such as
design, development, and production of finished products.
Brembo invests significantly in Research & Development to
continuously innovate and improve its products, including
activities like road testing for product development. The
melting of raw materials is a critical step where metals

are melted to be transformed into components. These
components are then machined and assembled through

a production line. The efficiency and coordination of
production are ensured by office and back-office activities.

DIRECT: SALES

Once production is complete, the products are sold to
various customers. The main buyers include automotive
and two-wheeler manufacturers. Additionally, Brembo
sells its products to ITG, distributors, spare parts dealers,
mechanics, and tuners for aftermarket activities and

car and motorcycle upgrades. The products are also
available through web channels, further expanding
market reach.

DOWNSTREAM: USE AND END-OF-LIFE
OF THE PRODUCT

The final phase of the value chain concerns the use and
end-of-life of the product. Brembo braking systems are
used by end-users, ensuring them high performance and
safety. When products reach the end of their life cycle,
Brembo engages in disposal and recycling activities,
ensuring that materials are managed responsibly and
sustainably.
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In terms of significant sustainability-related targets linked
to groups of products and services, Brembo has set a goal
that complies with Euro 7 requlations to significantly cut
PM10 and PM2.5 emissions by 80%, while also generating
savings on the total cost of vehicle ownership without
compromising performance. This target could be achieved
through the Brembo Beyond Greenance Kit which ensures
greater mileage and a significant improvement in the
total cost of vehicle ownership, with an average reduction
of 15%. This results in substantial cost savings over the
vehicle's lifetime, a top priority for professional drivers of
light commercial vehicles/long-distance fleets, and now
also for sedans.

Even though Brembo has not yet performed an
assessment of its current significant products and/or
services, and significant markets and customer groups, in
relation to its sustainability-related goals, the Group set
up its sustainability plan, in which it identified objectives
related to material issues. The plan was named Turning
Sustainability into Action, to underline the intention to
make its commitment to sustainability tangible and

the desire to define objectives that are challenging

and verifiable. In order to develop a consistent plan,

the Sustainability Committee discussed each goal and
periodically monitors its progress. An information tool

was structured to ensure the objectivity of the monitoring.

Objectives have a target year and their updated progress
Is presented annually in order to made adjustments if
necessary.

INTERESTS AND VIEWS OF
STAKEHOLDERS - GENERAL

The Company believes that stakeholder engagement is
key to its business and that it contributes to sustainable
long-term value creation. The Company fosters an
effective dialogue with those stakeholders but may
decide not to accommodate or accept any requests or

invitations to enter into a dialogue with stakeholders, or to
accommodate or accept such request or invitation under
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Table 3
Engagement channels How the outcome
Stakeholder Relationships and activities Purpose is taken into account

certain conditions. The form of this dialogue varies based

on the topic and the type of stakeholder involved.

In the Table below the stakeholder engagement is
summerized. For further information please refer to the
stakeholder engagement policy.

Investors The Group establishes ~ Annual meeting The aim of the engagement This assessment helps
and maintains a is to increase their level identify areas where the
Feedback and support channels :
constant and open , of understanding of the Company can strengthen
: LT offered by the Investor Relations o . :
relationship with its activities performed by its commitment and
: area :
current and potential the Group and to share those where it can
shareholders, Meetings, roadshows, and the strategic actions and reaffirm its current
institutional and conference calls with analysts and visions underlying Brembo's approach
private investors, investors management, so they can
ﬂnarlloal ?nalysts, . Corporate website and dedicated (rjnake' informed investment
market players and, email accounts ecisions
in general, with the
financial community Engagement survey on the
relevance of material topics for
Brembo
Customers The Group engages Daily activities and reports With reliable and safe This assessment helps
customers through . products and continuous identify areas where the
] Joint development programmes : :
training and events product innovation, also Company can strengthen
and supports themvia  Customer support channels in view of environmental its commitment and
dedycateﬂ custcl)mer Support and training network for pterforrrgah;e, Bre(rjnbo eta|mt§ tho;e whfre it cant
service channels Brembo expert professionals at maintaining and protecting  reaffirm its curren
the brand approach
Surveys to identify customers’ needs
and expectations
Corporate website
The Group engages end users
via social networks and customer
service and feedback channels
Engagement survey on the
relevance of material topics for
Brembo
Dedicated events
End users The Group engages Customer support channels The aim is to provide them This assessment helps

end users via social
networks and
customer service and
feedback channels

Corporate website

Monitoring and interaction on social
networks

Feedback from vehicle and
motorbike manufacturers

Participation in trade fairs and
events with engagement activities
for new users and new generations

with safe and reliable
products, information on

the maintenance of braking
systems and customer
support services to fulfil their
needs and expectations

identify areas where the
Company can strengthen
its commitment and
those where it can
reaffirm its current
approach
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Purpose is taken into account Stakeholder Relationships and activities Purpose is taken into account

Brembo The Group counts Global engagement surveys and The aim is to maintain a This assessment helps
people on more than 15,000 Pulse surveys safe, diverse and inclusive identify areas where the
people worldwide with : , work environment, where Company can strengthen
) Industrial Relations ) :
different backgrounds people can pursue personal its commitment and
and experiences Internal communication channels and professional growth. those where it can
(e.g., Red portal, MyB Magazine, The Group has periodic reaffirm its current
Notice boards) discussions on related topics approach
Internal campaigns W|th.the Cpmpany employee
participation body, where
Town Hall meetings applicable
Communication and engagement
regarding Group's objectives and
performance
Suppliers The Group relies on Daily activities and reports The aim is to work This assessment helps
(workers in the contribution of closely with them to identify areas where the
the value : Engagement survey on the , ,
. many suppliers both , : guarantee compliance with Company can strengthen
chain) . relevance of material topics for ) . . .
for raw materials, Brembo environmental requirements, its commitment and
components, indirect production improvements, those where it can
materials and services  Periodical surveys on specific topics safety, quality, production reaffirm its current
Supplier portal continuity, accompanying approach
them towards an increasingly
Dedicated workshops sustainable business
Local The Group Orientation and involvement of The aim of the engagement This assessment helps

communities

contributes to its

local communities

by offering various
engaging activities,
programmes, and
partnerships and
supports local cultural
and social projects

secondary school and university
students, as well as targeted
awareness and recruiting
programmes and initiatives

Relations discussions with the Public
Administration

Plant visits

Social and cultural development
activities

Social media

is to gain insights on how to
support social development
in the communities where
Brembo operates

identify areas where the
Company can strengthen
its commitment and
those where it can
reaffirm its current
approach

Institutions

The Group interacts
with international,
national and local
regulators by
participating in
international and
national associations
and with public
decision-makers

Roundtables and initiatives involving
discussion with institutions, at
national and international level

Hearings before parliamentary
committees by associations

The aim is to ensure
compliance with regulations
and to discuss any relevant
regulation developments
regarding, for example,
automotive non-exhaust
emissions control

This assessment helps
identify areas where the
Company can strengthen
its commitment and
those where it can
reaffirm its current
approach

Future
generations

The Group values

the wellbeing of

the people and
planet while doing
business and devotes
attention to natural
resource preservation,
circular economy
and protection of
ecosystems and
biodiversity

Environmental associations
advocacy and scientific community
analysis campaigns’ monitoring

Orientation and involvement of
secondary schools and university
students and related recruiting
programmes

Launch of targeted engagement
projects

Yearly incubator for innovative ideas
powered by the new generations

The aim is to promote
innovation, environmental
awareness, and talent
development to support
social and environmental
progress

This assessment helps
identify areas where the
Company can strengthen
its commitment and
those where it can
reaffirm its current
approach

Industry
companies
and
competitors

The Group interacts
with industry
companies and
competitors

through advanced
research projects

for pre-competitive
technological research
in the sector

Participation in advanced research
projects through Italian or European
consortia

The aim is to collaborate in
advanced research projects
through Italian or European
consortia to promote shared
innovation and technological
development

This assessment helps
identify areas where the
Company can strengthen
its commitment and
those where it can
reaffirm its current
approach

Insurance The Group interacts Visits to the Group's plants by the The aim is to protect the This assessment helps
companies with insurance insurer for property, environmental, Group from financial identify areas where the
companies to transfer and liability risk assessments disruption especially in case Company can strengthen
the volatility of R - , of catastrophic losses its commitment and
) . oundtables and periodic meetings :
insurable risks those where it can
Engagement survey on the reaffirm its current
relevance of material topics for approach
Brembo
Trade The Group is a Roundtables and initiatives involving ~ The aim is to keep up to This assessment helps

associations

member of many trade
associations around
the world

discussion with institutions, at
national and international levels

Participation in themed committees
of trade associations

Hearings before parliamentary
committees

Engagement survey on the
relevance of material topics for
Brembo

date with best practices and
trends, as well as deepen
insight into emerging topics

identify areas where the
Company can strengthen
its commitment and
those where it can
reaffirm its current
approach
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The interests and views of Brembo’s key stakeholders
have been taken into account in relation to the strategy
and business model. This was done through the impact
materiality assessment process, in which the main
stakeholders expressed their opinions regarding the direct
and indirect impacts of the Group. Moreover, following
the stakeholder engagement on impact materiality, no
changes to Brembo’s strategy and business model have
been identified or are expected.

The administrative, management, and supervisory bodies
are informed about the views and interests of affected
stakeholders with regard to Brembo'’s sustainability-related
impacts through the presentation of the stakeholder
engagement results to the Sustainability Committee and
the Board of Directors.
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Table 4
Financial Time
Value Chain Impact Time horizon horizon
Topic Medium
ESRS  Sub-Topic IRO IRO Name Indirect Short Long
5 Negative Reduction in energy availability due to —
T Impact energy-intensive production processes
(OR
3 Negative Climate change caused by greenhouse -~
MATERIAL |MPACTS, RISKS AND i Impact gas emissions
OPPORTUNITIES AND THEIR INTERACTION % |ncreased exposure to Catastrophic
WITH STRATEGY AND BUSINESS MODEL S events following climate change, and the
= Risk related unavailability of infrastructure, |
Brembo’s business strategy takes into account relevant % physical anclet_eCP“O'og'Ca' (production
impacts and risks, as well as opportunities that may arise. stoppages, [T infrastructure issues)
In particular, as it was already described in section GOV-5, Negative  Reduction in energy availability due to -
the Group has implemented a Risk Assessment process — Impact energy-intensive production processes
based on the risk evaluation carried out in coordination Negative  Climate change caused by greenhouse n
between the risk management function and the function Impact gas emissions
to which the risk is associated. The same procedure Positive Reduction of GHG emissions from end-
applies to all risks, including those related to sustainability users' cars thanks to the development
- : Impact of innovative technologies
aspects, and is updated annually. This process guarantees -} 9
the resilience of Brembo’s strategy to impacts and risks _&% Risk EXterhé" f?FtOFS imposing Chaﬂges/ﬂew
and enhances its ability to take advantage of material v c Sustainability related objectives
opportunities. © % Potential negative outcome from
E 2 Risk sustainability audits conducted by
U iy — .
The following table provide a description of the I = clients
sustainability impacts, risks and opportunities considered " = | Relationship with Clients in connection
material by the Brembo Group following the development & < Risk tob_thet_aCh'eveme”t of Net Zero
of the double materiality analysis on which this Report is g ObJECtVEs
based. c Energy transition of the automotive
O Risk sector and the evolution of regulations H
related to climate change
Rick Extra costs following the purchase of
GHG certificates
. Opportunities related to the growing
Opportunity demand for "green" products
Opportunities to leverage stricter
Ooportunit regulations on performance and
PP Y carbon emissions by improving product
requirements and production processes
- Negative Reduction in energy availability due to -~
ok Impact energy-intensive production processes
)]
0 Negative Climate change caused by greenhouse —

Impact

gas emissions
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Financial Time Financial Time
Value Chain Impact Time horizon horizon Value Chain Impact Time horizon horizon
Topic Medium Topic Medium
ESRS  Sub-Topic IRO IRO Name Direct Indirect Short Medium Long Short Long ESRS  Sub-Topic IRO IRO Name Indirect Short Medium Long Short Long
Negative Emissions of pollutants into the air . . o Potential reduction of local biodiversity
Impact | ‘; e é 45 ? generated within Group's upstream
- < O () o . ;
(& Rick Environmental pollution following an - o U e 2 £ & g g Negative valteehain
ks accidental event x5 ®2 §.235~ Impact
- w .= U =035
2 Compliance with environmental and @ ¢ A
:% Risk chemical regulations, and the ability to H
o grasp changes 2 , Depletion of natural resources due
_ . = Negative . £ Sls in th
Risk Potential regulatory non-conformity of a - E Impact to the use of raw materials in the
Brembo product 2 . production process
=
. Negative Pollution of water resources - 2 o Positive Saving of primary materials thanks
= Impact 2 e to the use of recycled and recyclable
= : : . g £5 Impact materials
45 Rick Environmental pollution following an B CE, v 3 !
: Q v
S S accidental event S = Risk related to the unavailability of raw
= 5 Compliance with environmental and 2 % Risk materials/components caused by a
S S Risk chemical requlations, and the ability to | -g o geopolitical situation
& grasp changes L . . _
~ _ _ _ O g C Saving of primary materials thanks
L _ Rick Enwronmental pollution following an x - 9 % 5 . to the use of recycled and recyclable
& 3 accidental event I = S 2 Positive materials
18] . . . [
ks Compliance with environmental and 5 v %'8 @ impact
_5 Risk chemical regulations, and the ability to [ ‘XFE o
= grasp changes o =
o- Risk Risk - Acquisition of a company with 0 g Negative Soil occupation and pollution due to
polluted subsoil é Imgact non-virtuous waste management and a
- Compliance with environmental risk
c g and chemical regulations, and the ability
38 < Risk ' ] Negative Potential Injuries and/or occupational
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Financial Time Financial Time
Value Chain Impact Time horizon horizon Value Chain Impact Time horizon horizon
Topic Medium Topic Medium
ESRS  Sub-Topic IRO IRO Name Direct Indirect Short Medium Long Short Long ESRS  Sub-Topic IRO IRO Name Indirect Short Medium Long Short Long
£ é Violation of human rights, failure to % — Negative Failure to respect equal opportunities in -
g c Negative respect equal opportunities in the c c® Impact the workplace
o — . — -
" 2= Impact workplace, failure to protect employees’ =2 O _
@ S O P pr' P Py % -% O) T o Transparency and supply chain
oS WeTbeing 52 €= Positive involvement in sustainable practices
© ) o :'5 H E . . p .
o> Positive Development of skills and know-how - =55 O S Impact through monitoring and training
§ S Impact through specific training activities ﬁl g= E g programs
o . . . . Q— H | H H 1
< Violation of human rights, failure to g 80 Rk Suppliers' compliance with Brembo's B
So Negative respect equal opportunities in the L "sustainable procurement policy"
=) w0 : ’ -
g c £ Impact Workpl'ace, failure to protect employees A R g Impacts on the social growth of local
X Z wellbeing 22 Z2EcO areas and communities
) S IS DEE SE = positive
= % Negative Breach of privacy and loss of sensitive - v = g c g Impact
% < Impact employee data < g 50 Q=
w 0 o ) (@}
- g Potential negative outcome from
2 Risk sustainability audits conducted by ] 0 ISR Negative Consumer safety due to product non-
3] clients Q 27T ,  Impact conformities
- S Lo 5
+ 1 (4] Q
O Cyberattack causing system S v g g Positive Increased end-user safety through
Risk unavailability, information loss, and L o cEQ impact the implementation of innovative
extortion = g g v technologies in products
wn e . T
é Negative Workers' injuries and/or occupational . E o O Risk Product liability and safety recalls
c = Impact diseases 7 S n - Potential errors in external and internal
< S |Negative Violation of human rights - § g 2 é communications
mpact o S ,
3 8 P ler) £ & Risk
X . . . — -
S 5 Rick Suppliers' compliance with Brembo's - % 0 S kS
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et ©
c . . . .
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v T = | D n i i
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o e 2 = 55 suppliers
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~ © L . H — O C & © |mpact
(7 QS Impact through monitoring and training 3 © oY GE)
2 =5 programs S =3 %%
w % Q o , . , v - n 9
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In 2023, the Group had already assessed an internal
exercise to prepare for the new double materiality
assessment but the Non-Financial Information "NFI"

for the Fiscal Year 2023 were prepared in accordance
with the requirements of the GRI-2021 Standard of the
Global Reporting Initiative. However, within the limits in
which two different methodologies can be compared, no
significant discrepancies were found in relation to that
exercise.

For the current reporting year, Brembo has identified risks
In accordance with the ERM methodology. No risks with a
high probability of occurrence were identified on the short
or medium-long term. All identified risks are considered

to be potential, as a consequence Brembo do not disclose
current financial effects for the reporting year. The group
has implemented actions to mitigate its impacts, risks, and
opportunities, which are described in detail in the sections
dedicated to the ESRS topics.

DESCRIPTION OF THE PROCESS TO
IDENTIFY AND ASSESS MATERIAL IMPACTS,
RISKS AND OPPORTUNITIES

To define the material sustainability topics and,
consequently, the contents of this sustainability report, the
Brembo Group conducted a double materiality analysis,
detailed below.

In accordance with the requirements of the Corporate
Sustainability Reporting Directive (CSRD), the Brembo
Group conducted a Double Materiality exercise following
the European Sustainability Reporting Standards (ESRS).
This exercise serves as the starting point for identifying
material topics through the identification of impacts,
risks, and opportunities (hereinafter referred to as "IROs")

that the Brembo Group generates for stakeholders, the
environment, and people, as well as the effects arising

from the environment and society that the Group itself
faces. The adopted approach allowed for the structured and
systematic identification of the main IROs related to the
most relevant environmental, social, and governance topics
for the Group's direct operations and along its value chain.

The Double Materiality analysis is based on Brembo
enterprise risk management procedures, including due
diligence, and involves active engagement with both
internal and external stakeholders.

The ESRS Standard establishes that a sustainability

topic can be material from one or both of the following

perspectives:
Impact perspective: A sustainability topic is material
when it concerns the actual or potential, positive or
negative impacts of the company on people or the
environment in the short, medium, and long term.
These impacts can arise from activities conducted
under the direct control of the company as well as
along its value chain.

Financial perspective: A sustainability topic is material
If It causes or may cause significant financial effects

for the company, whether negative (risks) or positive
(opportunities). These risks and opportunities can arise
from activities conducted under the direct control of the
company as well as along its value chain.

Therefore, to define the material sustainability topics, the
Group conducted a double materiality analysis, detailed
below.

The double materiality assessment is a continuous process
that covers all of Brembo’s business areas and sectors.

As a dynamic process, it may be influenced over time
by changes in business structure, shifts in stakeholder
expectations, requlatory changes, advancements in risk
management, or other company needs.

IMPACT MATERIALITY

To define the material sustainability topics, the Brembo
Group started with the identification and assessment
of the impacts Brembo and its value chain generate on
people and the environment.

This process was divided into the following phases:

1. Understanding the context in which the Group operates,
including in terms of activities performed, business
relationships, and geographies.

In defining the Group's material impacts on people and
the environment, the following were considered:
All production activities performed, as detailed in the
previous paragraph “Disclosure Requirement SBM-T —
Strategy, business model and value chain”.
The most significant business relationships of the
Brembo Group, as detailed in the previous paragraph
“Disclosure Requirement SBM-1 — Strategy, business
model and value chain”.

2. ldentification of the actual and potential impacts of the
Group, also through engagement with its stakeholders.

Brembo has conducted specific stakeholder engagement
activities in order to receive their input on material
impacts. The engagement of internal and external
stakeholders within the Group has been fundamental to
the sustainability approach, allowing management to

identify material topics and define a sustainability strategy
aimed at the continuous improvement of performance. For
a detailed overview of the Brembo Group's stakeholders
and the methods of engagement, please refer to the
previous paragraph.”Disclosure Requirement SBM-2 —
Interests and views of stakeholders”.

3. Assessment of the relevance of the impacts and their
prioritization

Regarding the assessment and prioritization of negative and
positive impacts, two different evaluation scales were used:

Negative impacts Positive impacts

Negative impacts were
prioritized based on their
likelihood of occurrence and
their severity, determined by
the combination of:

Positive impacts were
prioritized based on their
likelihood of occurrence, as
well as their Scale and the
scope in which they manifest

* Scale
* Scope

* Irremediability

In general, Scale indicates how severe an impact is; Scope
indicates the breadth of the impact in terms of the stages
of the value chain in which it occurs, while Irremediability
indicates how difficult it is to remedy a negative impact.

In the case of negative impacts, whether potential or
actual, that influence or could influence human rights,
these were assessed in a manner that prioritizes the
severity of the impact over its likelihood. Therefore,

If @ negative impact has a low probability of occurrence
but high severity, the assessment is still considered at the
maximum level.
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Finally, the Brembo Group has divided impacts into four
levels of relevance (as combination of magnitude and
likelihood): not relevant, moderate, high, and very relevant.
All the impacts that resulted as moderate ore above have
been considered material.

For more details regarding the time horizons, please
refer to chapter BP-2 Disclosures in relation to specific
circumstances.

For more information on the impacts identified by the
Brembo Group, please refer to Table 4 in the Disclosure
Requirement SBM-3 - Material impacts, risks, and
opportunities and their interaction with strategy and
business model.

FINANCIAL MATERIALITY

The next phase involved the analysis of Financial
Materiality, for which an outside-in approach was adopted.

The analysis was conducted using two key documents
from Sustainability & Risk GCF: the ERM Report and the
Climate Change Risk Assessment (CCRA). After examining
all the risks listed in the documents, including physical and
transitional risks that may affect the Group, those relevant
to sustainability issues were selected. Similar risks were
grouped together, and the aggregated risk was assigned
the highest score among those given by Brembo to the
individual risks.

The process of identifying, assessing, and managing

15 Sustainability Accounting Standards Board.
16 Morgan Stanley Capital International.
17 Standard & Poor's Global.

risks is closely integrated into the Group's Enterprise Risk
Management (ERM) system, in line with best practices and
international standards. The results of the ERM process
are reqularly reported to Top Management, the Control
and Risk Committee, the Sustainability Committee, and
the Board of Directors (BoD) on a quarterly basis, ensuring
constant oversight and effective strategic alignment.

At the same time, a desk analysis was used to map

and evaluate potentially relevant sustainability-related
opportunities. This process included a comparative study
of the best practices of peers and competitors, as well as a
thorough analysis of the Group's internal documentation
and strategic objectives. The work was supported by
recognized national and international sources, such

as SASB™, MSCI'® and the S&P Global Sustainability
Yearbook. In this case, since opportunities are not mapped
in the ERM, only those present in the CCRA and those
identified through the desk analysis were considered.

The analysis was then integrated with risks and
opportunities arising from Brembo’s impacts and
dependencies I.e. close relationships and interconnections
between the Group suppliers, customers, resources,
requlations, or other external entities on which Brembo
relies for its operations and the achievement of its
objectives.

Once all potential risks and opportunities were mapped,
the evaluation process was conducted by aligning the
methodology followed by the Group's ERM function with
the guidelines of the ESRS. Specifically, the evaluation

of risks and opportunities was carried out based on the

following two parameters:

= Magnitude, meaning the impact of the occurrence of
the risk or opportunity on the Group's activities. The
rating scale varies from irrilevant to critical;

= Likelihood: the probability of the risk occurring. The
rating scale varies from remote to high.

For more details regarding the time horizons, please
refer to chapter BP-2 Disclosures in relation to specific
circumstances.

Unlike the criteria used for materiality thresholds

In impact materiality, risks and opportunities have

been divided into four level of magnitude: Irrelevant,
moderate, relevant and critical (in accordance with ERM
methodology). Only risks and opportunities with Relevant
and Critical magnitude have been identified as material
regardless of their likelihood.

For more information on the risks and opportunities
identified by the Brembo Group, please refer to Table 4

In the Disclosure Requirement SBM-3 - Material impacts,
risks, and opportunities and their interaction with strategy
and business model.
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DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS
IN ESRS COVERED BY SUSTAINABILITY
STATEMENTS
Table 5
Topic ESRS Disclosure Requirement page Topic ESRS Disclosure Requirement page
BP-1 General basis for preparation of the sustainability statement 40 E2 IRO-1  Description of the processes to identify and assess material pollution-related impacts, 88
. . : . risks and opportunities
BP-2 Disclosures in relation to specific circumstances 40
. , , , E2-1 Policies related to pollution 88
GOV-1 The role of the administrative, management and supervisory bodies 40
: E2-2 Actions and resources related to pollution 89
GOV-2 Information provided to and sustainability matters addressed by the Group’s 42 E2 - Pollution P
administrative, management and supervisory bodies E2-3 Targets related to pollution 89
GOV-3 Integration of sustainability-related performance in incentive schemes 42 E2-4 Pollution of air, water, and soil 90
GOvV-4 Statement on due diligence 43 E2-5 Substances of concern and substances of very high concern 91
2 - General GOV-5 Risk management and internal controls over sustainability reporting 43 E3IRO-1  Description of the processes to identify and assess material water and marine 91
Disclosure _ _ resources-related impacts, risks and opportunities
SBM-1 Strateqgy, business model and value chain 44
_ E3-1 Policies related to water and marine resources 91
SBM-2 Interests and views of stakeholders 45 E3 - Water and
L , . . , , marine resources E3-2 Actions and resources related to water and marine resources 92
SBM-3 Material impacts, risks and opportunities and their interaction with strategy 47
and business model E3-3 Targets related to water and marine resources 92
IRO-1 Description of the processes to identify and assess material impacts. risks and 50 E3-4 Water consumption 93
opportunities N . . . . .
E4-1 Transition plan and consideration of biodiversity and ecosystems in strategy 93
IRO-2 Disclosure Requirements in ESRS covered by the Group’s sustainability 52 and business model
statement
E4 SBM-3  Biodiversity impacts, risks and opportunities and their interaction with strategy 94
E1 GOV-3 Integration of sustainability-related performance in incentive schemes 77 and business model
E1 SBM-3  Climate change impacts, risks and opportunities and their interaction with strategy 77 E4 - Biodiversity E4 IRO-1  Description of the processes to identify and assess material biodiversity and ecosystem- 94
and business model and ecosystems related impacts, risks, dependencies and opportunities
E1IRO-1  Description of the processes to identify and assess material climate-related impacts, 78 E4-2 Policies related to biodiversity and ecosystems 94
risks and opportunities . L .
E4-3 Actions and resources related to biodiversity and ecosystems 94
E1-1 Transition plan for climate change mitigation 79 o _
E4-4 Targets related to biodiversity and ecosystems 94
- Cli E1-2 Policies related to climate change mitigation and adaptation 79
I(E:’:‘a:hemate 0 0 P ES IRO-1  Description of the processes to identify and assess material resource use and circular 95
9 E1-3 Actions and resources in relation to climate change policies 80 economy-related impacts, risks and opportunities
E1-4 Targets related to climate change mitigation or adaptation 81 E5-1 Policies related to resource use and the circular economy 95
E1-5 Energy consumption and mix 83 E5 - Circular E5-2 Actions and resources related to resource use and the circular economy 95
economy
E1-6 Gross Scopes 1, 2, 3 and Total GHG emissions 384 E5-3 Targets related to resource use and the circular economy 96
E1-7 GHG removals and GHG mitigation projects financed through carbon credits 88 E5-4 Resource inflows 96
E1-8 Internal carbon pricing 88 E5-5 Resource outflows 97
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Topic ESRS Disclosure Requirement page Topic ESRS Disclosure Requirement page
S1SBM-3  Own workforce impacts, risks and opportunities and their interaction with strategy 100 S3 SBM-3  Affected communities impacts, risks and opportunities and their interaction with 113
and business model strategy and business model
S1-1 Policies related to own workforce 100 S3-1 Policies related to affected communities 113
S1-2 Processes for engaging with own workers and workers' representatives about impacts 102 s3 - Affected S3-2 Processes for engaging with affected communities about impacts 113
S1-3 Processes to remediate negative impacts and channels for own workers to raise concerns 103 communities S3-3 Processes to remediate negative impacts and channels for affected communities 114
to raise concerns
S1-4 Taking action on material impacts risks and opportunities on own workeforce 103
1.5 Targets related to impacts, risks and opportunities on own workeforce 105 S3-4 Taking action on material impacts risks and opportunities on affected communities 114
- | g uniti wn w
16 h teristics of the G , | 106 S3-5 Targets related to material impacts, risks and opportunities on affected communities 118
- aracteristics of the Group’s employees
51 _|2cwn n <tics of | cers in th , o S4 SBM-3  Consumers and end-users impacts, risks and opportunities and their interaction with 118
workforce S1-7 Characteristics of non-employee workers in the Group’s own workforce 107 strategy and business model
S1-8 Collective bargaining coverage and social dialogue 107 S4-1 Policies related to consumers and end-users 118
51-3 Diversity metrics 108 54-2 Processes for engaging with consumers and end-users about impacts 119
S4 - Consumers
>1-10 Adequate wages 108 and end-users S4-3 Processes to remediate negative impacts and channels for consumers 119
S1-13 Training and skills development metrics 108 and end-users to raise concerns
S1-14 Health and safety metrics 108 S4-4 Taking action on material impacts, risks and opportunities on consumers and end-users 120
S1-16 Compensation metrics (pay gap and total compensation) 109 S4-5 Targets related to material impacts, risks and opportunities on consumers and 120
end-users
S1-17 Incidents, complaints and severe human rights impacts 109
G1 GOV-1 Role of administrative, supervisory and management bodies 122
S2 SBM-3  Workers in the value chain impacts, risks and opportunities and their interaction with 109
strategy and business model G1IRO-1  Description of processes to identify and assess material impacts, risks and opportunities 123
S2-1 Policies related to value chain workers 110 G1-1 Business conduct policies and corporate culture 123
G1 - Business . . . .
S2 - Workers S2-2 Processes for engaging with value chain workers about impacts 111 conduct G1-2 Management of relationships with suppliers 126
in the value : : . .
chain S2-3 Processes to remediate negative impacts and channels for value chain workers to raise 111 G1-3 Prevention and detection of corruption and bribery 127
concerns G1-4 Incidents of corruption or bribery 128
S2-4 Taking action on material impacts, risks and opportunities on the value chain 111 G1-6 Payment practices 128
S2-5 Targets related to material impacts, risks and opportunities on the value chain 112
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At the conclusion of the double materiality analysis, the The following table also provides information included Benchmark EU Climate
disclosure requirements identified in the table below in this Notice derived from other legislative acts of the Disclosure . SFDR Pillar 3 Regulation Law Material
were deemed material, with the pages containing this European Union in relation to Delegated Regulation Requirement  Datapoint reference reference reference reference (yes/no)  page
information highlighted. 2023/5303 on the European Sustainability Reporting ESRS 2 40 (d) iv Delegated Regulation no 44
Standards, with an indication of the pages where they are SBM-1 Involvemnent in (EU) 202071818,
located: achU_es r_elated Article 1.2 Delegated
to cultivation Reqgulation (EU)
and roduction of 2020/1816, Annex |l
tobacco
Table 6
Benchmark EU Climate ESRS E1-1 14 Regulation yes 79
Disclosure SFDR Pillar 3 Regulation Law Material Transition plan (EU)
Requirement Datapoint reference reference reference reference (yes/no) page to reach climate 2021/1119,
ESRS 2 21 (d) Indicator number Commission yes 40 neutrality by Article 2(1)
GOV-1 Board's gender 13 of Table #1 of Delegated Regulation 2050
diversity Annex 1 (EV) 202071816, ESRS E1-1 16 () Article 449a Delegated Regulation yes 79
Annex |l Companies Regulation (EU) No (EU) 2020/1818,
ESRS 2 21 (e) Delegated Regulation yes 41 excluded from 575/2013; Commission  Article12.1 (d) to (q),
GOV-1 Percentage of (EU) 2020/1816, Paris-aligned Implementing and Article 12.2
board members Annex || Benchmarks Regulation (EU)
who are 2022/2453 Template 1:
independent Banking book-Climate
Change transition
ESRS 2 30 Indicator number yes 43 risk: Credit quality of
GOv-4 Statement on 10 Table #3 of exposures by sector,
due diligence Annex 1 emissions and residual
ESRS 2 40 (d) i Indicators number  Article 449a Delegated Regulation no 44 maturity
SBM-1 Involvement in 4 Table #1 of Annex  Regulation (EU) (EU) 2020/1816, ESRS E1-4 34 Indicator number 4 Article 449a Delegated Regulation yes 81
activities related No 575/2013; Annex || GHG emission Table #2 of Annex 1 Regulation (EU) No (EU) 2020/1818,
to fossil fuel Commission reduction targets 575/2013; Commission  Article 6
activities Implementing Implementing
Regulation (EU) Reqgulation (EU)
2022/2453 Table 1: 2022/2453 Template 3:
Qualitative information Banking book - Climate
on Environmental risk change transition risk:
and Table 2: alignment metrics
OQrL]Jeélg)tggT/fi;r;formann ESRS E1-5 38 Indicator number 5 yes 83
Energy Table #1 and
ESRS 2 40 (d) ii Indicator number 9 Delegated Regulation no 44 consumption Indicator n. 5 Table
SBM-1 Involvement in Table #2 of Annex 1 (EU) 2020/1816, from fossil #2
activities related Annex || sources of Annex 1
to chemical disaggregated
production by sources (only
: : high climate
ESRS 2 40 (d) iii ' Indicator number Delegated Regulation no 44 impact sectors)
SBM-1 Involvement in 14 Table #1 of (EU) 2020/1818 (29),
activities related Annex 1 Article 12 ESRS E1-5 37 Indicator number 5 yes 83
to controversial Delegated Regulation Energy Table #1 of Annex 1
weapon (EU) 2020/1816, consumption
Annex I and mix
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Benchmark EU Climate Benchmark EU Climate
Disclosure SFDR Pillar 3 Regulation Law Material Disclosure SFDR Pillar 3 Regulation Law Material
Requirement Datapoint reference reference reference reference (yes/no) page Requirement Datapoint reference reference reference reference (yes/no)  page
ESRS E1-5 40 to 43 Indicator number 6 yes 83 ESRS E1-9 66 (C) Article 449a Regulation no phased-
Energy intensity Table #1 of Annex 1 Disaggregation (EU) No 575/2013; in
associated with of monetary Commission
activities in high amounts by Implementing
climate impact acute and chronic Regulation (EU)
sectors physical risk 2022/2453 paragraphs
ESRS E1-6 44 Indicators number  Article 4493; Delegated Reqgulation yes 84 Egc(jt)ion of ggr?l?iggélg,cgekn—w%ll?r'tr?a?e
Gross Scope 1, 1 and 2 Table #1 Reqgulation (EU) No (EU) 2020/1818, N : _
2,3 of Annex 1 575/2013; Commission  Article 5(1), 6 and 8(1) significant assets change physical risk
’ » ' at material Exposures subject to
and Total GHG Implementing ohysical risk ohysical risk
emissions Regulation (EU) '
2022/2453 Template 1: ESRS E1-9 67 (C) Article 449a Reqgulation no phased-
Banking book - Climate Breakdown of the (EU) No 575/2013; in
change transition carrying value Commission
risk: Credit quality of of its real estate Implementing
exposures by sector, assets by energy- Regulation (EU)
emissions and residual efficiency classes 2022/2453 paragraph
maturity paragraph 34, Template 2:Banking
ESRS E1-6 53to 55 Indicators number  Article 449a Regulation  Delegated Regulation yes 86 book.—.C||m§te change
Gross GHG 3 Table #1 of (EU) No 575/2013; (EU) 2020/1818, transition risk: Loans
emissions Annex 1 Commission Article 8(1) ;ollaterahsed by
intensity Implementing |mmovab|¢ property -
Regulation (EU) Energy efficiency of the
2022/2453 Template 3: collateral
Banking book - Climate ESRS E1-9 69 Delegated Reqgulation no phased-
change transition risk: Degree of (EU) 2020/1818, in
alignment metrics exposure Annex |
FSRSE1-7 56 Regulation  yes 88 of the portfolio to
GHG removals (EV) climate- r.el'ated
and carbon 2021/1119, opportunities
credits Article 2(1) ESRS E2-4 28 Indicator number 8 no 90
: Amount of each Table #1 of Annex 1
S Egposure of ([Eeul)egtheO%RéBigSUlatlon no i;;hased- pollutant listed Indicator number 2
the benchmark Annex ] Delega,ted in Annex Il of the Table #2 of Annex 1
: : E-PRTR Regulation  Indicator number 1
portfoho Regulation (EV) (European Table #2 of Annex 1
to clmatg—related 2020/1816, Annex |l Pollutant Release Indicator number 3
physical risks and Transfer Table #2 of Annex 1
Register) emitted
to air, water and
soil
ESRS E3-1 9 Indicator number 7 yes 91
Water and marine  Table #2 of Annex 1
resources
ESRS E3-1 13 Indicator number 8 yes 91

Dedicated policy

Table 2 of Annex 1
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Benchmark EU Climate Benchmark EU Climate
Disclosure SFDR Pillar 3 Regulation Law Material Disclosure SFDR Pillar 3 Regulation Law Material
Requirement Datapoint reference reference reference reference (yes/no) page Requirement Datapoint reference reference reference reference (yes/no)  page
ESRS E3-1 14 Indicator number yes 92 ESRS 2- 14 (q) Indicator number yes 100
Sustainable 12 Table #2 of SBM3 - S1 Risk of incidents 12 Table #3 of
oceans and seas Annex 1 of child labour Annex |
ESRS E3-4 28 (c) Total water Indicator number yes 93 ESRS S1-1 20 Indicator number yes 101
recycled and 6.2 Table #2 of Human 9 Table #3 and
reused Annex 1 rights policy Indicator number
ESRS E3-4 29 Indicator number yes 93 commitments 1A1 Tablle #1 of
Total water 6.1 Table #2 of nnex
consumptioninm3  Annex 1 ESRS S1-1 1 to 8, paragraph Delegated Regulation yes 101
per net revenue on 21 (EU) 2020/1816,
own operations Due diligence Annex ||
ESRS 2- 16 (a)i Indicator number 7 yes 94 polpes
SBM 3 - E4 Table #1 of Annex 1 ofl 15sues
addressed by
ESRS 2- 16 (b) Indicator number yes 94 the fundamental
SBM 3 -E4 10 Table #2 of International
Annex 1 Labor
ESRS 2- 16 () Indicator number yes 94 Organization
SBM 3 - E4 14 Table #2 of Conventions
Annex 1 ESRS S1-1 22 Indicator number yes 101
FSRSE4-2 24 (b) Indicator number yes 94 processes and 11 Table #3 of
Sustainable land 11 Table #2 of measures for Annex |
/ agriculture Annex 1 preventing
practices .trafﬂckmg |
or policies in human beings
ESRS E4-2 24 (c) Indicator number yes 94 ESRS S1-1 23 Indicator number 1 yes 102
Sustainable 12 Table #2 of workplace Table #3 of Annex |
oceans / seas Annex 1 accident
practices prevention policy
or policies or management
t
ESRS E4-2 24 (d) Indicator number yes 94 >Y>tem
Policies to 15 Table #2 of ESRS S1-3 32 (c) Indicator number 5 yes 103
address Annex 1 grievance/ Table #3 of Annex |
deforestation complaints
ESRSE55 37 (d) Indicator number yes 97 ha”?}"”g_
Non-recycled 13 Table #2 of mechanisms
waste Annex 1 ESRSS1-14 88 (b) and () Indicator number 2 Delegated Regulation yes 108
ESRS E5-5 39 |ndicator number 9 yeS 97 Number Of Table #3 Of Annex | (EU) 2020/181 6,
Hazardous waste  Table #1 of Annex 1 fatalities Annex |l
and radioactive and number and
waste rate of work-
: related accidents
ESRS 2- 14 (f) Indicator number yes 100
SBM3 - S1 Risk of incidents 13 Table #3 of

of forced labour

Annex |
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Benchmark EU Climate Benchmark EU Climate
Disclosure SFDR Regulation Law Material Disclosure SFDR Pillar 3 Regulation Law Material
Requirement Datapoint reference reference reference reference (yes/no) page Requirement Datapoint reference reference reference reference (yes/no)  page
ESRS S1- 88 (e) Indicator number 3 yes 108 ESRS S2-1 19 Indicator number Delegated Reqgulation yes 110
14 Number of days Table #3 of Annex | Non-respect 10 Table #1 of (EU) 2020/1816,
lost to injuries, of UNGPs on Annex 1 Annex Il Delegated
accidents, Business and Reqgulation (EU)
fatalities or Human Rights 2020/1818, Art 12 (1)
illness principles
: ) and OECD
ESRSS1-16 97 (a) Indicator number Delegated Regulation yes 109 guidelines
Unadjusted 12 Table #1 of (EU) 2020/1816,
gender Annex | Annex || ESRS S2-1 1 to 8, paragraph Delegated Reqgulation yes 110
pay gap 19 (EU) 2020/1816,
: Due diligence Annex ||
ESRSS1-16 97 (b) Indicator number 8 yes 109 oolicies on issues
ExceSS|_ve CEO Table #3 of Annex | addressed by
pay ratio the fundamental
ESRSS1-17 103 (a) Indicator number 7 yes 109 International
Incidents of Table #3 of Annex | Labor o
discrimination Organization
Conventions
ESRSS1-17 104 (a) Indicator number Delegated Regulation yes 109
Non-respect 10 Table #1 and (EU) 2020/1816, ESRS52-4 36 Indicator number yes 112
of UNGPs on Indicator n. 14 Table Annex Il Delegated Human rights 14 Table #3 of
Business and #3 Regulation (EU) issues and Annex 1
Human Rights of Annex | 2020/1818 Art 12 (1) incidents
and OECD connected to its
Guidelines upstream and
downstream
ESRS 2- 11 (b) Indicators number yes 110 value chain
SBM3 - S2 Significant risk of 12 and n. 13 Table
child labour or #3 ESRS S3-1 Human Indicator number 9 no 113
forced labour in of Annex | rights policy Table #3 of Annex 1
the value chain commitments and Indicator
number 11 Table #1
ESRS S2-1 17 Indicator number yes 110 of Annex 1
Human 9 Table #3 and ) :
rights policy indicator n. 11 Table ESRS S3-1 17 Indicator number Delegated Reqgulation no 113
commitments #1 non-respect 10 Table #1 of (EU) 2020/1816,
of Annex 1 of UNGPs on Annex 1 Annex Il Delegated
Business and Reqgulation (EU)
ESRS S2-1 18 Indicator number yes 110 Human Rights, 2020/1818, Art 12 (1)
Policies related 11 and n. 4 Table #3 ILO principles or
to value chain of Annex 1 OECD guidelines
workers
ESRS S3-4 36 Indicator number no 114

Human rights
issues
and incidents

14 Table #3 of
Annex 1
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Disclosure SFDR Pillar 3 Regulation Law Material
Requirement Datapoint reference reference reference reference (yes/no)  page
ESRS S4-1 16 Indicator number yes 119
Policies related 9 Table #3 and
to consumers Indicator number
and end-users 11 Table #1 of
Annex 1
ESRS S4-1 17 Indicator number Delegated Regulation yes 119
Non-respect 10 Table #1 of (EU) 2020/1816,
of UNGPs on Annex 1 Annex Il Delegated
Business and Reqgulation (EU)
Human Rights 2020/1818, Art 12 (1)
and OECD
guidelines
ESRS S4-4 35 Indicator number yes 120
Human rights 14 Table #3 of
issues a Annex 1
nd incidents
ESRS G1-1 10 (b) Indicator number 123
United Nations 15 Table #3 of
Convention Annex 1
against
Corruption
ESRS G1-1 10 (d) Indicator number 6 yes 126
Protection of Table #3 of Annex 1
whistle- blowers
ESRS G1-4 24 (a) Indicator number Delegated Regulation yes 128
Fines for 17 Table #3 of (EU) 2020/1816,
violation of anti- Annex 1 Annex Il)
corruption and
anti-bribery laws
ESRS G1-4 24 (b) Indicator number yes 128

Standards of
anti- corruption
and anti- bribery
paragraph

16 Table #3 of
Annex 1
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E1. Climate Change
-Energy

E3. Water and Marine Resources

-Water

E4. Biodiversity and ecosystems
-Direct impact drivers of
biodiversity loss

ES. Circular economy

-Resource outflows, products and
materials

-Waste
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S1. Own workforce

-Working conditions — All (Excl.
Health and safety)

-Equal treatment and
opportunities for all

S3. Affected Communities
-Communities’ economic, social
and cultural rights

G1. Business Conduct
-Management of relationships
with suppliers including
payment practices

E1. Climate Change
-Climate change adaptation
-Climate change mitigation

E2. Pollution
-Pollution of air
-Pollution of water

ES. Circular economy
-Resources inflows, including
resource use

S1. Own workforce
-Working Conditions - Health and
safety

E2. Pollution

-Pollution of soil
-Substances of concern
-Substances of high concern

S2. Workers in the value chain
-Other work-related rights -
Privacy

-Other work-related rights
- Child labour, forced labour,
privacy

S2. Workers in the value chain
-Working conditions

-Equal treatment and
opportunities for all

-Other work-related rights —
Child labour, forced labour

S4. Consumers and end-users
-Personal safety of consumers
and/or end-users

-Health and safety

S4. Consumers and End Users
-Social inclusion of consumers
and/or end-users

-Responsible marketing practices

G1. Business Conduct
-Corruption and bribery
-Corporate culture

Financial Materiality

v
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3.2 TAXONOMY

THE EU TAXONOMY REGULATION
(No. 2020/852)

In alignment with the goals of the UN 2030 Agenda

and the objective of achieving climate neutrality by 2050,
the European Union has established a series of strategies
and initiatives aimed at directing capital flows toward
Investments in assets and activities deemed sustainable.
To support this effort, European institutions introduced
Regulation (EU) 2020/852 (hereafter referred to as the
“Reqgulation”), which provides reliable and standardized
criteria and tools for identifying sustainable economic
activities. This Regulation also enhances the comparability
for financial institutions and investors regarding the
environmental sustainability of investments associated
with those activities.

In particular, the Regulation introduced a unified
classification system, known as a “taxonomy,” for economic
activities. To qualify as “environmentally sustainable/”
these activities must contribute to achieving one or more
of the following six environmental objectives:

Climate change mitigation

Climate change adaptation

The sustainable use and protection of water
and marine resources

The transition to a circular economy
Pollution prevention and control

The protection and restoration of biodiversity
and ecosystems.

Specifically, the Regulation categorizes economic activities
into two classifications:

= taxonomy-eligible: an economic activity is considered
taxonomy-eligible if it is listed in the delegated acts

of the Regulation and corresponds to one or more
environmental objectives. If an activity is taxonomy-
eligible, it has the potential to make a substantial
contribution to the relevant objective.

= taxonomy-aligned: an economic activity is classified
as taxonomye-aligned if, in addition to being
taxonomy-eligible, it complies with the technical
screening criteria and minimum safeguards outlined
in the Requlation. To achieve this classification, the
activity must:

meet the substantial contribution criteria
defined by the Requlation for each activity, which
scientifically describe the conditions necessary to
significantly contribute to the achievement of the
environmental objectives;

adhere to the “Do No Significant Harm” (DNSH)
principle, ensuring that the activity does not cause
significant harm to any of the other environmental
objectives to which it does not substantially
contribute;

comply with minimum safeguards that ensure
respect for human rights and adherence to
international legislation regarding workers’ rights,

taxation, fair competition, and anti-bribery measures.

If an activity is taxonomy-aligned, it may qualify as
“environmentally sustainable.” Article 8 of the Regulation
outlines the reporting obligations within the Taxonomy,
which currently apply to non-financial companies subject
to the Non-Financial Reporting Directive. Since the
Regulation came into force, it has been progressively
supplemented and expanded to include new sectors and
activities. For example, the publication of the Commission
Delegated Regulation (EU) 2023/2485 introduced several
amendments to the Climate Delegated Act, incorporating
new activities and technical screening criteria.

Companies are required to report the proportion of
turnover, operating expenditure (OpEx), and capital
expenditure (CapEXx) related to taxonomy-eligible activities
in relation to all six environmental objectives defined

by the “Environmental Delegated Act” (Commission
Delegated Regulation (EU) 2023/2486) and the “Climate
Delegated Act” (Commission Delegated Regulation (EU)
2021/2139) and its amendments.

COMPLIANCE ASSESSMENT WITH THE
REGULATION

In line with the analysis performed during the previous
reporting period, in 2024 the Brembo Group evaluated
the effective contributions of its taxonomy-eligible
economic activities to the six specified objectives

and determined which of these activities can also be
classified as taxonomy-aligned. Additionally, Brembo
conducted a mapping of CapEx and OpEx associated
with the purchase of products or services related to
taxonomye-eligible and/or taxonomy-aligned economic
activities, as well as individual measures aimed at
maintaining low levels of emissions.

ELIGIBILITY ANALYSIS

The analysis led to the identification of the following
economic activities conducted by Brembo that are
associated with climate change objectives:

= 3.8 Manufacture of Aluminium: This includes the
capital expenditure (CapEx) and operating expenditure
(OpEx) related to the casting of aluminium performed
by Brembo, contributing to climate change mitigation.

= 3.9 Manufacture of Iron and Steel: This encompasses
the CapEx and OpEx associated with cast iron casting
performed by Brembo, also aimed at climate change
mitigation objective.

= 3.18 Manufacture of automotive and mobility
components: This refers to the CapEx, OpEx and
Turnover linked to the manufacture and upgrading
of mobility components for zero-emission personal
mobility devices and of automotive and mobility
systems which are essential for delivering and
Improving the environmental performance of the
vehicle.” It is noted that the Brembo Group, in the
context of this activity, anticipates a turnover of zero
due to the current challenges in making such an
estimate. This decision arises from the need to enhance
its methodologies for calculating and categorising
regenerative braking systems and brakes with drag
reduction technologies available in the market.

Additionally, an analysis was conducted regarding CapEx
and OpEx related to the purchase of products or services
associated with taxonomy-eligible economic activities

and individual measures that enable these activities to
reduce their emissions. In this instance, the assessment
methodology was refined compared to the previous
Sustainability Report to ensure that the classification of
eligible activities for 2024 is more accurately aligned with
Brembo’s core operations, differing from the classifications

18 Compared to 2023, activity 9.1 Close to Market Research, development, and innovation was not considered relevant to Brembo as the amendments to the Climate
Delegated Act introduced activity 3.18 Manufacture of automotive and mobility components, which includes both manufacture, repair, maintenance, retrofitting,
repurposing and upgrade of mobility components for zero-emission personal mobility devices, relevant to Brembo's core business and research and development
activities linked to these same areas. Therefore, research and development activities from activity 9.1 have been incorporated into activity 3.18.
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Brembo has conducted a Climate Change Risk Analysis

that meets some of the DNSH criteria for the Climate
Change Mitigation Objective, but the activities considered

From this analysis, the economic activities deemed eligible
in relation to the objectives of the Taxonomy are as follows.

Table 7

5.1 Construction, extension and operation
of water collection, treatment and supply
systems

Climate change mitigation

do not currently include adaptation measures related to
climate change as part of an adaptation plan derived from
the climate risk analysis. Therefore, these activities are not
eligible for Climate Change Adaptation (CCA).

Costs relating to the maintenance and extension of the water
supply or treatment systems within the Group’s production
plants

5.3. Construction, extension and operation
of waste water collection and treatment

Climate change mitigation

Costs associated with maintenance and improvement
interventions for the collection and treatment of wastewater and
rainwater infrastructures within the Group’s operational plants

6.5. Transport by motorbikes, passenger cars
and light commercial vehicles

Climate change mitigation

Costs relating to the management and maintenance of the
company fleet

7.2. Renovation of existing buildings

Climate change mitigation
The transition to a circular
economy (reference to
activity 3.2)

Costs relating to the renovation of existing buildings within the
Group’s production and sales hubs

7.3. Installation, maintenance and repair
of energy efficiency equipment

Climate change mitigation

Costs relating to the installation and maintenance of energy-
efficient lighting and new air-conditioning systems

7.4. Installation, maintenance and repair
of charging stations for electric vehicles in
buildings (and parking spaces attached to
buildings)

Climate change mitigation

Costs relating to the installation, maintenance and repair of
charging stations for electric vehicles in parking spaces attached
to buildings

7.5 Installation, maintenance and repair
of instruments and devices for measuring,
requlation and controlling energy
performance of buildings

Climate change mitigation

Costs relating to the installation and maintenance of digital
meters and systems for measuring on a continuous basis the
energy performance of the production lines and buildings

7.6 Installation, maintenance and repair
of renewable energy technologies

Climate change mitigation

Costs relating to the installation and maintenance of
photovoltaic plants

It should be noted that, although the activities

related to the gas and nuclear sectors included in the
Complementary Delegated Act (Delegated Regulation
2022/1214) are not eligible, the relevant tables are still
provided for further information.

ALIGNMENT ANALYSIS

For the purpose of assessing alignment with the objectives
of climate change mitigation and adaptation, analyses
have been conducted for each identified eligible activity

to verify compliance with the criteria for substantial
contribution and the “Do No Significant Harm” criteria
established by each objective.

ACTIVITY -3.8
ALUMINIUM PRODUCTION

Substantial contribution to climate change
mitigation

Regarding aluminium production activities, the criteria

for substantial contribution to climate change mitigation
require that the greenhouse gas emissions of the activity
do not exceed 1.484 tCO2e per ton of aluminium produced,
the average carbon intensity for indirect greenhouse

gas emissions does not exceed 100 g CO2e/kWh, and the
electricity consumption for the production process does
not exceed 15.5 Wh/t Al. Until the reporting year 2025,

the Regulation indicates that compliance with two of

the aforementioned criteria is sufficient to consider the
economic activity aligned. All Brembo plants meet at least
two of the aforementioned criteria. In particular, Mapello

(Italy), Nanjing (China), and Escobedo (Mexico) meet all
three criteria, while Ostrava (Czech Republic) meets two
out of three. For this reason, the activity is considered
compliant with the substantial contribution criteria.™

Do No Significant Harm (DNSH)

For the activity, Annex | of the Climate Delegated Act
provides DNSH criteria concerning four other objectives:

= Climate change adaptation: It is required that
an analysis is conducted to identify and assess the
vulnerability to physical climate risks, both chronic
and acute, that impact the activity itself. Brembo has
carried out an analysis of relevant physical risks across
all its production facilities, considering scenarios for
the short term (2023-2025) and long term (2030-2050)
based on the IPCC RCP 8.5 scenario (“Fossil Fuel
Driven Development”). For this reason, the criterion is
considered met for all production sites.

= Sustainable use and protection of water and marine
resources: Environmental degradation risks related
to preserving water quality and avoiding water stress
are identified and addressed with the aim of achieving
good water status and good ecological potential as
defined in Reqgulation (EU) 2020/852. A water use and
protection management plan has been developed
in consultation with relevant stakeholders. Where an
Environmental Impact Assessment is carried out In
accordance with Directive 2011/92/EU and includes
an assessment of the impact on water, no additional
assessment is required, provided the risks identified
have been addressed. Consequently, the criterion is
considered met for all the Business Units.

19 The plant in Ostrava (Czech Republic) meets the criterion related to tons of CO2e per ton produced and the criterion related to electricity consumption.
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= Pollution prevention and control: This criterion
prohibits the use of certain substances classified as
hazardous. Brembo ensures that all substances used
are in compliance with European and local regulations
and has launched a mapping project to identify
hazardous substances in use, with the goal of finding
potential alternatives. However, due to the current lack
of complete data, the company prudently considers this
criterion not met.

= Protection and restoration of biodiversity and
ecosystems: Regarding this objective, the criterion
requires that an environmental impact assessment
or an equivalent examination has been conducted.
Furthermore, it is essential that for sites situated in or
near biodiversity-sensitive areas, a suitable assessment
has been carried out. Brembo started an initial
assessment of the biodiversity status in the regions
where its plants are situated and based on the findings
of this assessment, no relevant impacts has yet been
identified nor the necessary mitigation measures
been implemented. Consequently, the Group deems
it appropriate to adopt a precautionary approach and
considers the criterion not met.

ACTIVITY -
3.9 IRON AND STEEL PRODUCTION

Substantial contribution to climate change
mitigation.

Regarding the iron and steel production activity,

the criteria for substantial contribution to climate

change mitigation require that the emissions from the
production process related to coke (excluding lignite coke)
used in the production process do not exceed 0.144 tCO2e
per ton of product (the only plant, Mapello, to which

this criterion applies does not meet it), and that the
emissions related to the casting of pig iron do not exceed
0.299 tCO2e per ton of product. Therefore, for the criterion
related to iron casting, the iron and steel production
facilities in Nanjing, Dabrowa, Escobedo, and Homer are
compliant; however, the plants in Mapello (Italy) and
Langfang (China) do not meet this criterion.

Do No Significant Harm (DNSH)

For the activity, Annex | of the Climate Delegated Act
provides DNSH criteria concerning four other objectives:

= Climate change adaptation: It is required that
an analysis is conducted to identify and assess the
vulnerability to physical climate risks, both chronic
and acute, that impact the activity itself. Brembo has
carried out an analysis of relevant physical risks across
all its production facilities, considering scenarios for
the short term (2023-2025) and long term (2030-2050)
based on the IPCC RCP 8.5 scenario (“Fossil Fuel
Driven Development”). For this reason, the criterion is
considered met for all production sites.

= Sustainable use and protection of water and marine
resources: Environmental degradation risks related
to preserving water quality and avoiding water stress
are identified and addressed with the aim of achieving
good water status and good ecological potential as
defined in Reqgulation (EU) 2020/852. A water use and
protection management plan has been developed
In consultation with relevant stakeholders. Where an
Environmental Impact Assessment is carried out in
accordance with Directive 2011/92/EU and includes
an assessment of the impact on water, no additional
assessment is required, provided the risks identified
have been addressed. Consequently, the criterion is
considered met for all the Business Units.

= Pollution prevention and control: This criterion
prohibits the use of certain substances classified as
hazardous. Brembo ensures that all substances used
are in compliance with European and local regulations
and has launched a mapping project to identify
hazardous substances in use, with the goal of finding
potential alternatives. However, due to the current lack
of complete data, the company prudently considers this
criterion not met.

= Protection and restoration of biodiversity and
ecosystems: Regarding this objective, the criterion
requires that an environmental impact assessment
or an equivalent examination has been conducted.
Furthermore, it is essential that for sites situated in or
near biodiversity-sensitive areas, a suitable assessment
has been carried out. Brembo started an initial
assessment of the biodiversity status in the regions
where its plants are situated and based on the findings
of this assessment, no relevant impacts have yet been
identified nor the necessary mitigation measures
been implemented. Consequently, the Group deems
it appropriate to adopt a precautionary approach and
considers the criterion not met.

ACTIVITY - 3.18
MANUFACTURE OF AUTOMOTIVE
AND MOBILITY COMPONENTS

Substantial contribution to climate change
mitigation.

Regarding urban, suburban, and road passenger transport
devices, the criteria for substantial contribution to climate
change mitigation require that the direct (tailpipe) CO2
emissions of the vehicles are zero. This includes vehicles
in categories M2 and M3, as well as light-duty vehicles in

categories M1 and N1, which must also have zero CO2
emissions as defined in Regulation (EU) 2019/631. Vehicles
In category L must have tailpipe CO2 emissions equalto 0

g CO2e/km, and heavy-duty vehicles in categories N2 and
N3 must not be dedicated to transporting fossil fuels and
have a maximum laden mass not exceeding 7.5 tonnes to
qualify as “zero-emission heavy-duty vehicles” Therefore,
even though the majority of the products included in the
category are intended for hybrid and electric cars, the group
has opted to adopt a precautionary approach and considers
the activity non-compliant with the substantial contribution
requirements, although it is in line with some of its sections.

Do No Significant Harm (DNSH)

For the activity, Annex | of the Climate Delegated
Act provides DNSH criteria concerning the following
objectives:

= Climate change adaptation: It is required that
an analysis is conducted to identify and assess the
vulnerability to physical climate risks, both chronic
and acute, that impact the activity itself. Brembo has
carried out an analysis of relevant physical risks across
all its production facilities, considering scenarios for
the short term (2023-2025) and long term (2030-2050)
based on the IPCC RCP 8.5 scenario (“Fossil Fuel
Driven Development”). For this reason, the criterion is
considered met for all production sites.

= Sustainable use and protection of water and
marine resources. Environmental degradation risks
related to preserving water quality and avoiding water
stress are identified and addressed with the aim of
achieving good water status and good ecological
potential as defined in Regulation (EU) 2020/852.
A water use and protection management plan
has been developed in consultation with relevant
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stakeholders. Where an Environmental Impact
Assessment is carried out in accordance with Directive
2011/92/EU and includes an assessment of the impact
on water, no additional assessment is required,
provided the risks identified have been addressed.
Consequently, the criterion is considered met for all
the Business Units.

Transition to a circular economy: The activity
assesses the availability of and, where feasible,
adopts techniques that support the reuse and use of
secondary raw materials and re-used components in
manufactured products. It also emphasizes design

for high durability, recyclability, easy disassembly,

and adaptability of products, along with waste
management that prioritizes recycling over disposal.
Information on and traceability of substances of
concern throughout the life cycle of the manufactured
products is also ensured. The Group considers it
prudent to adopt a precautionary approach and
assesses the activity as non-compliant with the
specified DNSH criterion.

Pollution prevention and control: This criterion
prohibits the use of certain substances deemed
hazardous. In light of this criterion, and considering
the updates made in June 2023 and the related
Interpretative ambiguities encountered, the Group
deems it appropriate to adopt a precautionary
approach and considers the criterion not met.
Protection and restoration of biodiversity and
ecosystems: Regarding this objective, the criterion
requires that an environmental impact assessment
or an equivalent examination has been conducted.
Furthermore, it is essential that for sites situated

INn or near biodiversity-sensitive areas, a suitable
assessment has been carried out. Brembo started an
initial assessment of the biodiversity status in the
regions where its plants are situated and based on
the findings of this assessment, no relevant impacts
have yet been identified nor the necessary mitigation
measures been implemented. Consequently, the
Group deems it appropriate to adopt a precautionary
approach and considers the criterion not met.

ACTIVITY - CAPEX C

ACTIVITY -5.1

CONSTRUCTION, EXTENSION AND
OPERATION OF WATER COLLECTION,
TREATMENT AND SUPPLY SYSTEMS

Substantial contribution to climate change
mitigation

The criteria for substantial contribution to climate
change mitigation require that specific energy
performance criteria have been met. As the Group

does not have all the necessary evidence relating to
construction, extension and operation of water supply or
treatment systems at its production or distribution hubs,
It has taken a prudential approach and considered the
criterion not met.

Do No Significant Harm (DNSH)

For the said activity, Annex | to the Climate Delegated Act
provides for DNSH criteria with respect to the other three
objectives:

= Climate change adaptation: It is required that
an analysis is conducted to identify and assess the
vulnerability to physical climate risks, both chronic
and acute, that impact the activity itself. Brembo has
carried out an analysis of relevant physical risks across
all its production facilities, considering scenarios for
the short term (2023-2025) and long term (2030-2050)
based on the IPCC RCP 8.5 scenario (“Fossil Fuel
Driven Development”). For this reason, the criterion
is considered met for all Group plants subject to the
analysis.

The sustainable use and protection of water and
marine resources: Environmental degradation risks
related to preserving water quality and avoiding water
stress are identified and addressed with the aim of
achieving good water status and good ecological
potential as defined in Regulation (EU) 2020/852. A
water use and protection management plan has been
developed in consultation with relevant stakeholders.
Where an Environmental Impact Assessment is carried
out in accordance with Directive 2011/92/EU and
includes an assessment of the impact on water, no
additional assessment is required, provided the risks
identified have been addressed. Consequently, the
criterion is considered met.

The protection and restoration of biodiversity and
ecosystems: Regarding this objective, the criterion
requires that an environmental impact assessment

or an equivalent examination has been conducted.
Furthermore, it is essential that for sites situated in or
near biodiversity-sensitive areas, a suitable assessment
has been carried out. Brembo started an initial
assessment of the biodiversity status in the regions
where its plants are situated and based on the findings
of this assessment, no relevant impacts have yet been
identified nor the necessary mitigation measures

been implemented. Consequently, the Group deems

it appropriate to adopt a precautionary approach and
considers the criterion not met.
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ACTIVITY 5.3. Even though these risks have been assessed, there is no ACTIVITY 6.5. phase) and at the end of the vehicle’s life. By adopting a

CONSTRUCTION, EXTENSION AND
OPERATION OF WASTEWATER COLLECTION
AND TREATMENT

Substantial contribution to climate change
mitigation

The criteria for substantial contribution to climate change
mitigation require that specific energy performance

criteria have been met. As the Group does not have all the
necessary evidence relating to construction, extension and
operation of wastewater collection and treatment systems
at its production or distribution hubs, it has taken a

prudential approach and considered the criterion not met.

Do No Significant Harm (DNSH)

For the said activity, Annex | to the Climate Delegated Act
provides for DNSH criteria with respect to the other four
objectives:

= Climate change adaptation: It is required that
an analysis is conducted to identify and assess the
vulnerability to physical climate risks, both chronic
and acute, that impact the activity itself. Brembo has
carried out an analysis of relevant physical risks across
all its production facilities, considering scenarios for
the short term (2023-2025) and long term (2030-2050)
based on the IPCC RCP 8.5 scenario (“Fossil Fuel
Driven Development”). For this reason, the criterion
is considered met for all Group plants subject to the
analysis.

= The sustainable use and protection of water and
marine resources: for this activity, the potential risks
for the good condition or good ecological potential of
bodies of water must be assessed and dealt with.

evidence that in Brembo’s plants wastewater is treated
to a level suitable for reuse in agricultural irrigation, the
criterion is therefore considered not met.

Pollution prevention and control: Brembo is
compliant with maximum permissible pollutant levels
and sewage sludge usage but there is no evidence that
appropriate measures have been implemented to avoid
and mitigate excessive storm water overflows from the
wastewater collection system. As such, according to a
conservative approach, Group believes this activity is
not compliant with such a DNSH criterion.

The protection and restoration of biodiversity and
ecosystems: Regarding this objective, the criterion
requires that an environmental impact assessment

or an equivalent examination has been conducted.
Furthermore, it is essential that for sites situated in or
near biodiversity-sensitive areas, a suitable assessment
has been carried out. Brembo started an initial
assessment of the biodiversity status in the regions
where its plants are situated and based on the findings
of this assessment, no relevant impacts have yet been
identified nor the necessary mitigation measures

been implemented. Consequently, the Group deems

it appropriate to adopt a precautionary approach and
considers the criterion not met.

TRANSPORT BY MOTORBIKES, PASSENGER
CARS AND LIGHT COMMERCIAL VEHICLES

Substantial contribution to climate change
mitigation

The substantial contribution criteria for expenses
incurred for the vehicle fleet require that such vehicles
belong to a specific emission class that varies depending
on the type of vehicle. For the current reporting year,

the Group believes that the activity is consistent with
the substantial contribution criteria solely for the fleet’s
electric and hybrid vehicles.

Do No Significant Harm (DNSH)

For the said activity, Annex | to the Climate Delegated Act
provides for DNSH criteria with respect to the other three
objectives:

= Climate change adaptation: For this activity, it is
also expected that an analysis for the identification
and assessment of vulnerability to chronic and
acute physical climate risks that impact the activity
itself will be conducted. Regarding the investments
made in 2024 related to the vehicle fleet, following a
conservative and cautious approach, and given that
this is not an activity directly carried out by Brembo
and in the absence of sufficient elements to allow for a
complete assessment of compliance with the criterion,
the Group considers the activity non-compliant with
this DNSH criterion.

= The transition to a circular economy: vehicles must
exhibit specific minimum reusability and recyclability
features, and appropriate waste management practices
must be implemented during the maintenance (use

conservative stance and due to a lack of comprehensive
information for a complete evaluation of suppliers’
adherence to the criterion, the Group considers this
activity to be non-compliant with the respective

Do No Significant Harm (DNSH) criterion.

Pollution prevention and control: vehicles must
adhere to certain parameters relating to conformity,
type approval, emissions, and efficiency. Some of
the vehicles in the Group’s fleet meet this criterion,
as the parameters and characteristics in question
are required by the European Union for all recently
registered vehicles; however, due to having facilities
outside the European Union, the Group, as a
precautionary measure, considers this activity to be
non-compliant with the criterion.
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ACTIVITY 7.2.
RENOVATION OF EXISTING BUILDINGS

Substantial contribution to climate change
mitigation

The criteria for substantial contribution to climate
change mitigation require that specific energy
performance criteria have been met. Since the Group
does not have all the necessary evidence relating to the
work to construct the new buildings at its production
hubs, according to a prudential approach, the criterion
has been considered not met.

Do No Significant Harm (DNSH)

For the said activity, Annex | of the Climate Delegated Act

provides for DNSH criteria with respect to the other four

objectives:

= Climate change adaptation: It is required that
an analysis is conducted to identify and assess the
vulnerability to physical climate risks, both chronic and
acute, that impact the activity itself. Brembo has carried
out an analysis of relevant physical risks across all its
production facilities, considering scenarios for the short
term (2023-2025) and long term (2030-2050) based on the
IPCC RCP 8.5 scenario (“Fossil Fuel Driven Development”).
For this reason, the criterion is considered met for all
Group plants subject to the analysis.

= The sustainable use and protection of water and
marine resources: In relation to this objective, the
criterion mandates specific plumbing techniques,
including maximum water flow rates of 6 litres/min
for taps, 8 litres/min for showers, a full flush volume
of 6 litres and an average flush volume of 3.5 litres for
W(Cs, and 2 litres/bowl!/hour for urinals, with flushing
urinals having a maximum full flush volume of 1 litre.

all the facilities within the scope. Therefore, the Group
has decided to take a cautious approach and regards
the activity as non-compliant with the specified Do No
Significant Harm (DNSH) criterion.

The transition to a circular economy: Concerning

this objective, the criterion stipulates that a minimum
of 70% of the waste produced during construction

and demolition at a work site must be processed

for recovery. Given that the Group does not possess
complete oversight of all active construction sites at
plants not directly operated by Brembo, the Group has
decided to take a cautious approach and regards the
activity as non-compliant with the DNSH criterion.
Pollution prevention and control: Regarding this
objective, building components and materials used in the
renovation must emit less than 0.06 mg of formaldehyde
per m3 and less than 0.001 mg of categories 1A and 1B
carcinogenic volatile organic compounds per m3, tested
according to relevant standards. A ban is established on
the use of certain substances deemed hazardous. To avoid
interpretative ambiguity, the Group deems it appropriate
to take a prudential approach and consider the activity as
non-compliant with the Do No Significant Harm (DNSH)
criterion.

RENOVATION OF EXISTING BUILDINGS -
CIRCULAR ECONOMY

Substantial contribution to circular economy

The criteria for making a substantial contribution to

the circular economy objective mandate particular
handling of construction waste, calculation of the
building’s life cycle Global Warming Potential, design
for adaptability, retention of 50% of the original building
during construction, and the utilisation of secondary
raw materials. Due to the absence of complete
documentation regarding the construction of new
buildings at its production hubs, Brembo has adopted a
cautious approach and determined that the criterion has
not been satisfied.

Do No Significant Harm (DNSH)

For the said activity, Annex | of the Climate Delegated Act
provides for DNSH criteria with respect to the other four
objectives:

= Climate change mitigation: the buildings are not
dedicated to extraction, storage, transport or manufacture
of fossil fuels, the criterion has therefore been met.

= Climate change adaptation: It is required that
an analysis is conducted to identify and assess the
vulnerability to physical climate risks, both chronic and
acute, that impact the activity itself. Brembo has carried
out an analysis of relevant physical risks across all its
production facilities, considering scenarios for the short
term (2023-2025) and long term (2030-2050) based on the
IPCC RCP 8.5 scenario (“Fossil Fuel Driven Development”).
For this reason, the criterion is considered met for all
Group plants subject to the analysis.
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The Group acknowledges that it lacks full visibility for ACTIVITY 3.2. = The sustainable use and protection of water and

marine resources: In relation to this objective, the
criterion mandates particular techniques concerning
certain plumbing systems. The Group acknowledges that
it lacks full visibility for all the facilities within the scope.
Therefore, the Group has decided to take a cautious
approach and regards the activity as non-compliant with
the specified DNSH criterion.

Pollution prevention and control: a ban is established
on the use of certain substances deemed hazardous. Also,
to avoid interpretative ambiguity, the Group deems it
appropriate to take a prudential approach and to consider
the activity as non-compliant with the DNSH criterion.
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ACTIVITY 7.3. potential alternatives. However, to avoid interpretative ACTIVITY 7.5 ACTIVITY 7.6
INSTALLATION, MAINTENANCE AND ambiguity, the Group deems it appropriate to take a INSTALLATION, MAINTENANCE AND INSTALLATION, MAINTENANCE AND
REPAIR OF ENERGY EFFICIENCY prudential approach and to consider the activity as REPAIR OF INSTRUMENTS AND DEVICES REPAIR OF RENEWABLE ENERGY
EQUIPMENT non-compliant with the DNSH criterion. FOR MEASURING, REGULATION AND TECHNOLOGIES

CONTROLLING ENERGY PERFORMANCE OF
Substantial contribution to climate change BUILDINGS Substantial contribution to climate change
mitigation ACTIVITY 7.4. mitigation

Only a limited amount of expenses incurred for the
installation and maintenance of energy-efficient lighting
and new air-conditioning systems meet the substantial
contribution criteria as they are included in the list of
initiatives described within the Delegated Act.

Do No Significant Harm (DNSH)

For the said activity, Annex | to the Climate Delegated Act
provides for DNSH criteria with respect to the other two
objectives:

= Climate change adaptation: It is required that
an analysis is conducted to identify and assess the
vulnerability to physical climate risks, both chronic
and acute, that impact the activity itself. Brembo has
carried out an analysis of relevant physical risks across
all its production facilities, considering scenarios for
the short term (2023-2025) and long term (2030-2050)
based on the IPCC RCP 8.5 scenario (“Fossil Fuel
Driven Development”). For this reason, the criterion
is considered met for all Group plants subject to the
analysis.

= Pollution prevention and control: This criterion
prohibits the use of certain substances classified as
hazardous. Brembo ensures that all substances used
are in compliance with European and local regulations
and has launched a mapping project to identify
hazardous substances in use, with the goal of finding

INSTALLATION, MAINTENANCE AND
REPAIR OF CHARGING STATIONS FOR
ELECTRIC VEHICLES IN BUILDINGS
(AND PARKING SPACES ATTACHED TO
BUILDINGS)

Substantial contribution to climate change
mitigation

The criteria for making a substantial contribution to
climate change mitigation include the installation, repair,
and maintenance of electric vehicle charging stations
within Brembo’s plants. The criterion is deemed to be
met, as Brembo has undertaken both the installation and
maintenance of such charging stations.

Do No Significant Harm (DNSH)

The only DNSH criterion provided for by the Regulation
with respect to activity 7.4 is that relating to the climate
change adaptation objective. With regard to this objective,
the criterion has been met due to initiatives at the Group’s
plants under analysis.

Substantial contribution to climate change
mitigation

With regard to the expenses incurred for digital meters
and energy performance measurement systems, almost
all the eligible activities meet the substantial contribution
criteria as they are included in the list of initiatives
described in the substantial contribution section.

More specifically, Brembo’s plant activities include the
installation and maintenance of building automation
and control systems, building energy management
systems (BEMS) and lighting control systems and energy
management systems (EMS).

Do No Significant Harm (DNSH)

The only DNSH criterion provided for by the Regulation
with respect to this activity, is that relating to the climate
change adaptation objective. With regard to this objective,
the criterion has been met due to initiatives at the Group’s
plants under analysis.

Regarding the costs associated with the installation of
photovoltaic panels, heat exchangers, and heat pumps,
these activities align with the criteria for substantial
contribution to climate change mitigation, as they are
part of the list of initiatives outlined in the substantial
contribution section. Therefore, there are different
activities that do not meet the substantial contribution
criteria.

Do No Significant Harm (DNSH)

The only DNSH criterion provided for by the Regulation
with respect to activity 7.6 is that relating to the climate
change adaptation objective. With regard to this objective,
the criterion has been met due to initiatives at the Group’s
plants under analysis.
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MINIMUM SAFEGUARD GUARANTEES

Ultimately, Brembo assessed adherence to the minimum
safeguard guarantees, in line with the stipulations
outlined in Article 18 of the Regulation. In particular,

the OECD 2023 Guidelines for Multinational Enterprises,
the United Nations Guiding Principles on Business

and Human Rights, as well as the principles and rights
established by the eight fundamental conventions
recognized in the declaration of the International Labour
Organization (ILO) and the International Bill of Human
Rights were considered.

Specifically, nine categories were evaluated: human rights
policies, due diligence and risk assessment on human
rights, management of human rights impacts, grievance
mechanisms, consumer interests, anti-corruption,
competition, and taxation.

Brembo ensures coverage of issues related to minimum
safeguard guarantees through the adoption of specific
tools such as corporate policies, guidelines, and
organizational and operational mechanisms, particularly:

Group code of ethic, whose rules apply to all
employees of all Group Companies and to all those
who operate to achieve the Group’s objectives.

231 Model and whistleblowing procedures for
reporting any violations of the code and the models
themselves.

Policies regarding diversity in the composition of the

Administrative Body aimed at ensuring an ideal mix of

skills and professionalism among the members of the

Board of Directors, not only in terms of gender but also

in terms of experience, professionalism, honourability,
independence, age, and other relevant aspects
provided by legislative provisions.

Remuneration policy and related report published
annually as better described in the paragraph
“Remuneration Policies” of the chapter “ESRS S1 - Own
workforce” and “ESRS G1 - Business conduct”,

Public communication on issues related to human
rights and gender diversity and fundamental labour
rights in the Group’s present sustainability statement
(for more information, see the chapters “ESRS S1 - Own
workforce” and “ESRS S2 - Workers in the value chain®).
Policies and codes of conduct published on the Group’s
website, whose rules apply to all employees of all
Group Companies and to all those who operate to
achieve the Group’s objectives: anti-corruption code
of conduct, brembo code of basic working conditions,
brembo policy on non-discrimination and diversity,
sustainable procurement policy, general conditions

of purchase of materials and services of Brembo.

The codes and policies are described in detail in the
chapter “"ESRS G1 - Business conduct”.

Grievance mechanisms accessible to stakeholders
through the Group’s website.

Following this analysis, the Group verified that it
has implemented all the safeguards provided for in

Article 18 of the Regulation, while recognising the

need to formalize some specific disclosures to ensure

full compliance with the requirements of the OECD

Guidelines and the UN Guiding Principles.

For further details regarding the safeguards related to
minimum safeguard guarantees, please refer specifically

to the chapters “ESRS S1-Own workforce” “ESRS S2-

Workers in the value chain” and “ESRS G1-Business
conduct” which delve into the Group’s safequards and
results concerning human rights issues and the fight
against corruption.

In cases of verification of minimum safequard guarantees

concerning products and services purchased by the
Group and originating from eligible economic activities
(specifically, for activities 5.1,5.3,6.5,7.2,7.3,7.4,7.5,
and 7.6 for the Climate Change Mitigation objective

and activity 3.2 for the Circular Economy Objective),
companies are required to broaden the scope of analysis
to the supply chain of eligible products and services.

In this context, the Group has implemented a specific
procedural set to ensure and promote transparency and
compliance with the principles outlined in its Ethical Code
across the supply chain, as detailed in the chapter “ESRS
S2-Workers in the value chain” Nevertheless, adopting

a conservative and cautious approach, Brembo does

not consider that it possesses adequate information to
confirm that existing supply chain management practices
ensure complete compliance of suppliers with the
requirements of Article 8 of the Regulation.

ACCOUNTING POLICY
AND CONTEXTUAL INFORMATION

The Group, in accordance with the guidelines of Annex
1-2 of the Disclosure Delegated Act?’, has calculated the
Turnover, Capex, and Opex indicators in relation to the
activities identified as eligible, assessing their specific
weight with reference to their respective consolidated
values.

Specifically, the following sections outline the
methodological approaches used for the calculation
of each indicator, providing an overview for both the
denominators and the numerators.

20 Delegated Regulation (EU) 2021/2178.

The Group also clarifies that there is no alignment; in fact,
the activities for which the appropriate calculations have
been made are solely eligible.

TURNOVER KPI

The denominator for Turnover was determined through an
analysis of the Group’s statutory chart of accounts for the
fiscal year 2024. Specifically, for this purpose, in accordance
with § 1.1.7 of Annex 1 of the Delegated Regulation (EU)
2021/2178 (hereinafter “Disclosure Delegated Act”), the
revenues from the Group’s core activities were identified
by considering the line item “Revenue from contracts with
customers” These revenues, as described by IAS 1
paragraph 82 and the definition of Net Turnover in
Directive 2013/34/EU, represent the proceeds from the

sale of goods and services net of sales returns, VAT, and
other taxes related to turnover. Consequently, the Group’s
Turnover for 2024 amounts to €3,840,643.00 thousand,

as reported in the consolidated financial statements
(Revenue from contracts with customers, note No. 20 of the
consolidated financial statement at 31 december 2024).

Regarding the calculation of the numerator, although
activity 3.18 - Production of automotive and mobility
components was preliminarily identified as eligible,

no revenues associated with it were recognised for the
reporting period 2024. As previously mentioned, the Group
Is conducting analyses to refine its methodologies for
calculating and identifying regenerative braking systems
and brakes with drag reduction technologies.
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OPEX KPI

§ 1.1.3.1 of the Disclosure Delegated Act establishes that
the denominator of Opex must be calculated by identifying
specific non-capitalised operating costs related to:

Research and development

Renovation measures for buildings

Short-term leases

Maintenance and repairs

Any other direct expenses related to the daily
maintenance of properties, plants and machinery.

To evaluate these items, the Group conducted a thorough
analysis of the Group’s accounting plan. Therefore, a
detailed investigation was carried out to isolate all items
attributable to the above components.

It is specified as follows:

Regarding “any other direct expenses related to the
daily maintenance of properties, plants and machinery,”
cleaning expenses for the plants were considered as
suggested by FAQ No. 12 of the Commission Notice C
(2022) 385/01 of 06.10.2022.

For the personnel costs involved in ordinary
maintenance and R&D activities, since it was not
possible to derive the values directly through the
analysis of the accounting plan, a detailed analysis
of the cost centres was conducted using analytical
accounting.

As a result, a value obtained for the denominator amounts
to €283,827.54 thousand.

Regarding the numerator, the numbers associated with
the identified eligible activities were extracted from the
management system of the Group’s companies, ensuring
correspondence with the items of the consolidated
accounting plan used for calculating the denominator. In
particular, the following eligible activities were identified
during the technical assessment:

3.8 Production of aluminium (Climate change
mitigation);

3.9 Production of iron and steel (Climate change
mitigation);

3.18 Production of automotive and mobility
components (Climate change mitigation);

5.1 Construction, expansion, and management of water
collection, treatment, and supply systems (Climate
change mitigation);

5.3 Construction, expansion, and management of
wastewater collection and treatment systems (Climate
change mitigation);

6.5 Transport by motorcycles, cars, and light commercial
vehicles (Climate change mitigation);

7.2 Renovation of existing buildings (Climate change
mitigation and activity 3.2 for Circular Economy);

7.3 Installation, maintenance, and repair of energy
efficiency devices (Climate change mitigation);

7.4 Installation, maintenance, and repair of electric
vehicle charging stations in buildings (and in parking
spaces related to the buildings) (Climate change
mitigation);

7.5 Installation, maintenance, and repair of instruments
and devices for measuring, requlating, and controlling
the energy performance of buildings (Climate change
mitigation);

7.6 Installation, maintenance, and repair of renewable
energy technologies (Climate change mitigation);

With reference to point C?' of § 1.1.3.2, operating expenses
— largely related to maintenance — were identified
concerning other activities, including the construction,
expansion, and management of water collection and
treatment systems. Additionally, interventions related

to transport by motorcycles, cars, and light commercial
vehicles, renovation of existing buildings, installation and
maintenance of energy efficiency devices, electric vehicle
charging stations, and renewable energy technologies were
considered.

CAPEX KPI

§ 1.1.2.7 of the Disclosure Delegated Act specifies that

the denominator of Capex must incorporate increases in
tangible and intangible assets incurred during the fiscal
year before depreciation, impairment, and any revaluation,
including those arising from revaluations and reductions
in value for the fiscal year in question, and excluding
changes in fair value. The denominator must also include
increases in tangible and intangible assets resulting from
business combinations.

In line with the above, the Group considered the increases
related to intangible, tangible assets, and rights of use of
leased assets for the denominator.

To obtain this data, the asset movement tables were used,
isolating only the “acquisitions” row (Tangible fixed assets
and Intangible fixed assets, items found in notes 1 and 2
of the consolidated annual financial report).

As suggested by § 1.1.2.1, the following references were
used:

IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment
IAS 38 Intangible Assets
IFRS 16 Leases

The Group’s investments considered for the denominator
amount to €500,360.00 thousand, as indicated in the

notes to the consolidated financial statements. These
Investments were divided by type of activity, distinguishing
between tangible, intangible assets, and rights of use
(according to IFRS 16) of the increases that occurred
during 2024, leading specifically to the following values:

Intangible assets €47,090.00 thousand
Tangible assets €363,964.00 thousand
Rights of use €89,306.00 thousand.

Regarding the numerator of the KPI, the Group conducted

a detailed analysis of the asset movements to identify

the components associated with the activities deemed
eligible during the technical assessment. In particular, since
the Group operates in various territories, the approach

used involved the participation of the administrative-
accounting resources of all plants and Legal Entities within
the consolidation perimeter. Detailed numbers were then
obtained through extraction from the management systems.

21 Paragraph 1.1.3.2 of the (EU) Delegated Regulation 2021/2178: Operating expenses related to the purchase of output from economic Taxonomy-aligned
economic activities and to individual measures enabling the target activities to become low carbon or to lead to greenhouse gas reductions as well as
individual building renovation measures as identified in the delegated acts adopted pursuant to Article 10(2), Article 11(3), Article 12(2), Article 13(2), Article
14(2), and Article 15(2), of Regulation (EU) 2020/852 and provided that such measures are implemented and operational within 18 months.
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The activities identified as sources of investments in 2024
Include:
3.8 Production of aluminium (Climate change
mitigation);
3.9 Production of iron and steel (Climate change
mitigation);
3.18 Production of automotive and mobility
components (Climate change mitigation);
5.1 Construction, expansion, and management of
water collection, treatment, and supply systems
(Climate change mitigation);
5.3 Construction, expansion, and management of
wastewater collection and treatment systems (Climate
change mitigation);
6.5 Transport by motorcycles, cars, and light
commercial vehicles (Climate change mitigation);
7.2 Renovation of existing buildings (Climate change
mitigation and activity 3.2 for Circular Economy);
7.3 Installation, maintenance, and repair of energy
efficiency devices (Climate change mitigation);
7.5 Installation, maintenance, and repair of
instruments and devices for measuring, regulating,
and controlling the energy performance of buildings
(Climate change mitigation);
7.6 Installation, maintenance, and repair of renewable
energy technologies (Climate change mitigation);

With reference to point C??2 of § 1.1.2.2, capitalised
expenses related to other activities, energy efficiency,
data processing, and renewable energy technologies
were identified. Primarily, investments in tangible (plants,
machinery, and buildings) and intangible (research and

development) activities were considered.

COMPARISON WITH THE PREVIOUS YEAR

Please refer to the tables below for details on the
numerical and percentage variations of the KPIs required
by the regulations.

It is specified that the variation of the KPIs compared

to the previous year is not associated with a change

In the accounting approach used in deriving the numbers
and reporting the KPIs, but rather to the inclusion

of additional activities compared to those considered in
the previous year.

22 Paragraph 1.1.2.2 of the (EU) Delegated Regulation 2021/2178: Capital expenditures related to the purchase of output from Taxonomy-aligned economic
activities and individual measures enablling the target activities to become low carbon or to lead to greenhouse gas reductions, as well as to specific
measures for the renovation of buildings identified in the delegated acts adopted pursuant to Article 10(3), Article 11(3), Article 12(2), Article 13(2), Article 14(2),
and Article 15(2), of Regulation (EU) 2020/852 and provided that such measures are implemented and operational within 18 months.
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Proportion of Turnover from services or products associated with Taxonomy-aligned
and Taxonomy-eligible economic activities — Disclosure for the Year 2024 (Data in €k)

Table 8
PROPORTION
SUBSTANTIAL CONTRIBUTION CRITERIA DNSH CRITERIA (“DO NO SIGNIFICANT HARM") OF TURNOVER / TURNOVER
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Economic activities (1) U = a = O £ U © < a O o m U £ U © < a O o m =w a5 U o © UisS ©
K€ % Y;N; N/EL Y; N; N/EL Y; N; N/EL Y; N; N/EL Y; N; N/EL Y; N; N/EL Y/N Y/N Y/N Y/N Y/N Y/N Y/N % E T CCM 0.00% 0.00%
A. TAXONOMY-ELIGIBLE ACTIVITIES CCA 0.00%  0.00%
0 o)
A.1 Environmentally sustainable WIR ekt el
activities (Taxonomy-aligned) CE 0.00% 0.00%
Turnover of environmentally sustainable PPC 0.00% 0.00%
activities (Taxonomy-aligned) (A.1) 0.00 0.00%
BIO 0.00% 0.00%
A.2 Taxonomy-eligible, but not
environmentally sustainable activities
(not Taxonomy-aligned activities) 0.00 0.00%
Turnover of Taxonomy-eligible, but not
environmentally sustainable activities
(not Taxonomy-aligned activities) (A.2) 0.00 0.00%
Turnover of Taxonomy-eligible activities
Total (A.1 + A.2) 0.00 0.00%
B. TAXONOMY-NON-ELIGIBLE ACTIVITIES
Turnover of Taxonomy non-eligible
activities (B) 3,480,643.00 100.00%

Total 3,480,643.00 100.00%
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Proportion of Capital Expenditures from products or services associated
with Taxonomy-aligned economic activities— Disclosure for the Year 2024 (Data in €/k)

Table 9
SUBSTANTIAL CONTRIBUTION CRITERIA DNSH CRITERIA (“DO NO SIGNIFICANT HARM")
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K€ % Y;N; N/EL Y; N; N/EL Y; N; N/EL Y; N; N/EL Y; N; N/EL Y, N; N/EL Y/N Y/N Y/N Y/N Y/N Y/N Y/N % E T
A. TAXONOMY-ELIGIBLE ACTIVITIES
A.1 Environmentally sustainable
activities (Taxonomy-aligned) 0.00 0.00% 0.00%
CapEx of environmentally sustainable
activities (Taxonomy-aligned) (A.1) 0.00 0.00% 0.00%
of which enabling
of which transitional
A.2 Taxonomy-eligible, but not
environmentally sustainable activities
(not Taxonomy-aligned activities)
Collection and transport of non-
hazardous and hazardous waste 2.3 CE - 0.00% 0.02%
Manufacture of aluminium 3.8 CCM 42.98 0.01% 0.04%
Manufacture of iron and steel 3.9 CCM 6,311.68 1.26% 0.64%
Manufacture of automotive
and mobility components 3.18 CCM 8,302.74 1.66% 0.00%
Construction, extension
and operation of water collection,
treatment and supply systems 51CCM 1,831.08 0.37% 0.04%
Construction, extension
nd operation of waste water
collection and treatment 53CCM 151.50 0.03%

Transport by motorbikes,
passenger cars and light
commercial vehicles 6.5 CCM 17214 0.03% 0.00%

Construction of new buildings 7.1 CCM 0.00% 0.35%
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CAPEX PROPORTION
SUBSTANTIAL CONTRIBUTION CRITERIA DNSH CRITERIA (“DO NO SIGNIFICANT HARM") / TOTAL CAPEX
4
_ — &
S 50 5= % & > 5 5= 3 i > = 032 ~ —
s 6x t§ %8 < = > fQ S5 ©s @ < = ?  EE S<<g  zof 258 > >
N - £ = = = o s € o U5 = = o s E o 5% oo S € = s 2 o E Ls
py n S & T 5 RS 3 5 =B 2 T 5 RS 3 5 S 2 2 E> 922 95&% 9G% £ o 2 9
S o SV Ez E® 5 = ° S 8 1= ES 5 = S s E® Soor £wmg £53 2 =iy
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K€ % Y; N; N/EL Y; N; N/ZEL Y, N; N/EL Y; N; N/ZEL Y, N; N/EL Y, N; N/EL Y/N Y/N Y/N Y/N Y/N Y/N Y/N % E T CCM 0.00% 4.29%
Renovation of existing buildings 7.2 CCM CCA 0.00%  0.00%
/3.2CE  2,037.89 0.41% 0.44% WTR 0.00% 0.00%
Installation, maintenange and repair CE 0.00% 0.41%
of energy efficiency equipment 7.3 CCM 612.67 0.12% 0.03%
. : : PPC 0.00% 0.00%
Installation, maintenance and repair
of instruments and devices for BIO 0.00% 0.00%
measuring, requlation and controlling
energy performance of buildings 7.5 CCM 133.19 0.03% 0.02%
Installation, maintenance and repair
of renewable energy technologies 7.6 CCM 1,878.61 0.38% 0.12%
CapEx of Taxonomy-eligible, but not
environmentally sustainable activities
(not Taxonomy-aligned activities) (A.2) 21,474.48 4.29% 1.70%

CapEx of Taxonomy-eligible activities
Total (A.1 +A.2) 21,474.48 4.29% 1.70%

B. TAXONOMY-NON-ELIGIBLE ACTIVITIES

CapEx of Taxonomy-non-eligible
activities 478,885.52  95.71%

Total 500,360.00 100.00%

The regulation requires reporting the contribution of the
same activity to multiple objectives in the case where the
descriptions (for eligibility) are the same or the criteria for
substantial contribution (for alignment) are met for each
objective. Specifically:

- For the CE, activities 3.2 are the same as 7.2 of CCM.
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Proportion of Operating Expenses from products or services associated
with Taxonomy-aligned economic activities — Disclosure for the Year 2024 (Data in €/k)

Table 10
SUBSTANTIAL CONTRIBUTION CRITERIA DNSH CRITERIA (“DO NO SIGNIFICANT HARM")
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A. TAXONOMY-ELIGIBLE ACTIVITIES
A.1 Environmentally sustainable
activities (Taxonomy-aligned) - 0.00%
OpEx of environmentally sustainable
activities (Taxonomy-aligned) (A.1) - 0.00%
of which enabling
of which transitional
A.2 Taxonomy-eligible, but not
environmentally sustainable activities
(not Taxonomy-aligned activities)
Manufacture of aluminium 3.8 CCM 1,148.41 0.40% 0.43%
Manufacture of iron and steel 3.9CCM 10,158.40 3.58% 4.35%
Manufacture of automotive
and mobility components 3.18 CCM 1,610.66 0.57% 0.00%
Construction, extension
and operation of water collection,
treatment and supply systems 51CCM 110.64 0.04% 0.05%
Construction, extension
and operation of waste water
collection and treatment 53CCM 174.70 0.06% 0.00%
Transport by motorbikes, passenger
cars and light commercial vehicles 6.5 CCM 123.08 0.04% 0.08%
Freight transport services by road 6.6 CCM - 0.00% 0.03%
Renovation of existing buildings 7.2 CCM
/3.2 CE 1,049.42 0.37% 0.00%

Installation, maintenance and repair
of enerqy efficiency equipment 7.3 CCM 189.94 0.07% 0.02%
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of which enabling
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environmentally sustainable activities
(not Taxonomy-aligned activities)
Manufacture of aluminium 3.8 CCM 1,148.41 0.40% 0.43%
Manufacture of iron and steel 3.9CCM 10,158.40 3.58% 4.35%
Manufacture of automotive
and mobility components 3.18 CCM 1,610.66 0.57% 0.00%
Construction, extension
and operation of water collection,
treatment and supply systems 51CCM 110.64 0.04% 0.05%
Construction, extension
and operation of waste water
collection and treatment 53CCM 174.70 0.06% 0.00%
Transport by motorbikes, passenger
cars and light commercial vehicles 6.5 CCM 123.08 0.04% 0.08%
Freight transport services by road 6.6 CCM - 0.00% 0.03%
Renovation of existing buildings 7.2 CCM
/3.2 CE 1,049.42 0.37% 0.00%

Installation, maintenance and repair
of enerqy efficiency equipment 7.3 CCM 189.94 0.07% 0.02%
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Activities related to nuclear energy

The company engages in, finances, or has exposures to the research, development, demonstration, and
implementation of innovative plants for the generation of electricity that produce energy from nuclear NO
processes with a minimal amount of waste from the fuel cycle.

The company engages in, finances, or has exposures to the safe construction and operation of new
nuclear plants for the generation of electricity or process heat, including for district heating or industrial

2 processes such as hydrogen production, and improvements to their safety, using the best available NO
technologies.
The company engages in, finances, or has exposures to the safe operation of existing nuclear plants

3. that generate electricity or process heat, including for district heating or industrial processes such as NO

hydrogen production from nuclear energy, and improvements to their safety.

Activities related to fossil gases

The company engages in, finances, or has exposures to the construction or management of plants for

4 the production of electricity that use fossil gas fuels. NO
The company engages in, finances, or has exposures to the construction, refurbishment, and

5. : - . . NO
management of combined heat/cold and electricity generation plants that use fossil gas fuels.

6 The company engages in, finances, or has exposures to the construction, refurbishment, and NO

management of heat generation plants that produce heat/cold using fossil gas fuels.
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E1 - CLIMATE CHANGE

INTEGRATION OF
SUSTAINABILITY-RELATED PERFORMANCE
IN INCENTIVE SCHEMES

Climate-related considerations are factored into the
remuneration of members of the administrative,
management and supervisory bodies.

In particular, the Brembo’s energy managers, along with
the VPs Operations, Plant Directors / Plant Managers,

and all plant personnel, are incentives through specific
monetary rewards tied to the development of new energy
efficiency projects. Promoting energy savings — reflected
in the rational use of energy and subsequent reduction

In consumption — is a collective effort that engages

all operational areas within the Group. Each area has
been assigned specific targets to contribute to Brembo’s
overarching energy efficiency goals.

Moreover, each year, the corporate executive team is
assigned targets related to enhancing sustainability

as part of the short-term incentive plan (STIP). The
beneficiaries of the STIP include Executives, Managers,
and key employees of Brembo N.V., as well as the North
America / China President & CEOs, Country General
Managers, first-line management in Group countries, and
other individuals in significant roles. Additionally, in 2022
Brembo introduced a new long-term incentive plan (LTIP):
the 2022-2024 LTIP. The LTIP beneficiaries include not only
the Executive Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer
but also a selected group of approximately 60 members
from the Group’s management team, reflecting the
complexity and responsibilities of their roles.

The inclusion of “ESG” (Environmental, Social, and
Governance) metrics within the objective form dedicated
to Top Management ensures the application of a
sustainable business model in the long term. This has

led Brembo to be recognised by CDP (Carbon Disclosure
Project) as one of the world’s leading companies for its
commitment and ability to respond to climate change and
water resource management.

Below is a table showing the percentage of remuneration
associated with climate-related considerations.

Table 12

Remuneration linked to
climate-related considerations u.m. 2024

Percentage of remuneration
linked to climate-related
considerations % 10

SUSTAINABILITY INDEX

Both the short-term Incentive Plan (STIP) and the long-term
Incentive Plan (LTIP) include a group sustainability index
based on the reduction of the company’s greenhouse gas
emissions. This indicator is closely linked to the Group’s
decarbonisation targets, thus demonstrating Brembo’s
Increasing commitment to achieving excellent economic
and financial performance without compromising the
Company’s core values, such as respect and protection of
the environment. The “sustainability index”? — which was
established in 2017 — still remains the metric chosen for
measuring and monitoring the Group’s performance in

23 Data used for calculation purposes include within the reporting boundary also Brembo SGL Carbon Ceramic Brakes S.p.A. (BSCCB S.p.A.), a joint venture

between Brembo and SGL Group.

sustainability. In particular, this index focuses on reducing
tCO2e emissions in alignment with Brembo’s medium and
long-term objectives, as outlined by the COP21 guidelines.
The targets can be achieved through the implementation of
energy efficiency projects and by increasing the proportion
of renewable energy sources. For 2024, the “sustainability
index” target has been set at 20% reduction and it has
achieved a value of 25.2%.

Brembo ofers non-monetary rewards, specifically through
Internal Company Awards (e.g.”Brembo Excellence
Awards” “Brembo Innovation Awards” (BIA) and “Brembo
Sustainability Awards”). These initiatives encourage all
Group employees to submit suggestions for improving
efficiency and sustainability. Impactful ideas are
recognized

by an internal jury, and the related communicated
between June and July of the following year.

CLIMATE CHANGE IMPACTS,
RISKS AND OPPORTUNITIES AND THEIR
INTERACTION WITH STRATEGY AND
BUSINESS MODEL

Regarding the classification of material climate-related
risks, Brembo provides a detailed explanation for each
identified risk. The Group distinguishes between climate-
related physical risks and climate-related transition risks.
Brembo’s Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) process and
the Climate Change Risk Assessment (CCRA) document.

Table 13
IRO IRO Name Physical or Transition risk
Risk related to climate change with increased exposure to natural catastrophes and possible
Risk 1 related unavailability of infrastructure (e.g. production stoppages, ICT services breakdown) Physical risk
Risk 2 Risk related to extra costs following the potential application of GHG certificates mechanism Transition risk
Risk 3 Risk related to potential negative outcome from sustainability audits conducted by clients Transition risk
Risk 4 Risk related to external factors imposing changes/new Sustainability-related objectives Transition risk

Risk related to the relationship with Clients in connection to the achievement of Net Zero

Risk 5 objectives

Transition risk

Risk related to the energy transition of the automotive sector and the evolution of regulations

Risk 6 related to climate change

Transition risk

Opportunity 1

Opportunities related to the growing demand for "green" products

Transition opportunity

Opportunities to leverage stricter regulations on competitive advantage following the

Opportunity 2

implementation of stricter regulations on of product and processes

Transition opportunity
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Brembo conducted a climate change risk assessment

to evaluate the Company’s business resilience and the
associated financial exposure to both the physical effects
of climate change and the transition towards a low-carbon
economy, leveraging scenario analysis and forecasting
tools. The aim of the assessment was to comprehend
potential vulnerabilities of the Group sites concerning
physical risks and to identify meaningful insights —
opportunities and risks in the medium/long term — that
could constitute valuable inputs in defining and updating
the Group’s strategy. The assessment scope included
Brembo and selected key supppliers’ sites.

To address physical risks, a detailed analysis of each
potential physical risk event that could affect Brembo
or the selected key suppliers’ sites has been carried out,
examining the potential consequences on Business
Interruptions (BIl) and/or Property Damages (PD), in

the short term (2024) and in the medium/long term
(2030/2050). The long-term analysis of physical risks was
performed considering the RCP 8.5 scenario of the IPCC
(“Fossil fuelled development”) which is based on various
assumptions regarding emissions, policies and likelihood
of achieving high temperature levels in the future.

This scenario does not assume future strengthening of
policy actions and instead considers the hypothesis that
governments will not pursue all announced goals. The
related IPCC scenario assumes that:

the radiative forcing continues to grow, reaching
increase of 2°C by 2050 and 5°C in 2100;

the push for economic and social development is
coupled with the exploitation of abundant fossil fuel
resources;

consumption is oriented toward energy intensive
lifestyles around the world, leading to rapid growth of
the global economy;

global population reaches a peak and starts declining in
the 21st century.

The assessment results on physical risks highlighted that
climate exposure of proprietary sites is increasing, with

a focus on tornadoes,hail hazards, and water stress. The
most economic-relevant exposures are river floods (three
sites exposed) and hurricanes / tornadoes / windstorms
(two sites exposed), but considering the mitigators

in place, the overall potential economic exposure can

be considered limited. In order to evaluate and limit

its exposure, the Group analyzes exposures to natural
catastrophes when building new plants from greenfield or
acquiring sites.

The climate change risk assessment also led to the
iIdentification of opportunities to strengthen the Group’s
market position, increase market share and access

new product segments, as well as to identification

of transitional risks primarily related to consumer
behaviours and regulatory constraints aimed at reducing
environmental impacts. The identified climate-related
opportunities and risks have been emphasized in the IPCC
RCP 1.9 climate-change scenario, which assumes that:

The world shifts gradually, but pervasively, towards a
more sustainable path to limit temperature under 1.5°C
of warming;

Countries fully implement their national targets to 2030
and 2050, and energy demand is met mainly through
renewable sources;

Consumption is oriented toward low emissions material
growth and lower resource and energy intensity.

Within the same framework of physical risk analysis,
transitional opportunities and risks has been evaluated
on medium/long-term analysis (2030-2050), taking in

consideration the RCP 1.9 scenario and the corresponding
socio-economic IPCC’s SSP1 scenario (“Taking the Green
Road”), which is based on various assumptions regarding
future emissions, policies and economy. Additionally,

the NZE2050 scenario from the IEA has been applied to
provide an in-depth analysis of the energy and automotive
markets.

Brembo is dedicated to monitoring and managing its
Impacts, risks, and opportunities related to climate
change. The company is actively committed to reducing
its emissions and adapting its production activities

to align with sustainable practices. This commitment
extends to minimizing the environmental impacts of its
operations and products, which are integral to Brembo's
corporate strategy and sustainability plan. The transition
to a low-emission economy is particularly relevant for the
automotive sector in which Brembo operates. Indeed,
the energy transition and evolving climate requlations
may lead to significant investments and modifications to
existing production processes, presenting both risks and
opportunities for the Group. This transformation provides
the chance to improve product performance and deliver
value to customers.

DESCRIPTION OF THE PROCESSES
TO IDENTIFY AND ASSESS MATERIAL
CLIMATE-RELATED IMPACTS, RISKS AND
OPPORTUNITIES

The double materiality assessment has led to the
identification of the Impacts, Risks and Opportunities
related to the matter of climate change and energy. The
material IROs are listed below.

Positive impact - Reduction of GHG emissions

from end-users’ cars thanks to the development of
innovative technologies: Brembo is committed to
strengthening the development of innovative products,
designed from the outset with an eco-sustainable and
circular design, in favour of sustainable mobility;
Negative impact - Reduction in energy availability
due to energy-intensive production processes: Failure
in implementing energy efficiency measures, or failure
in using the most efficient technologies, can lead to
excessive energy and fossil fuel consumption;
Negative impact - Climate change caused by
greenhouse gas emissions: Climate change is

caused by greenhouse gas emissions generated by
both direct and indirect activities. Direct emissions
(Scopes 1 and 2) come from the consumption of

fossil fuels and electricity for owned buildings and
facilities, the combustion of fuels for the company
fleet, and the materials used during production
phases. Indirect emissions (Scope 3) come from the
transportation of company products by third parties
and the purchase of services, materials, and finished
products from suppliers, which result in greenhouse
gas emissions during their production activities due to
the consumption of non-renewable energy sources and
inefficiencies in energy consumption management;
Risk - Energy transition of the automotive sector
and the evolution of regulations related to climate
change: The energy transition and evolving climate
reqgulations may lead to significant investments and
modifications to existing production processes. This
could lead to increased operational costs and potential
disruptions in the supply chain;

Risk - Increased exposure to natural catastrophes
following climate change, and possible related
unavailability of infrastructure, physical and
technological (e.g. production stoppages, ICT
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infrastructure issues): Climate change can heighten
the risk of catastrophic events such as floods, storms,
and wildfires. These events can disrupt production and
damage physical assets (including IT infrastructure),
resulting in extra costs and possible business
interruption as described in the previous paragraph;
Risk - Extra costs following the extension of GHG
certificates system: In the case of extension of the Cap
and Trade system, there would be the possible need to
purchase greenhouse gas (GHG) certificates to offset
emissions can lead to additional costs. These costs
may rise in the future due to stricter requlations and
general increased demand for certificates, impacting
the company’s profitability;

Risk - External factors imposing changes/new
Sustainability-related objectives: External factors,
such as new government regulations or stakeholder
pressures, may require Brembo to adopt new
sustainability objectives or modify existing ones. These
changes could necessitate significant investments

and adjustments to business processes, increasing
operational costs;

Risk - Relationship with Clients in connection to the
achievement of Net Zero objectives: In case of failure
In meeting clients’ expectations regarding carbon
reduction, Brembo may lose contractual awardings and/
or suffer reputational damage, negatively impacting
sales and growth;

Risk - Potential negative outcome from
sustainability audits conducted by clients:

obtaining negative results in client audits regarding
sustainability aspects represents a risk for Brembo, as
it can undermine client relationships and leading to a
reduction or interruption of the partnership;
Opportunity - Opportunities related to the growing
demand for “green” products: By investing in
sustainable technologies and developing low-impact

products, Brembo can attract new customers, increase
market share, and enhance its reputation as a
sustainability leader;

= Opportunity - Opportunities to leverage stricter
regulations on performance and carbon emissions
by improving product requirements and production
processes: Stricter requlations on performance and carbon
emissions offer Brembo the chance to improve product
requirements and production processes. By adopting
advanced technologies and optimising energy efficiency,
the company can reduce operational costs, enhance

product quality, and gain a competitive edge in the market.

Regarding the methodologies, assumptions, and tools
used in identifying and assessing impacts, risks, and
opportunities along its value chain, please refer to section
ESRS 2 IRO-1 herein.

TRANSITION PLAN FOR CLIMATE
CHANGE MITIGATION

Brembao’s Climate Transition Strategy aims to pursue the
following strategic objectives:

1. Company sustainability: Presentation of Brembo's
commitments in terms of environmental sustainability and
resilient business evolution in a future low-carbon scenario.

2. Regulatory and market context: The transition
roadmap is a tool to express Brembo’'s commitment in
accordance with requlatory standards and international
frameworks (e.qg., Paris Agreement, CSRD, CDP).

3. Concrete commitment to climate neutrality: The
objectives of the transition strategy are in line the
reduction of greenhouse gas emissions consistent
with achieving Net Zero by 2050, as envisaged by the
European Union.

More specifically, Brembo is committed to significantly
reducing its greenhouse gas emissions through targets
aligned with scenarios oriented toward limiting global
temperature increase to 1.5°C, as stipulated by the
commitments made by the United Nations at the COP21
in Paris and the Net Zero criteria of the Science Based
Targets initiative (SBTI). It should be noted that Brembo is
not part of the EU Paris-aligned Benchmarks.

These targets are set within a short-term horizon to 2030
and a long-term horizon extending to 2040. The latter, or
broader horizon, compared to medium-term industrial
plans, demonstrates Brembo’s foresight and ambition to
precede the European Union’s commitments to carbon
neutrality by 2050. Brembo plans to submit its targets to
the SBTi for validation.

For 2030 the objective is to achieve an absolute reduction
of 42% in Scope 1 and Scope 2 market-based emissions
compared to 2020 levels. This will be accomplished through
a significant commitment to the use of renewable energy,
leading to a total reduction in emissions from purchased
electricity by adopting 100% renewable energy sources.
Additionally, an absolute reduction of 42% in Scope 3
emissions Is also anticipated compared to 2020 levels.

Looking ahead to 2040, the intensifies further. The goal

Is to reach a 90% reduction in Scope 1 and Scope 2
market-based emissions compared to 2020 levels. Scope

3 emissions target sees an absolute reduction of 90%.
Finally, regarding residual emissions, those that cannot be
reduced, (up to a maximum of 10% compared to 2020) will
be neutralised through offset interventions that certify the
permanent removal of CO2 from the atmosphere.

These objectives reflect Brembo’s commitment to a
transition in line with the principles of a global roadmap

for a Net Zero future. Moreover, in the coming years
Brembo is committed to evaluating its locked-in emissions
by conducting a study of the elements that could
compromise the achievement of reduction targets.

Regarding the involvement of the transition plan by the
administrative, management and supervisory bodies, the
progress of Brembo’s status towards the roadmap to Net
zero is presented during the Board of directors meeting.

A clear overview of the current data for Scope 1,2 and 3
emissions is provided, along with future projections for the
coming years. Specifically, assessing Brembo’s position in
relation to its goals is essential for highlighting the need
for actions or investments in specific sectors and emission
factors. Brembo is committed to implementing initiatives
aimed at reducing its Scope 1, Scope 2, and Scope 3
emissions in order to achieve the climate targets established
for 2030 and 2040. These activities involve assessing the
feasibility of installing low-impact energy self-production
facilities, such as photovoltaic, purchasing renewable
energy certificates, upgrading machinery and utilities in its
plants to more energy-efficient and less emission-intensive
alternatives, and continuously enhancing the engagement
of its supply chain through training activities and the
establishment of climate-related requirements.

The information related to Brembo’s objectives or plans
(CapEx, CapEx plans, OpEx) that Brembo has for aligning
its economic activities (revenues, CapEx, OpEx) with the
criteria established in Commission Delegated Regulation
2021/2139, as well as an explanation of how the transition
plan is embedded in and aligned with the Company’s
overall business strategy and financial planning, has not
been disclosed with regard to financial the year 2024.
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POLICIES RELATED TO CLIMATE Table 14 Brembo’s environment and energy policy addresses the

CHANGE MITIGATION AND ADAPTATION

company’s commitment to mitigating climate change

by reducing its GHG emissions, adapting to climate
change through the identification of climate risks and the
application of innovative solutions, and utilizing renewable
energy resources by promoting the abandonment of fossil
resources and maximizing energy efficiency.

Key concepts Scope of application  Responsible function External standards

ENVIRONMENT AND ENERGY POLICY

The Chief Executive
Officer of Brembo
is responsible for
the implementation

Policy availability and sharing

The Group has a structured system of policies and
procedures aimed at managing the impacts, risks, and
opportunities related to the prevention and monitoring of
climate change and energy topics. The policies adopted by

All those involved in the
Group’s activities, such as
employees, contractors,
suppliers, customers, and

Brembo has
decided to apply
the environmental
and energy policy at

In line with the goals of the Paris
Agreement to keep the increase
in the planet’'s temperature below
1.5°C, Brembo aims to constantly

In light of the climate
scenario of recent
years and the growing
interest of stakeholders
in environmental and

the Group not only aim to minimise negative environmental
Impacts but also to identify and exploit potential
opportunities to continuously improve its practices.

Brembo has drafted the environment and energy policy
to manage all the main environmental issues applicable
to the Company in a transversal manner. In addition
Brembo has developed its sustainable procurement policy
to promote the culture of sustainability related to both
environmental and social topics throughout the value
chain. Please refer to the following table for an extended

description of the contents and structure of the said policies.

reduce the CO2 footprint of its

products and processes, as well as
those of the supply chain. This is
primarily achieved by promoting the
abandonment of fossil resources,
favouring renewable ones, and
maximising the energy efficiency

of its processes. Additionally,

guided by the principles expressed

by the Task Force on Climate-

related Financial Disclosure (TCFD),
Brembo identifies its physical and

transitional risks, as well as the
opportunities arising from the

transition to a low-carbon economy.

the corporate level,
including all plants.

of the global
procedure for climate
change and the
environmental and
energy policy, while
local Plant Directors
/ Plant Managers are
responsible for local
procedures.

sustainability performance,
Brembo has developed and
maintains an Environmental
Management System
compliant with ISO
14001:2015 and ISO
50001:2018 standards.
Brembo's environmental
and energy policy is
structured to comply with
these standards. The policy
also makes reference to the
Paris Agreements and TCFD
principles.

shareholders, can access
Brembo's environmental

and energy policy through
Company's website and in all
production areas of Brembo's
plants.

As part of the Environmental Management System,
Brembo has adopted specific procedures aimed at
mitigating and preventing the emission of greenhouse
gases from production plants, and in particular:

Brembo procedure “Management and Monitoring

of Greenhouse Gases” establishes the requirements

for the collection and accounting of greenhouse gases
(GHG) emitted by production sites, ensuring relevance,
completeness, consistency, transparency, and traceability.
Risk management includes the appointment of a Process
Owner (PO) and the definition of basic principles for the

construction of the GHG inventory. Emissions are divided
into scope 1, scope 2, and scope 3. The procedure includes
the management of site and group data, the calculation
of emissions for each scope, and the periodic verification
of data. Additionally, Brembo sets objectives for reducing
greenhouse gas emissions and a Sustainability Index?* to
reduce the carbon footprint.

SUSTAINABLE PROCUREMENT POLICY

The Purchasing team The reference

is responsible for the  standards include ISO

update of the policy 14001 certification
for environmental
management systems and
the OECD qguidelines for
supply chain due diligence.

Published on Brembo's
website and on the
Company’s Intranet. In
addition, Brembo shares
the policy and requirements
with suppliers through
direct communications and
requires transparency and
collaboration for monitoring
emissions and adopting
sustainable measures.

The Brembo Group is committed to
promoting a culture of sustainability
and ensuring responsible and
sustainable procurement.

Suppliers are required to adopt
environmental protection policies
based on the LifeCycle Assessment
(LCA) principle and reduce CO2
emissions throughout the product
life cycle. Suppliers must develop an
ISO 14001-compliant environmental
management system, optimise the
use of natural resources, reduce the
use of fossil energy, and properly
manage waste. Additionally, Brembo
requires transparency on emissions
and the implementation of effective
measures to reduce them.

The policy is
distributed to the
main global Brembo
suppliers, requiring
suppliers to reduce
CO2 emissions and
adopt sustainable
practices throughout
the product life cycle.

24 Data used for calculation purposes include within the reporting
boundary also Brembo SGL Carbon Ceramic Brakes S.p.A. (BSCCB S.p.A)),
a joint venture between Brembo and SGL Group.
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ACTIONS AND RESOURCES IN
RELATION TO CLIMATE CHANGE POLICIES

Brembo actively prevents negative material impacts
and risks and fosters positive material impacts and
opportunities concerning climate change (described in
section IRO-1) through different actions.

First of all, in order to achieve Net Zero emissions,
Brembo has established a Road Map that is continuously
refined in response to technical, technological, and
market developments. This Road Map encompasses the
following actions:

1. Advanced Monitoring: Implementation of the Brembo
Energy Platform, which utilizes smart factory principles
to monitor and optimise energy consumption across
key factory utilities.

2. Replacement of Obsolete Systems: Adoption of
advanced technologies that offer high energy efficiency,
thereby reducing the consumption of non-renewable
resources.

3. Dedicated Budget: Allocation of funds during the
investment planning phase specifically aimed at
enhancing energy efficiency and reducing emissions.

4. Losses Reduction: Targeted initiatives, such as
identifying and mitigating compressed air leaks,
implementing automatic shutdowns of systems during
non-productive periods, and recovering heat from
compressor cooling circuits.

To ensure the effective implementation of this strategy
and alignment with established objectives, the
Environment and Energy area coordinates a working
group that includes all relevant company functions.
This Group collaborates in various ways to carry out
improvement initiatives focused on reducing CO2eq
emissions.

Since 2015, Brembo’s climate change policy has set
progressively ambitious goals aligned with the UN
commitments from the Paris COP21 to address the effects
of climate change. To tackle climate change, Brembo has
developed a strategy with actions aimed at achieving
short, medium (2030), and long-term (2040) greenhouse
gas emissions reduction targets for the entire Group.

Specifically, Brembo has established an annual
sustainability target defined as a percentage of emissions
avoided through improvements, such as the efficient

use of all forms of energy and the increased utilisation

of renewable energy, compared to the previous year’s
emission levels.

In 2024, the target of reducing CO2eqg emissions by 20%
through improvement actions compared to the previous
year’s emissions was not only met but even exceeded,
achieving a result of 25.2%. This success was driven by
energy efficiency projects implemented across all of the
Group’s plants, as well as an increased share of renewable
energy purchased in Poland, the Czech Republic, the US,
Spain, and China.

Brembo has implemented key decarbonisation levers®
to address emission sources directly under its control,
focusing on energy consumption and production

25 Specific data about the achieved and expected GHG emission reductions, has not been disclosed with regard to 2024 reporting year.

processes. The primary strategies for achieving climate
goals include enhancing energy efficiency and adopting
renewable energy. Brembo’s approach integrates
technological, operational, and organizational measures
to minimise environmental impact and reach the Net Zero
target by 2040 through gradual steps.

In the pursuit of energy efficiency and process
optimisation, key initiatives include the implementation of
the Brembo Energy Platform for real-time monitoring of
energy consumption the replacement of outdated plants
with advanced, energy-efficient technologies, and the
allocation of a dedicated budget for sustainability efforts.
Additionally, targeted actions aim to reduce losses by
addressing compressed air leaks, automating shutdowns
during non-productive periods, and recovering heat from
cooling circuits, of which contributes to a more efficient
and sustainable operation.

As part of the transition to renewable energy, Brembo

is evaluating the installation of facilities for the self-
production of low-impact energy, including photovoltaic.
The Company has purchased renewable electricity to cover
83% of its electricity consumption by 2024 and aims to
achieve 100% coverage by 2030, effectively eliminating
Scope 2 emissions.

Finally, Brembo is dedicated to innovation and
environmental standards by establishing sustainability
criteria for new plants and machinery from the design
phase. The Group emphasize eco-sustainable products
through innovative low-emission solutions and increased
use of recycled raw materials to minimise the product
life cycle’s impact. Additionally, Brembo collaborates with
different suppliers to reduce their Scope 1 and Scope 2
emissions, fostering sustainability strategies that align

with Brembo’s corporate objectives. To date, there are
binding requirements only for Scope 2, while for Scope 1,
Brembo requests that suppliers undertake decarbonization
actions in line with the sustainable procurement policy.

The information related to Brembo action plan (CapEx,
OpEXx) has not been disclosed with regard to financial the
year 2024. However, investments related to climate change
mitigation and energy efficiency are reflected in the
disclosure related to the European Taxonomy regulation.

TARGETS RELATED TO CLIMATE
CHANGE MITIGATION AND ADAPTATION

Brembo has established a set of measurable, outcome-
oriented, and time-bound targets in its Transition Plan
to effectively manage negative impacts and risks while
promoting positive outcomes.

In line with the UNFCCC Paris Agreement’s goal of limiting
global temperature rise to below 1.5 °C, Brembo aims to
achieve Net Zero emissions by 2040. This ambitious target
Is supported by a comprehensive roadmap designed to
progressively reduce Scope 1, 2, and 3 greenhouse gas
emissions.

Central to this strategy is the transition away from fossil
fuels, the promotion of renewable energy sources, and the
enhancement of energy efficiency across its processes.

By 2040, Brembo aims to achieve the following targets:
Reduce absolute Scope 1 and market-based Scope 2

emissions by 90% compared to 2020 levels.
Reduce absolute Scope 3 emissions by 90% compared
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to 2020 levels. 2020 was chosen as the baseline is primarily due to the Table 16
- Neutralise absolute emissions by a maximum of 10% fact that it was the most recent year with the data present
compared to 2020 levels. and structured. Brembo intends to update its baseline Decarbonisation Science- Compatibility with  If yes, an explanation
next year. levers based target Ilmlthg global of that compatibility
_ _ Target (34f, 16b) (34e) warming (34e) (16a)
Moreover, Brembo set intermediates targets to be
achieved by 2030: In terms of methodologies and key assumptions, the Reduction Self-production of energy; Yes Yes This target is compatible with limiting global
targets were established in alignment with the Science- Scope 1+2 purchase of green electricity warming to 1.5 degrees as it follows the Science
o T ) o _ (-42%) by 2030 certificates, electrification of the Based Targets framework, and the trajectory
- Reduce absolute (market-based Scope 2) indirect Based Targets initiative (5BTi) Net Zero criteria, aimed orocesses, Sustainable Design, leading to a -42% reduction in 2030 is align to
emissions by 100%. at Iimiting the gIobaI temperature Increase to well Eco-sustainable Products reach the Net Zero goal by 2040
Ensure that 100% of electricity used comes from below 1.5°C. The company plans to submit its targets for Reduction supply chain involvement: Yes Ves This target is compatible with limiting global
renewable sources. validation to the SBTI. Scope 3 Brembo actively collaborates warming to 1.5 degrees as it follows the Science
Reduce absolute Scope 1 and market-based Scope 2 (-42%) by 2030 with its suppliers to reduce their Based Targets framework, and the trajectory
emissions by 42% compared to 2020 levels. Moreover, they were not set following conclusive scientific Scope 1 and Scope 2 emissions, leading to a -42% reduction in 2030 is align to
. Reduce absolute Scope 3 emissions by 42% compared evidence, and only internal stakeholders have been encouraging them to adopt reach the Net Zero goal by 2040
. : . . . . . sustainability strategies aligned
to 2020 levels, involved in their definition. Since their adoption of the with corporate objective;
| | target, no cha_nges _have _been mad_e and the actual Increase in the use of secondary
These targets are relative and are measured in tonnes performance is in line with the defined targets. materials
CO2eq. The baseline values in 2020 were: Reduction Self-production of energy; Yes Yes This target is compatible with limiting global
Scope 1+2 purchase of green electricity warming to 1.5 degrees as it follows the Science
- Scope 1 and Scope 2: 371,903 tonnes of CO2eq; (-90%) by 2040 certificates, electrification of the Based Targets framework, and the trajectory
Scope 3: 1,666,245 tonnes of CO2eq. processes, Sustainable Design, leading to a -90% reduction in 2040 is align to
Eco-sustainable Products reach the Net Zero goal by 2040, neutralizing the
remaining 10% by purchasing carbon credits
Table 15 Reduction Supply chain involvement: Yes Yes This target is compatible with limiting global
Absolute value Scope 3 Brembo actively collaborates warming to 1.5 degrees as it follows the Science
Target Current Current . of total G,HG (-90%) by 2040 with its suppliers to reduce their Based Targets framework, and the trajectory
(34a e 34D) Base Year progress progress u.m. emissions reduction Scope 1 and Scope 2 emissions, leading to a -90% reduction in 2040 is align to
Total GHG 2,038,735 2,309,982 Tonnes of Co2eq +271,247 encouraging them to adopt reach the Net Zero goal by 2040, neutralizing also
sustainability strategies aligned the remaining 10% by purchasing carbon credits
Scope 1 73,755 108,135 Tonnes of Co2eq +34,380 with corporate objective;
Increase in the use of secondary
Scope 2 480,860 530,752 Tonnes of Co2eq +49,892 materials
(location-based) . . . . . .
Neutralising Purchase of carbon credits Yes Yes This target is compatible with limiting global
Scope 2 298,736 116,268 Tonnes of Co2eq 182,468 the 10% warming to 1.5 degrees as it follows the Science
(market-based) remaining Based Targets framework, and the trajectory
emissions leading to a -90% reduction in 2040 is align to
Scope 3 1,666,245 2,085,578 Tonnes of CoZeq +419,333 of Scope 1 and 3 reach the Net Zero goal by 2040, neutralizing also

by 2040

the remaining 10% by purchasing carbon credits
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ENERGY CONSUMPTION AND MIX 2023, and 2024, expressed in megawatt-hours (MWh). It Table 18
captures the dynamics of energy sourcing, detailing the . . S
The following table provides a comprehensive overview consumption patterns across various fuel types, including Energy intensity from activities in high
, : climate impact sectors u.m. 2024

of energy consumption of the Group for the years 2022, fossil fuels and renewable sources. —————————————————————

Total energy consumption from activities MWh 1,532,791
Table 17 in high climate impact sectors (41)
able

Net revenue?’ from activities in high € millions 3,841
Energy consumption and mix u.m. 2024 2023 2022 climate impact sectors used to calculate energy intensity
Fuel consumption from coal MWh 81,642 79,512 75,851 Energy intensity from activities in high MWh/€ millions 399,06
and coal products (38a) climate impact sectors (40)
Fuel consumption from crude oil MWh 35,147 33,057 15,044
and petroleum products (38b)

Table 19
Fuel consumption from natural gas (38¢) MWh 298,075 298,184 317,356
Consumption of purchased or acquired MWh 197,111 287,763 333,305 Reconciliation to financial statements u-m. — 0
electricity, heat, steam, or cooling Net revenue?’ from activities in high climate € millions 3,841
from fossil sources (38e) impact sectors to calculate energy intensity

. .
Total energy consumption from MWh 611,975 698,516 741,557 and net revenue frqm ac§|V|t|es
fossil resources (37a) other than in high climate impact sectors
Percentage of fossil sources in total energy % 40 44 50 Net revenue?’ Total (Financial Statements) € millions 3,841
consumption (AR 34)
Consumption of purchased or acquired MWh 919,810 873,225 742,481 _ _ o _ _ _
electricity, heat, steam, and cooling Overall, in 2024, Brembo consumed slightly more than A significant portion of this energy consumption comes
from renewable sources (37cii) 1,532,791 MWh of energy, representing a decrease from electricity, which constitutes 72.93% of the total
Consumption of self-generated MWhH 1007 .- 549 by 2.52% compared to 2023, resulting from the energy use, amounting to over 1,117,928 MWh. This
non-fuel renewable energy (37ciii) ' implementation of energy efficiency projects and a electricity is primarily utilised by the iron melting furnaces,
' production decline aligned with the European automotive with additional usage in the machining facilities and for
Total energy consumption MWh 920,817 873,980 743,030 contex. the production of compressed air used in manufacturing
from renewable sources (37¢) .
processes. Furthermore, natural gas consumption,

Percentage of renewable sources in total energy % 60 56 50 predominantly used in aluminium melting processes,
(AR 34) consumption totals over 298,075 MWh.
Total energy consumption related to own MWh 1,532,791 1,572,496 1,484,587

operations (37) (2)

26 The categories not presented in the table related to Scope 1 (AR 34) are null in Brembo, signifying the absence of the corresponding energy sources.

27 Revenue from contracts with customers, note No. 20 of the consolidated financial statement at 31 december 2024.
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GROSS SCOPES 1, 2, 3 AND TOTAL of the GHG Protocol. This calculation utilised emission Scope 2

GHG EMISSIONS factors published by various reputable sources, including: Table 21
The greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions for Scope 1, 2, and AlB (ASSOCiat_ion of Issuing Bodies) Gross Scope 2 greenhouse gas emissions u.m. 2024 2023 2022
3 emitted by the Brembo Group are presented below. IEA (International Energy Agency) _ -

UK Department for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs Gross location-based Scope 2 tCO2eq 530,752 597,556 540,466

: ! : GHG emissions (49a)

Scope 1 and Department for Business, Energy and Industrial

Strategy Of which Gross Scope 2 tCO2eq 5,048 6,145 4,196
Table 20 greenhouse gas emissions (Investees)
Gross Scope 1 greenhouse gas emissions u.m. 2024 2023 2022 Gross market-based Scope 2 tCO2eq 116,268 174,427 188,722
GHG emissions from regulated emission trading schemes (ETS) tCO2eq 0.00 0.00 0.00 GHG emissions (49b)
Of which GHG emissions from regulated emission trading schemes tCO2eq 0.00 0.00 0.00 Scope 2 greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions refer to the aiming to cover wiht these certificates the 100% of its
(ETS) (Investees) .. . : i .

indirect emissions resulting from the generation of consumption by 2030.
Gross Scope 1 GHG emissions (48a) tCO2eq 108,135 107,117 100,927 electricity purchased by Brembo, as well as from the
Of which Gross Scope 1 GHG emissions (48a) (Investees) tCO2eq 690 656 801 heating of water/steam supplied to the Group through The following table presents a detailed analysis of the
Percentage of Scope 1 GHG emissions from regulated emission % 0% 0% 0% district heating systems. Through these purchases, Brembo contractual instruments used for managing greenhouse
trading schemes (48b) indirectly contributes to the emissions generated by gas emissions, expressed in tonnes of CO2 equivalent
Percentage of Scope 1 GHG emissions from regulated emission % 0% 0% 0% energy or heat suppliers. (tCO2eq). The contractual instruments are divided into
trading schemes (investees) two main categories: unbundled instruments and bundled
As can be seen from the table above, the market-based Instruments. The table shows the emissions associated

Scope 1 greenhouse gas emissions (GHG) pertain to the Eurostat scope 2 values decrease over time as Brembo continues with each type of instrument, along with the percentage

direct emissions produced from sources that are owned or
controlled by an organization. These emissions represent
the total sum of greenhouse gases, expressed in CO2
equivalents. For Brembo, the direct climate-altering
emissions arise from facilities, assets, and vehicles that the
company directly manages. This category encompasses
emissions resulting from various activities, including the
combustion of fossil fuels in melting furnaces, leaks of
refrigerant gases from air conditioning systems, and the
use of fossil fuels in the corporate fleet.

The calculation of CO2 equivalent emissions, which
encompasses CO2, CH4, NO2, and HFC emissions when
applicable, was conducted in accordance with the guidelines

EPA (Environmental Protection Agency)

Emissions from cooling gas leakages were also included

in the calculations. This figure accounts for the amount of
refrigerants released into the atmosphere, as recorded in
special registers during periodic refills of air conditioning
systems. In cases where such records are absent or there is no
evidence of gas refills throughout the year, it is assumed that
all gas contained in the air conditioning systems has been
released into the atmosphere as a precautionary measure.

its strategy of reducing Scope 2 emissions by purchasing
an increasing percentage of renewable energy certificates,

Table 22

Contractual instruments Emissions (tCO2eq)

that each represents of the total contractual instruments
used.

Percentage of contractual instruments (%) Types of contractual instruments

Garantees of origin (GO) 260,912 47.8 Unbundled instruments
International renewable energy

certificates (IRECs) 138,064 253 Unbundled instruments
Garantees of origin (GO) 78,824 14.4 Bundled instruments
Photovoltaic by third

party on site PPA 810 0.2 Bundled instruments
International renewable

energy certificates (IRECs) 66,978 12.3 Bundled instruments
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Brembo, where economically sustainable and feasible,
prioritizes the purchase of power purchase agreements
(included within the GO and IREC bundled), otherwise it
uses GO certificates (for countries within the European
Union) and IREC certificates.

The overall Scope 2 emissions were calculated using the
market-based method, which reflects the total emissions
associated with electricity consumption.
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Scope 3 In the calculation of Scope 3 categories, Brembo favors Guidance for Calculating Scope 3 emissions by GHG

Scope 3 greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions refer to those
emissions not included in the previous categories but

are nonetheless connected to Brembo’s value chain. This
scope comprises a total of 15 categories, of which Brembo
Is included 9 in its calculations.

Table 23

Gross Scope 3 greenhouse gas emissions u.m. 2024 2023 2022
Category 1 Purchased goods and services tCO2eq 1,485,806 1,651,476 1,302,211
Category 2 Capital goods tCO2eq 136,016 134,226 192,802
Category 3 Fuel and energy-related Activities (not tCO2eq 74,994 84,319 83,959
included in Scope 1 or Scope 2)

Category 4 Upstream transportation and distribution tCO2eq 51,586 45,170 79,571
Category 5 Waste generated in operations tCO2eq 76,238 73,849 68,876
Category 6 Business travel tCO2eq 3,923 3,709 1,751
Category 7 Employee commuting tCO2eq 34,279 28,763 41,615
Category 9 Downstream transportation tCO2eq 189,986 172,365 142,610
Category 15 Investments tCO2eq 32,799 37,296 42,210
Gross Scope 3 GHG emissions (51) tCO2eq 2,085,578 2,241,173 1,955,606

and uses mostly primary data; where these are not
available, approximations are used, always following the
indications given in the GHG Protocol. Specifically, for
categories 1,4,5,6,7 and 9 of Scope 3 GHG emissions,

It was necessary to rely on estimates and assumptions.
These categories have a medium degree of uncertainty,
primarily due to the emission factors used for quantifying
category 1 and for the activity data used for categories
45,6,7 and 9. For the remaining categories, there is a low
degree of uncertainty.

Specifically, the following methodologies were applied to
Scope 3 emissions:

Category 1: For aluminum suppliers, calculations were
based on data from the current year, while for other
suppliers, data from the previous year was utilized.
Emissions were estimated using primary data of 190
relevant suppliers, and secondary data for all the other
suppliers of goods and services . The methodology
applied is the hybrid method as listed in the Technical
Guidance for Calculating Scope 3 emissions by GHG
Protocol.

Category 2: The methodology applied is the average
spend-based method as listed in the Technical Guidance
for Calculating Scope 3 emissions by GHG Protocol. The
figure represents the GHG emissions originated from
the purchasing of new buildings, plants, machinery,
industrial and commercial equipment and other assets.
Category 3: The calculation methodology for this
category includes Well-to-Tank (WTT) emissions related
to electricity, district heating, and fuels, following the
GHG Protocol guidelines.

Categories 4,5, 6, 7, and 9: The methodology applied is
the distance-based method, as listed in the Technical

Protocol. Category 4 represents the amount of GHG
emission produced by the transport of products
between Brembo’s factories and the transport of
products to clients paid for by Brembo. GHG emissions
were calculated starting from the kilometers covered by
vehicles and the average weight transported.

Category 5 also includes emissions from waste
disposal, in accordance with GHG Protocol guidelines.
Category 6 is related to employees’ air and train
travel. GHG emissions were calculated starting from
the kilometers covered by each flight or train journey.
For category 7 The figure is related to employees
commuting from home to work and back. GHG
emissions were calculated starting from the kilometers
covered by each type of vehicle and category 9
represents the amount of GHG emission produced by
the transport of products to clients paid by the clients.
GHG emissions were calculated starting from the
kilometers covered by vehicles and the average weight
transported.

Category 15: The methodology applied is the
iInvestment-specific method, as listed in the Technical
Guidance for Calculating Scope 3 emissions by GHG
Protocol. This amount represents the amount of GHG
emission from equity investments of the reporting year,
not already included in Scope 1 or Scope 2.

Categories that are not included in the Greenhouse Gas

Inventory due to their low significance relative to the other

categories based on the significance analysis carried out in

accordance with the GHG Protocol Standard are as follows:
Category 8: In case any leased asset was used by
Brembo, the tonnes CO2e are included in our Scope
1 and Scope 2 figure, since Brembo has operational
control over these assets.
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- Category 10: This emission source iIs considered to be Category 12: This emission source is considered to be Total
an extremely minimal portion of Brembo’s overall an extremely minimal portion of Brembo’s overall
emissions, and therefore considered as not relevant. emissions, and therefore considered as not relevant Table 25
- Category 11: The braking system does not produce compared to the manufacturing of the whole final
direct CO2e emissions through its use. In addition, product/vehicle. Retrospective Milestones and target years *
Brembo is constantly investing in R&D to develop more Category 13: Downstream leased assets are not relevant Base year Comparative N (2024) % N/ N-1 2025 2030 2050 Annual %
sustainable brake systems that have less impact on the to our Scope 3 emissions, since they would already be (2020) (2023) target/
environment, such as braking systems designed to have accounted for in our Scope 1 and Scope 2 inventory. Base year
a lighter weight to contribute to emission reduction of Category 14: Brembo does not have any franchises. SCOPE 1 GHG EMISSIONS
customers’ vehicles on which they are installed. Gross Scope 1 GHG
Table 24 emissions (tCO2eq) 73,755 107,117 108,135 1% N/A N/A N/A
GHG intensity per net Ot which from .
revenue® (AR 53 and 54) 2024 2023 % Investees 657 630 %
Total GHG emissions (location-based) Percentage . . .
per net revenue? (tCO2eq/€ million) 709,31 764.35 7% of Scope 1 4% 4% >% N/A N/A N/A
Total GHG emissions (market-based) GHG emissions from
per net revenue? (tCO2eq/€ million) 601,40 652.82 -8% regulated emission trading
schemes (%) 0% 0% 0% N/A N/A N/A
SCOPE 2 GHG EMISSIONS
Gross location-based
Scope 2 GHG emissions
(tCO2eq) 480,860 597,556 530,752 -11% N/A N/A N/A
Of which from
Investees 6,145 5,048 -18%
Gross market-based
Scope 2 GHG emissions
(tCO2eq) 298,736 174,427 116,268 -33% N/A N/A N/A
Of which from
BSCCB S.p.A. 0 0 0%

28 Revenue from contracts with customers, note No. 20 of the consolidated financial statement at 31 december 2024.
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Retrospective Milestones and target years *
Base year Comparative N (2024) % N/ N-1 2025 2030 2050 Annual %
(2020) (2023) target /
Base year
SIGNIFICANT SCOPE 3 GHG EMISSIONS SCOPE 1 SCOPE 2
108,135 tonCO2e market based
Total Gross indirect (2023 107,117)) 116,268 tonCO2e
(Scope 3) GHG emissions (2023 174,427)
(tCO2eq) 1,666,245 2,231,173 2,085,578 7% '
Scope 1 greenhouse gas emissions
Purchased goods (GHG) pertain to the direct
1 and services 1,142,975 1,651,476 1,485,806 -10% N/A N/A N/A emissions produced from sources
that are owned or controlled by
: an organization. These emissions
2 Capital goods 112,015 134,226 136,016 1% N/A N/A N/A represent the total sum of
Fuel and energy- greenhouse gases, expressed in
related Activities CO2 equivalents.
(not included
in Scope
3 or Scope 2) 92,654 84,319 74,994 -11% N/A N/A N/A
Upstream Scope 2 greenhouse gas (GHG)
transportation emissions refer to the indirect 2,309,982 tonCO2e
4 and distribution 18,220 45,170 51,586 14% N/A N/A N/A emissions resulting from the (2024)
generation of electricity purchased
Waste generated by Brembo, as well as from the
: the Group through district heating
Business vstems
6 travelling 639 3,709 3,923 6% N/A N/A N/A yStems.
Employee
7 commuting 33,455 28,763 34,279 19% N/A N/A N/A
Upstream Scope 3 greenhouse gas (GHG)
8 leased assets 160,428 - - - N/A N/A N/A emissions refer to those emissions
not included in the previous
Downstream ) categories but are nonetheless
9 transportation - 172,365 189,986 10% N/A N/A N/A connected to Brembo's value chain. :C()(;:Esis roncO
,085, onCO2e
15 Investments 47,042 37,296 32,799 -12% N/A N/A N/A (2023 2,512,717)
Total GHG emissions
(location-based) (tCO2eq) 2,220,860 2,935,846 2,724,465 -7%
Total GHG emissions
(market-based) (tCO2eq) 2,038,736 2,512,717 2,309,982 -8%
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GHG REMOVALS AND GHG
MITIGATION PROJECTS FINANCED
THROUGH CARBON CREDITS

In order to neutralize the remaining 10% of CO2 equivalent
emissions by the year 2040, the company intends to
Implement measures that will either permanently remove
or actively support the removal of greenhouse gases
(GHGs) from the atmosphere through the acquisition of
carbon credits. However, it is important to note that, at
present, there are no initiatives in place specifically aimed
at the removal of GHGs.

INTERNAL CARBON PRICING

At present, Brembo does not utilise an internal price

for CO2 emissions. However, the Company is actively
engaged in efforts to introduce carbon pricing within its
business cases, with a target timeline of 1 to 2 years for
Implementation.

It is important to note that there are no critical
assumptions made at this time to determine the carbon
price applied, as the internal pricing scheme has yet to be
established.

Additionally, since Brembo does not currently have an
internal carbon pricing scheme in place, the disclosure
regarding the consistency of the carbon price used in
this scheme with the carbon price reflected in financial
statements is not applicable.

E2 - POLLUTION

DESCRIPTION OF THE
PROCESSES TO IDENTIFY AND ASSESS

MATERIAL POLLUTION-RELATED IMPACTS,

RISKS AND OPPORTUNITIES

The double materiality assessment has led to the
identification of Impacts, Risk and Opportunities related
to the matter of pollution. The material IROs are listed
below.

interruption of activities thus leading to extra costs for
decontamination and potential legal liabilities;

Risk - Compliance with environmental and chemical
regulations, and the ability to grasp changes:
Increased environmental awareness and global
agreements such as the Paris Climate Agreement lead to
more restrictive regulations. Brembo faces the risk of not
anticipating these changes, impacting operations with
inefficiencies. Non-compliance, in relation with delays in

Brembo has drawn up the “environment and energy
policy” designed to manage all the main environmental
issues applicable to the Company. For the full descrition
of the contents and interoperability between the various
environmental ESRSs, please refer to chapter E1-2.

The details of the policy relating to the matter of
pollution are listed below:

Negative impact - Emissions of pollutants into

the air: The production processes of components for
braking systems of cars, motorcycles and commercial
vehicles generate polluting emissions such as

carbon monoxide (CO), nitrogen oxides (NOx), fine
particulate matter (PM), hydrogen sulphides (H2S) and
sulphur oxides (SOX) which can potentially harm the
environment and human health;

Negative impact - Pollution of water resources:

The production processes of braking systems could
discharge pollutants deriving from the processing of
cast iron and aluminium and/or from the painting
process. These discharges may cause pollution of water
resources, resulting in damage to the environment and
potential risks to human health;

Risk - Potential regulatory non-conformity of a
Brembo product: In case of a non-conformity of

a product in terms of emissions, Brembo may be
exposed to extra costs, refunds, fines and interruptions
to the customer's business. The same exposure would
occur also in the case that such non-conformity is
caused by a supplied component;

Risk - Environmental pollution following an
accidental event: In case of an accidental event

(e.g. a fire) taking place at a Brembo's plant,
environmental pollution may occur a consequence. In
such cases, the competent authority could impose the

authorizations, can cause production disruptions.

= Risk - Acquisition of a company with polluted subsoil:
In order to expand its business, Brembo may decide to
acquire a piece of land or an already existing company.
Both scenario embed the risk of acquiring a productive
area with polluted subsoil. In the event this is not
timely discovered through the specific due diligence,
Brembo may acquire liabilities and be exposed to
sanctions and penalties.

In orther to identify potential impacts, risk and
opportunities related to pollution Brembo has considered
all its production plants and the overall value chain as
described in section ESRS 2 IRO-1 herein.

POLICIES RELATED TO POLLUTION

The Group has a structured system of policies and
procedures aimed at managing impacts, risks and
opportunities related to the prevention and monitoring
of pollution. The policies adopted by the Group not only
aim to minimise negative impacts on the environment,
but also to identify and seize potential opportunities to
continuously improve its practices.

The policy and specific operating procedures related to the
pollution of environmental matrices are described below:

With regard to pollution, Brembo is committed to
mitigating the impact of its emissions, especially those
due to substances of very high concern (SVHC), on all
environmental matrices, with particular attention to
air, soil and water. In this regard, Brembo maintains

an effective monitoring and updating system of its
treatment plants in accordance with the Best Available
Techniques, with the challenging goal of keeping
emissions well below legislative limits. In addition, thanks
to the continuous research for innovative materials

and technical solutions, both in terms of process and
product, Brembo aims to use less impactful substances,
minimising its environmental impact both in the
production and use of its products.

As part of its Environmental Management System,
Brembo has adopted specific procedures aimed at
mitigating and preventing the pollution of environmental
matrices in its production plants, and in particular:

The “Management of emissions into the
atmosphere” procedure, which aims to establish the
requirements and methods for the management
and monitoring of polluting emissions generated by
production processes and auxiliary activities.

The “Water cycle management” procedure, which
aims to establish the methods for managing the
integrated water cycle at Brembo sites.
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The “Management of Chemical Substances”
procedure, which aims to establish a methodology
for the management of chemicals used within
Italian sites, ensuring compliance with national and
international chemical regulations.

ACTIONS AND RESOURCES RELATED
TO POLLUTION

With regards air emissions, Brembo recognizes that
pollutant emissions from its production processes may
adversely affect the health of communities adjacent to

its facilities and pose risks to local flora and fauna. To
mitigate these impacts, Brembo has implemented an
Environment and Energy Management System that
establishes common requirements across all Group plants,
aimed at maintaining environmental risks well below

the emission limits mandated by the legislation of the
countries in which it operates. Each facility has developed
appropriate monitoring plans to ensure that emissions
from production processes, including odorous emissions,
are limited to technological thresholds. Typical parameters
monitored include those emitted during melting processes
(such as powders, NOx, and SOx) and those generated

by mechanical processing and painting processes
(powders and VOCs), with emission values governed by
local legislation. To further reduce pollution risk, Brembo
mandates that each emission point be equipped with
abatement systems that ensure atmospheric emissions are
at least 60% lower than local legislative limits. Additionally,
Brembo monitors the quantity of coolants (HFC and

HCFC) released into the atmosphere, calculating the
corresponding CO2 equivalent impact. The scope of these
actions encompasses all emission points across Brembo's
facilities, ensuring that the internal requirements for
abatement systems are uniformly applied.

The key actions related to air emissions are to be
completed on an annual basis, with ongoing monitoring
and assessment to ensure compliance and effectiveness.

In terms of water emissions, Brembo’s Environment

and Energy Management System also addresses water
usage. The Water Management procedure establishes
requirements and restrictions to ensure the rational use of
water resources and protection against potential accidental
contamination. These requirements are binding for all
Brembo facilities, ensuring uniform application of the
procedure. Specifically, in cases of potential contamination
due to water discharge, the procedure mandates limits that
are up to 60% lower than those set by local regulations.
Consequently, all sites are required to implement
appropriate measures to maintain pollutant concentrations
in discharges consistently below this threshold, utilising
products with lesser environmental impact or employing
advanced discharge water treatment technologies. Each
plant conducts a risk and opportunities assessment for
processes impacting water resources, leading to mitigation
actions for areas identified as high risk or with significant
opportunities. Furthermore, Brembo carries out - through
the World Resource Institute’s (WRI) ACQUEDUCT
metodology - an annual company-wide risk evaluation

to assess exposure to water quality and availability risks

at each Group site. As for air emission, the scope of these
water management actions applies uniformly across all
Brembo facilities, ensuring comprehensive adherence to
the established requirements and the actions that are to be
completed on an annual basis, with continuous monitoring
and evaluation to uphold compliance and effectiveness.

The information related to Brembo action plan (CapEx,
OpEXx) has not been disclosed with regard to financial the
year 2024.

TARGETS RELATED TO POLLUTION

The target established by Brembo stipulates that pollutant
concentrations in air and water discharges must be
maintained at levels lower than 60% of the limits imposed
by local requlations. The defined target level is absolute,
measured in percentage (%), indicating the specific
concentration levels to be achieved. The scope of this
target encompasses all Brembo plants (direct operations)
worldwide, ensuring comprehensive application across the
company’s activities. Performance against the disclosed
targets is monitored through annual measurements to
ensure compliance with pollutant thresholds in air and
water. The monitoring process confirms that the targets
are being met as initially planned, with ongoing analysis
of trends and significant changes in performance towards
achieving the established targets. The target is not
mandatory, and it is not required by legislation, affirming
the commitment of the company to monitor these kinds of
pollutants during its processes.

This target is closely aligned with Brembao's policy
objectives, reflecting the company’s commitment to
preserving essential environmental matrices such as
water, soil, and air. As part of its Environment and Energy
Management System, Brembo has implemented an Air
Emission, Soil, and Water Management procedure that
Imposes requirements and restrictions across all Group
plants to ensure sustainable use and protection against
pollution. This ambitious objective is supported by a
robust monitoring system for the principal pollutants
resulting from production processes and the installation
of treatment plants in accordance with Best Available
Techniques (BAT).

The methodologies and assumptions used to define
the target are based on the recognition that pollutant

emissions from Brembo’s production may have direct
negative effects on the health of adjacent communities
and local flora and fauna. The Environment and

Energy Management System has introduced common
requirements across all Group plants to contain
environmental risks well below the emission limits
provided for local legislation. Each plant has established
monitoring plans to ensure that emissions generated by
production processes - including odorous emissions, which
are not typically covered by legislative requirements - are
limited to technological thresholds. Additionally, the Water
Management procedure within the Environment and
Energy Management System sets stringent requirements
for rational water use and protection against accidental
contamination.

The targets related to environmental matters are based
on conclusive scientific evidence, with values derived from
precise measurements conducted at plants subject to
regular or ongoing spot checks. Emissions at each plant
are calculated based on these measurements, taking into
account the concentration of harmful substances, mass
flow, and operating time.

There has been no involvement of stakeholders in the
target-setting process for these material sustainability
matters and there have been no changes to the targets,
corresponding metrics, or underlying measurement
methodologies, significant assumptions, limitations,
sources, or data collection processes within the defined
time horizon.
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Table 26
2024
Pollutant Name?° u.m. Air Water Soil
Ammonia (NH3) kg 195.47 - _
Anthracene kg 0.12 - -
Arsenic and compounds (as As) kg 0.56 - - . :
POLLUTION OF AIR, WATER AND the company exercises operational control. The
SOIL - GENERAL Benzene kg 763.97 - - measurement methodologies adopted for monitoring
Cadmium and compounds (as Cd) kg 0.56 - - emissions include direct measurement through tools
Primary data is gathered from factories using the EE Carbon dioxide (CO2) K 1263.95 ] i such as online analysers, as well as calculations based
Data Collection system, which ensures a systematic . on site-specific data, thereby ensuring an accurate
S . _ Carbon monoxide (CO) kg 571,520.16 - - f . : hat it | ™
approach to data acquisition. Once collected, this data is assessment of emissions. It is noted that it is not possible
automatically transferred to the non financial reporting Chlorides (as total Cl) kg - 1,757.38 - to make comparisons with previous years regarding
system for further processing. The emissions are reported Chlorine and inorganic compounds (as HCl) kg 483.54 - - emissions, as these are influenced bY_difﬁCL_”t-tO-_
by the sites that perform chlmngy monitoring, aqherlng Chromium and compounds (as Cr) g 20,65 0.01 . cpnt.rcl)l varlaples, such as the productlon mix, whlch can
to the necessary legislative requirements. Following significantly impact the quantity of substances emitted.
this phase, the emission data is reprocessed based on Copper and compounds (as Cu) kg 97.67 - - . |
the guidelines outlined in the procedure “Atmospheric Cyanides (as total CN) kg - 0.04 - In the context of emissions reporting, Brembo has
emission management” ensuring accuracy and Fluorides (as total ) kg B 001 B taken into account the emissions of pollutants to water,
compliance throughout the process. , , , particularly in areas identified as being at water risk,
Fluorine and inorganic compounds (as HF) kg 107.82 - - including those experiencing high water stress.
Lead and compounds (as Pb) kg 11.65 - -
Methane (CH4) kg 6,462.99 - i Table 27
Naphthalene kg 0.90 - - -
Emissions of pollutants u.m. 2024
Nickel and compounds (as Ni) kg 30.00 0.65 - to water in areas at water risk
Nitrogen oxides (NOX/NO2) kg 144,164.11 _ _ Total emissions of pollutants to water kg 1,731.98
Nitrous oxide (N20) kg 15,919.43 B, } occurring in areas at water risk
Non-methane volatile organic compounds (NMVOCQ) kg 54,089.80 - -~ Total emissions of pollutants to water kg 1731.98
Particulate matter (PM10) kg 351,934.91 _ _ occurring in areas of high-water stress
Polycyclic aromatic hydrocarbons (PAHS) kg 1.56 0.03 - Total water pollutants kg 1,777.06
Sulphur oxides (SOx/502) kg 90,906.79 _ _ Percentage of total emissions of % 97.5%
Total nitrogen kg - 1414 - pollutants to water occurring in areas
isk
Total organic carbon (TOC) (as total C or COD/3) kg - 3.06 - at waterris
Total phosphorus kg — 1.50 _ Percentage of total emissions of % 97.5%
, pollutants to water occurring in areas
Zinc and compounds (as Zn) kg 202.82 0.23 - of high-water stress
Total kg 1,237,932.32 1,777.06 -

Bremboubasconsolidated tinetemissions dat &cencompassmga e Fraurts fromnfaditities oves weddding table are those deemed

inapplicable to the processes of Brembo. Consequently, these substances are not subject to monitoring, as they are not emitted.
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SUBSTANCES OF CONCERN AND
SUBSTANCES OF VERY HIGH CONCERN

This disclosure about substances of concern aims at providing
an understanding of actual or potential impacts related to
such substances, also taking account of possible restrictions
on their use and/or distribution and commercialization.
These substances may be present in the auxiliaries and in
the raw materials used in the production processes, or in the
purchased articles which compose the final goods.

For the annual report 2024, Brembo acknowledges the
Substances of Concern (SoC) as Substances of Very High
Concern (SVHQ) listed in the latest 2024 ECHA Candidate

List, dated 07th November 2024, in accordance with Article

59 of the REACH Regulation applicable at the European level,
Substances with a harmonized classification (Annex. VI. Part
3, CLP - Regulation 2008/1272 and its amendments) that
meets the requirements for specific health and environmental
hazards, and Persistent Organic Pollutants (according to POPs
Requlation - Regulation 2019/1027and its amendments).
Brembo is actively undertaking an analysis to identify a
comprehensive list of these substances, especially for the
Substances of Very High Concern (SVHC) at the group level,
aiming to identify and prevent the possible impacts on
environmental matrices and human health.

In light of all this, Brembo has made every effort to collect

the necessary inf